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To: Commissioners and Interested Persons
From: Susan Craig, Central Coast District Manager

Forest Donovan, Coastal Planner
Subject: Additional hearing materials for Th17b

CDP Appeal Number A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel)

This package includes additional materials related to the above-referenced hearing item
as follows:

Additional correspondence received in the time since the staff report was
distributed



From: Craig, Susan@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: FW: Cobb Hotel Appeal
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:36:22 AM
Attachments: responses to coastal commission appeal contentions.pdf

SL11157-4 Cobb Hotel CCC Response to Comments.pdf
summary of CC concerns and why not substantial issue, updated.docx

 
 

From: Jay Cobb <jay.cobb@hitechhome.net> 
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 8:54 AM
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal <donne.brownsey@coastal.ca.gov>; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal
<Stephen.Padilla@coastal.ca.gov>; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal <effie.turnbull-
sanders@coastal.ca.gov>; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal <sara.aminzadeh@coastal.ca.gov>; Wilson,
Mike@Coastal <mike.wilson@coastal.ca.gov>; Rice, Katie@Coastal <katie.rice@coastal.ca.gov>;
Harmon, Meagan@Coastal <meagan.harmon@coastal.ca.gov>; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal
<roberto.uranga@coastal.ca.gov>; Groom, Carole@Coastal <carole.groom@coastal.ca.gov>; Mann,
Zahirah@Coastal <zahirah.mann@coastal.ca.gov>; Faustinos, Belinda@Coastal
<belinda.faustinos@coastal.ca.gov>; Luce, Shelley@Coastal <shelley.luce@coastal.ca.gov>
Cc: Craig, Susan@Coastal <Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov>; ExecutiveStaff@Coastal
<ExecutiveStaff@coastal.ca.gov>; Hart, Caryl@Coastal <caryl.hart@coastal.ca.gov>; Escalante,
Linda@Coastal <linda.escalante@coastal.ca.gov>; Carl, Dan@Coastal <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>;
Ainsworth, John@Coastal <John.Ainsworth@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Cobb Hotel Appeal
 
Good morning Commissioners,
My Name is Jay Cobb, the owner of the beachfront lot in Cayucos that was recently appealed (A-3-
SLO-21-0039) by the Coastal Commission for the construction of a boutique hotel.  Local
government permit number is DRC2019-00297.  The upcoming hearing is scheduled for next week,

Thursday August 12th.  There are many important facts for this project that you will hopefully
consider.  I have attached the responses to the appeal contentions and a summary.  These
attachments are being included in the upcoming staff report addendum and staff is copied on this
email to satisfy ex parte communication requirements. 
 
I have read through the local resident letters of concern.  The concerns have already been vetted out
through the professional studies, which support the projects viability.  This project meets all the
parameters from a factual and data driven standpoint.  Several residents mention utilizing the lot for
a park, concerts, or other events like weddings, but what they are missing is the limitation on
parking.  This would increase the need for parking, whereas our project provides adequate parking
for the project as detailed in the appeal contentions response and does not rely on parking outside
of the hotel lot onto the community streets or neighborhoods.  Residents talk about the views, but
access to the views will actually be enhanced with the capability to walk along the perimeter of the
bluff, enjoy a cup of coffee on one of the several benches along the path, or descend down to the
beach where the path connects to stairs to the beach.  Several people say the hotel doesn’t fit, too
tall, doesn’t blend, or is out of character.  The hotel was influenced by the Cayucos Citizens Advisory
Council to blend in with the community.  We took all their suggestions and redesigned the project to
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Date:  July 18, 2021 
To:  California Coastal Commission 
From:  Planning Solutions/Pamela Jardini J.D. 
Subject: Response to Cobb Hotel Appeal Contentions 


San Luis Obispo County CDP number 3-SLO-21-0445  
 
 
Representatives of Planning Solutions reviewed the Cobb Hotel Appeal Contentions 
letter and is providing responses to the contentions.  Planning Solutions reviewed the 
San Luis Obispo County’s Coastal Zone Land Use Ordinance (CZLUO), Estero Area 
Plan, and applicable Coastal Act Sections to determine if the proposed project as 
conditioned is consistent with these documents. 
 


Response to Contentions 
 
The following items were provided in the referenced Cobb Hotel Appeal Contentions. 
The contentions are italicized in bold and presented in a numerical format. Responses 
to and a discussion regarding the contentions are presented immediately following the 
contention. 
 


1) The San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission approved a coastal 
development permit (CDP) for the construction of a three-story, 20,114 sq. 
ft., hotel with day spa/health center, restaurant, bar, outdoor swimming 
pool, public blufftop pathway, and related development.  


 
Response: The project description is incomplete 
Discussion: The San Luis Obispo Planning Commission approved a coastal 
development permit (CDP) for the construction of a three-story, 20,114 sq. ft. boutique 
hotel with 16 guest units, one manager’s unit, and the following amenities for hotel 
guest use only: a restaurant, bar, gym/spa and outdoor swimming pool.  The hotel’s site 
design includes vertical public access to the beach and provides views along a 
walking/jogging path located the length of the bluff top. A modification to the parking 
standards is requested to allow a tandem parking space for employee parking on-site 
per Section 23.04.162h  
 


2) In this case, the County did not analyze or require the provision of lower-
cost accommodations, nor mitigate for lack of same. The project materials 
do not identify proposed room rates but do describe the hotel as being 
“boutique” and fulfilling an unmet need for quality hotel accommodations 
in Cayucos, suggesting that rooms here will be higher cost and therefore 
without requisite lower cost mitigation. 


 
Response: The boutique hotel complies with the Coastal Act 30212 regarding Low-
Cost Accommodations since one low-cost housing unit is provided, one room qualifies 
as low-cost, and outdoor recreational activities are encouraged through the 
walking/jogging path, vertical beach access and a retail shop.   
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Discussion: California Coastal Act 30212 states that “Lower cost visitor and 
recreational facilities shall be protected, encouraged, and where feasible, provided. 
Developments providing public recreational opportunities are preferred. The 
Commission shall not (1) require that overnight room rentals be fixed at an amount 
certain for any privately owned and operated hotel, motel, or other similar visitor-serving 
facility located on either public or private lands; or (2) establish or approve any method 
for the identification of low or moderate-income persons for the purpose of determining 
eligibility for overnight room rentals in any such facilities.” 
 
The Coastal Commission approved permits and certified Local Coastal Plan policies 
that require developers to provide non-overnight, lower cost facilities in new hotel 
projects. Furthermore, language in the Coastal Act states that “development providing 
public recreational opportunities are preferred.” Although these facilities do not provide 
overnight accommodations, they ensure that visitors who cannot or choose not to pay 
for a hotel room can nonetheless access the facility for activities during the day (City of 
Pismo Beach, Lower-Cost Visitor Serving Accommodations Technical Memorandum, 
October 29, 2019) (2200 Lee Court Project, San Diego, 2014) 
 
The Boutique Hotel complies with this Coastal Act section by providing various solutions 
that the California Coastal Commission has recognized as methods to comply with 
Section 30212. Historically the Coastal Commission required 25% of the room 
accommodations to be low cost or to provide alternate means to mitigate this 
requirement as discussed in a- e below.   
 


a. Low-cost housing provided in the project. 
The Cobb Boutique Hotel provides 16 rooms for rent.  The manager’s unit provides low-
cost housing for a full-time employee.   
 


b. 1 room qualifies as low-cost.  
The Cobb Boutique Hotel provides a flex room layout that allows for 6 or more people to 
occupy one room.  The Coastal Commission recognized in a previous approved 
Development Permit that providing a room where the cost could be shared by 6 or more 
people meets the requirement of low cost (2200 Lee Court Project, San Diego, 2014).  
 


c. Outdoor public recreational activities 
This section of the Coastal Commission Act specifically states that “developments 
providing public recreational opportunities are preferred.” The Cobb Boutique Hotel 
provides various passive outdoor recreational activities.  
 


• The site is designed with a walking/jogging path for the public along the coastal 
bluff. 


•  Benches are provided along the path for public seating/viewing. 


• Connection to the adjacent public stairway descending to the beach per the 
signed agreement between the condominium development adjacent to the west 
and subject property’s owner (agreement enclosed).  
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d. Retail Shop providing outdoor recreational equipment open to the public. 
The boutique hotel includes a small shop for its patrons and the public to rent outdoor 
recreational equipment such a bogie boards, surf boards, life vest, water wings, skim 
boards, umbrellas, etc. Access to the shop is provided along the sidewalk to the rental 
shop.  Public parking for the rental shop is provided off-site at the public parking lot 
adjacent to this site.    
 


e. Other Low-Cost Accommodations in Cayucos 
RV Park 
The Bella Vista by the Sea is a Recreational Vehicle Park (RV) that is across the street 
from the Boutique Hotel site.  Its patrons will be able to walk along the bluff path and 
enjoy the scenic vista. Currently, its patrons are not able to walk along the bluff or sit 
and enjoy the morning sunrise or evening sunset at the ocean’s edge. 
 
Short Term Rentals  
The Coastal commission defined Short Term Rentals to include Vacation Rentals by 
Owner (VRBO) and Air Bed and Breakfasts (Airbnb).  The prices on these types of 
overnight accommodations vary significantly depending on their location, number of 
bedrooms, or rental of an entire house.  The houses for short term rent located on or 
near the ocean would not qualify as low-cost housing. However, one bedroom or small 
houses provide a market for lower cost accommodations. Short term rentals exist 
nearby in Cayucos.      
 


3) The Coastal Act and LCP also require the maximization of public 
recreational access, including in the LCP by requiring lateral and vertical 
access for projects between the sea and the first public road. 


 
Response: The project exceeds the requirements of the Coastal Act and the LCP. The 
Boutique Hotel provides lateral and vertical access to the beach and passive outdoor 
recreational activities. And the project complies with Section 23.04.420 of the Coastal 
Zone Land Use Ordinance which requires vertical access every quarter mile. 
 
Discussion: The boutique hotel’s on-site circulation allows public access to the beach 
from North Ocean Avenue by providing a path along the bluff.  The public may choose 
to continue along the westerly property line back to North Ocean Avenue making a loop 
around the property or descend the stairway on the adjacent property to the beach to 
enjoy the sandy beach, ocean and occasional tidepools located west of the subject site.  


• Vertical access to the beach is provided to the public.  The stairs on the adjacent 
property connect to the walking/jogging path on the boutique hotel site. 
(Agreement between the condominium development adjacent to the west and 
subject property owner enclosed) 


• Lateral access to the beach is provided to the public. The site is designed with a 
walking/jogging path along the coastal bluff. 


• Passive outdoor recreational activities are provided. Benches are staged along 
the walking/jogging path for public seating/viewing. 



mailto:planningsolutions@charter.net





 


 


 
Planning Solutions 


planningsolutions@charter.net 
805.801.0453 


4
 


• Additionally, public access to the beach is provided on the adjacent parcel to the 
east; vertical access exists in the form of a public staircase approximately 600 
feet from the project site – less than the quarter mile requirement. The lot is 
zoned Recreation and is developed with a public parking lot.  


• The boutique hotel includes a small shop for its patrons and the public to rent 
outdoor recreational equipment such a bogie boards, surf boards, life vest, water 
wings, skim boards, umbrellas, etc.  


  
4) And while the County’s approval does include a lateral blufftop pedestrian 


path, it is located in the required setback area and it does not include 
requirements for maintenance or upkeep (rebuilding, relocating inland, 
etc.)   


 
Response: Lateral pedestrian path created from pavers is not a structure.  
 
Discussion: The walking/jogging path complies with Section 23.04.186c of the CZLUO 
which states: 
“Bark, timber, decorative rock, boulders, gravel, decomposed granite or other decorative 
materials, provided that such materials allow for the percolation of water through to the 
ground.” 
Pavers will be used for the walking/jogging path material; they allow rain/run-off to 
percolate into the ground. The pavers are not a structural element but can be moved if 
necessary if bluff erosion is experienced.  
 


5) The approval also does not include a public vertical accessway to the 
ocean, instead relying on a potential future agreement with the neighboring 
private property for hotel guest to utilize their existing staircase (which 
does not appear to be open to the public) 


 
Response: Vertical access to the ocean is provided via the project’s connection to the 
stairway on the adjacent parcel to the west. And vertical access is provided within 
walking distance on the adjacent parcel to the east.    
 
Discussion: The boutique hotel’s on-site circulation allows public access to the beach 
from North Ocean Avenue by providing a path along the bluff that connects to the 
stairway on the property to the west (refer to Agreement enclosed). The condominium 
development on the adjacent property to the west provides a 3-foot-wide public access 
easement to the beach allowing the subject project to tie into the existing stairway. 
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Vertical coastal access provided via the stairway (public access easement) and Agreement. 


 
Vertical coastal access to beach is provided on parcel to the east   
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Depiction of walking/jogging path  
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On-site circulation - connection to stairway and N. Ocean Ave. 


 
 


6) In addition, there is nothing in the County record analyzing whether any 
prescriptive rights of access might be associated with the subject site, and 
how those would be protected if present.  


 
Response: Prescriptive rights do not exist 
Discussion: The Court of Appeals decision in Winterburn v Bennett (2016) held that a 
sign declaring that land can only be used by authorized persons can prevent the 
registration of a prescriptive right.  
 
The subject property has been fenced off from public access and a “private property” 
sign posted for years. Consent for the public to enter or use the property has never 
been granted. 
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Fencing and Private Property sign posted 


 


 
   


7) … the project would ordinarily require 77 parking spaces, but the County’s 
approval requires only 21 (and no public beach parking spaces). While the 
LCP does allow for reductions in parking when certain findings are made, 
such large reduction in this case raises questions about whether the site is 
adequately parked off-street or whether hotel guests and employees will 
need to utilize public on street spaces thus usurping public beach parking 
opportunities. 


 
Response: The project’s 21 parking spaces complies with the CZLUO requirements for 
hotels. The County’s analysis of required number of parking spaces in the staff report 
was incorrect; planning staff admitted they did not realize the restaurant and bar were 
for hotel guest only in the public hearing on April 22, 2021.  
 
Discussion: Restaurant and Bar are subordinate to the primary hotel use. Planning 
staff’s calculation of the required number of parking spaces treated the restaurant and 
bar area as a typical restaurant/bar open to the public. The restaurant will not offer hotel 
guest a menu; this is not a sit down and order from a menu restaurant. The kitchen, 
small dining area, and intimate bar area are for hotel guest only. A continental breakfast 
will be provided to the hotel guest in the morning.  In the afternoon from 4-6 pm, the 
restaurant will provide “tapas style” appetizers to the hotel guest.  The bar will be open 
to hotel guest for drinks and smoothies.  
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The CZLUO does not provide a definition for a restaurant. The County’s Inland Land 
Use Ordinance defines a restaurant as: 
 
“Establishments selling proposed foods and drinks for on-site consumption. Also includes drive-
in restaurants, lunch counters, and refreshment stands selling prepared goods and drinks for 
immediate consumption. 
 
Restaurants, delis and lunch counters operated as SUBORDINATE service facilities within other 
establishments are not included here unless they are operated as leased departments by 
outside vendors.”   


 
Here, the restaurant and bar are clearly subordinate and incidental to the primary use of 
the site as a hotel. Therefore, parking calculations based on the sq. ft. of the restaurant 
and bar area as a “typical commercial operation” are incorrect.  
 


8) …the LCP requires the protection of scenic coastal areas and views to and 
along the shoreline and requires development to be sited and designed in a 
manner that respects the character of the surrounding area.  


 
Response: The project’s design avoids direct impacts to the surrounding 
environmentally sensitive areas. In fact, the proposed bio-swale reduces bluff erosion 
from run-off and filters pollutants from entering the environmentally sensitive areas.  
 
The project enhances existing views and is compatible with the character of the 
surrounding area as discussed in item number 9 & 10 below. 
 
Discussion: The project is designed to avoid direct impacts to surrounding 
environmentally sensitive areas. A 25-foot setback from observed wetland habitat was 
established, as well as a 38-foot setback from the coastal bluff. The project’s Biological 
Resources Assessment prepared by Kevin Merk Associates, LLC in May 2019, noted 
that “the project would be set back from the edge of coastal bluff and would not impact 
the bluff, sandy beach, or Cayucos Creek wetland areas.”  
 
Northern Coastal Salt Marsh was found between the toe of the bluff and the mouth of 
the creek. Northern Coastal Salt Marsh is considered a federally protected wetland. The 
project is setback approximately 40 feet from the Northern Coastal Salt Marsh. The 
Biological Resources Assessment determined that, with the proposed setback of less 
than 100-feet, the project would have “no significant impacts on wetlands,” and “there 
would be no indirect effects from the project on this habitat because it is located at the 
bottom of the bluff and far enough away from any site grading or other construction 
activities.” Recommended mitigation measures from the Biological Resources 
Assessment are included in the conditions of approval. 
 
A bioswale is incorporated into the design to concentrate and convey stormwater runoff 
and will aid in removing debris and filtering pollutants.   The bioswale is vegetated with 
native or Mediterranean plant species.  
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The landscaping plan specified plants will prevent erosion and stabilize the bluff; they 
will be planted on the creek/ocean side of the bioswale and will also planted with native 
or Mediterranean plant species.  
 
The Estero Area Plan sets the Cayucos Creek setback at 25 feet.  As stated in the 
Table 7-2’s note, the setback could be adjusted however, the proposed project is 
conditioned to meet the 25-foot setback.  


 
 
 


9) The boxy design does not include any view corridors or breaks in building 
volume, thereby blocking essentially all existing public ocean views from 
North Ocean Avenue. 


 
Response: The hotel is designed in a semi-circular shape and the lobby’s glass façade 
allows views through the lobby to the ocean. The character of the building is compatible 
with the surrounding area; the local advisory council’s suggestions for architectural style 
and materials were incorporated into the final design.        
 
Discussion: The building bends in a semi-circle mimicking the topography of the site; it 
will be constructed on the flat terraced portion and its height is lower than the adjacent 
condominium development to the west.  The circular entry provides efficient flow for 
guest, delivery trucks, and emergency vehicles; two points of entry were required by Cal 
Fire. The parking area is setback 28 feet from North Ocean Avenue allowing ample area 
for street trees, tiered landscaping, and a sidewalk.  
 
The hotel’s architecture reflects the community’s desire for façade articulation, 
materials, scale, and color.  A mix of materials used locally such as stone veneer, fiber 
cement wood paneling, fiber cement wood shingles, glass railings, and wood trim for 
eaves, facia and columns were incorporated into the projects architecture to provide 
interest and reflect the local community’s desires. Pop-outs on the north and south side 
of the building were added to provide shadow lines and façade articulation.  
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The project was reviewed by the Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council’s Land Use 
Committee on January 29, 2020; at this meeting, the Council raised concerns regarding 
the project’s architecture and site design. Taking the Council’s concerns into account, 
Cayucos’ downtown and residential areas were explored with members from the 
Council to view local architecture style and materials. The project was redesigned and 
presented to the Council again. The Council voted unanimously to recommend approval 
of the project at their March 4, 2020, meeting. 
 
 
 


 
Depiction of hotel’s façade articulation with pop-outs and mix of materials 
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The boutique hotel’s entrance is a wall of glass allowing views to the ocean through the lobby. 


 
10) The site is strategically geographically located to provide visually striking 


views of both the adjacent central shoreline of Cayucos and the Cayucos 
Pier, as well as the downcoast hills and the shoreline stretching down to 
Morro Rock and Montana de Oro downcoast in the distance. All of these 
views will be blocked and otherwise adversely affected by the project and 
thus the County’s approval raises LCP visual resource consistency issues. 


 
Response: The subject property fronts North Ocean Avenue for 380 feet 
approximately. The easterly 150 feet of the property’s frontage along North Ocean 
Avenue will remain undeveloped. Therefore, approximately 40% of the existing views 
from North Ocean Avenue are preserved.  Additionally, the public’s views will be 
enhanced by their ability to venture on-site and enjoy the views from the bluff-top 
instead of peering through the existing cyclone fence along North Ocean Avenue. 
 
Discussion: The subject site is 1.82 acres approximately or 79,279 sq ft. The hotel 
occupies 20,114 sq. ft or 25% of the site. Approximately 40% of the frontage along 
North Ocean Avenue will remain undeveloped. 
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Approximately 150 feet of the property frontage along North Ocean Avenue will remain 
undeveloped. 


 
Cayucos’s Central Business District lies 173 feet north and 292 feet east of the project 
site. Surrounding parcels are developed with condominiums (west), a RV Park (north), a 
public parking lot with beach access(east), and the Pacific Ocean(south).  
 
The Cayucos Urban Area Standards requires the project to incorporate public access 
along the bluff top for the public to enjoy the scenic vistas.  Additionally, access to the 
adjacent stairs leading to the beach was secured; this allows the public direct access to 
the beach to further enjoy ocean views up and downcoast of the project site. 
 
The California Coastal Commission adopted the following statement regarding 
California Coastal Act Section 30251:  
“The primary concern under this section of the Act is the protection of ocean and coastal views 
from public areas such as highways, roads, beaches, parks, coastal trails and accessways, vista 
points, coastal streams and waters used for recreational purposes, and other public preserves 
rather than coastal views from private residences where no public vistas are involved.”  
 
Views from Highway 1, the adjacent beaches, coastal streams, and water used for 
recreational purposes will not be disrupted by the construction of this hotel. Highway 1’s 
elevation varies between 18m-to 21m above sea level and the proposed project’s site is 
5m above sea level. There will be no impact to parks, coastal trails and accessways, 
vista points or other public preserves since none are adjacent to the project site or 
within 1,000 feet of the project site. 
 
40% of the views from North Ocean Avenue will be preserved. The proposed 
walking/jogging path allows the public to enjoy the scenic views up front and personal 
along the bluff instead of from a distance along North Ocean Avenue peering through 
the cyclone fence.  
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Additional Pertinent Information 
The project was redesigned to incorporate a garden wall per Brian O’Neil’s input. Mr. 
O’Neil requested physical separation between the private and public areas. An 
additional benefit of the garden wall is that it assists in the drainage/bioswale design; it 
aids in directing run-off away from the bluff area. 


 
 
 
    
 
 
 



mailto:planningsolutions@charter.net





 


 


 
Planning Solutions 


planningsolutions@charter.net 
805.801.0453 


1
5


 


 
 
The Estero Area Plan was certified by the Coastal Commission.  Establishment of 
certain uses on the property is limited through the Estero Area Plan. The policies state 
that this parcel is intended for development of a visitor-serving use. A hotel is a visitor 
serving use.   
 


 
 
 
If you have further concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at 805-801-0453 or at 
planningsolutions@charter.net 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Pamela Jardini J.D. 
Planning Solutions 
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COASTAL BLUFF EVALUATION – RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 
 


1.0 INTRODUCTION 


As requested by the client, representatives of GeoSolutions, Inc. conducted geologic 
evaluation of the coastal bluff for the proposed boutique hotel to be located at North 
Ocean Avenue, APN: 064-481-009, Cayucos area, San Luis Obispo County, California 
(GeoSolutions, June 23, 2020).  A Cobb Hotel Appeal Contentions review letter provided 
a review of the referenced report by the California Coastal Commission. Additional 
information was required as discussed below.   


2.0 RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 


The following comments were provided in the referenced Cobb Hotel Appeal Contentions: 


With respect to coastal hazards, the LCP requires development to be set back from coastal 
blufftop edges a sufficient distance to be safe from coastal hazards/bluff erosion, including 
as may be exacerbated by sea level rise, for a minimum of 100 years. Based on evaluation 
of historic erosion trends, the County estimated that a 38-foot setback from the current 
blufftop edge would meet this requirement (28 feet to account for erosion, and an additional 
10 feet to accommodate any increased erosion due to sea level rise and increased wave 
action over the 100 year period). There are several potential problems with this approach 
and the setback applied. 


1) First, the setback was derived based on a 50-year period, and not the 100 years 
required. 


Response: The original setback was performed in accordance with the California Coastal 
Commission guidelines for Establishing Development Setbacks from Coastal Bluffs 
(Johnsson, 2002) and the Guidelines for Engineering Geology Report (County of San Luis 
Obispo, 2010). The bluff retreat rate was determined based on the Guidelines for 
establishing long-term bluff retreat rates in Table 2 of the referenced Establishing 
Development Setbacks from Coastal Bluffs. Item 1 on Table 2 states “1) Determine bluff 
edge positions at as many times possible, but covering a minimum of about 50 years and 
extending to the present.” The oldest yet still small-scale photograph which could be 
obtained for the site dated back to 1953 which resulting in an analysis spanning 66 years. 
Over the analyzed 66 years, a retreat rate of 3.36 inches per year (0.28 feet per year) was 
determined. Then per the guidelines established in Johnson, 2002, the long-term bluff 
retreat rate was multiplied by the design life of the development (in this case 100 years) 
resulting in a long-term bluff retreat setback of 28 feet.  


2) Second, the County’s record is also unclear as to how the 10-foot buffer was 
calculated, and weather it’s sufficient to account for increased erosion and impacts 
associated with sea level rise over time. This is particularly the case because since, 
according to the Commission’s Staff Geologist and project materials, the materials 
comprising the site appear to be terrace deposits, alluvium, or even fill any of which 
would erode easily and quickly if subjected to more regular wave attack and higher sea 
levels. 
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The referenced California Coastal Commission guidelines for Establishing Development Setbacks from 
Coastal Bluffs (Johnsson, 2002) specifies the total setback is based on 3 parts: a slope stability setback, 
bluff retreat setback and buffer. Based on our slope stability analysis, minimum slope stability standards (ie 
factor of safety over 1.5 and 1.1) were achieved, therefore a slope stability setback was not implemented. 
The 100-year bluff retreat rate was determined for the site resulting in a long-term bluff retreat setback of 
28 feet. In my experience, other bluff retreats in Cayucos range from 1 to 2 inches per year particularly 
where bedrock is exposed in the bluff. The retreat rate at the site was observed to be increased due to the 
highly erodible soil deposits that comprise the bluff terrace. Therefore, the long-term erosion rate took into 
consideration that the bluff is highly erodible.  


Also as stated in Johnson, 2002,  


There is a great deal of uncertainty in many parts of the analysis discussed above. The deterministic 
approach outlined here does not deal well with such uncertainty. Various methods have been used to 
build in some margin for error in establishing safe building setbacks.  


One approach, commonly used by geologists working in northern California, is to multiply the long-term 
bluff retreat rate by a factor of safety (used in a different sense than for slope stability), generally ranging 
from 1.5 to 4.0. More commonly, a simple “buffer” is added to the setback generated by multi- plying the 
long-term bluff retreat rate by the design life of the structure. This buffer, generally on the order of ten 
feet, serves several functions: 1) it allows for uncertainty in all aspects of the analysis; 2) it allows for any 
future increase in bluff retreat rate due, for example, to an increase in the rate of sea level rise (Bray and 
Hooke 1997; Watson 2002); 3) it assures that at the end of the design life of the structure the foundations 
are not actually being undermined (if that were to be the case the structure would actually be imperiled 
well before the end of its design life); and 4) it allows access so that remedial measures, such as 
relocation of the structure, can be taken as erosion approaches the foundations. If a slope stability 
setback is required (i.e., if the bluff does not meet minimum slope stability standards), that setback can do 
double duty as this buffer.  


Based on the results of the slope stability setback, the slope stability setback is not necessary. The County 
of San Luis Obispo Guidelines for Engineering Report recommends the long-term retreat rate multiplied by 
1.2, which would be a setback distance of 33.6 feet (28 ft x 1.2=33.6 feet). The default 10-foot buffer is the 
most conservative for the setback distance at this Site. The 10-foot buffer takes into account for future 
increase in bluff retreat due to sea level rise. It is still recommended that the 38-foot minimum setback be 
implemented in the proposed design.  


3) Third, the site is bordered by Cayucos Creek, and it does not appear that the project’s coastal hazards 
analysis evaluated the combined effects of coastal and fluvial flooding, including from creek scour. 


Response: Based on the FEMA Flood Map (see Figure 4 in the referenced Coastal Bluff Evaluation), the 
100-year flood elevation is 13 feet. An additional slope stability analysis was run along the Cayucos Creek 
bank to determine the stability of the creek bank if flooded. As a conservative measure, an additional 2 feet 
was added to the flood elevation to account for the potential for coastal storm surge to occur at the same 
time as the 100-year flood event. Laboratory values obtained for the Soils Engineering Report 
(GeoSolutions, 2019) were utilized. A unit weight of 141 psf and friction angle of 32 with 0 cohesion was 
utilized for the fill and underlying Older Alluvium. These values are conservative and represent a worst case 
scenario. The resulting slope failures resulted in 0.94 (static) and 0.86 (pseudo-static), which is anticipated 
due to the erosive nature of the soil under worst case conditions. However, the critical failure plane was 
observed to be 5 to 15 feet from the creek top of bank. Therefore, the 25 foot fluvial setback is still 
recommended. 
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Figure 1: Section 1-1 (static) 


 


Figure 2: Section 1-1 (pseudo-static) 
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4) Fourth, the setback does not appear to have accounted for factors of safety associated with slope 
stability, which would only increase the setback needed to meet LCP requirements. 


Response: As stated above, based on our slope stability analysis (see section 8.0 in the referenced 
Coastal Bluff Evaluation), minimum slope stability standards (ie factor of safety over 1.5 and 1.1) were 
achieved, therefore a slope stability setback was not implemented above the 10-foot buffer.  


Should you have any questions regarding content of this report, please do not hesitate to contact us at 
(805) 543-8539. 
 
Sincerely, 
GeoSolutions, Inc.      
 
 
Jeffrey Pfost, CEG  
Principal Engineering Geologist 
SL11157-4 Cobb Hotel CCC Response to Comments.docx 
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Summary of Coastal Commission’s concerns and why not substantial issue 

***this is only a summary, please see Pamela Jardini’s and Geo Solution’s responses to each contention.  

1. Bluff and creek setbacks – See Geo Solutions’ response 

a. [bookmark: _Hlk78110633]Result – not substantial issue and conforms 

2. County conditioned the project to prohibit shoreline protection devices, but we have a “deeply” embedded retaining wall.

a. This was advised by Brian O’Neill at the coastal commission with the intent to separate public and private access on the property.  

b. Please see the diagram on the civil engineer plan.  It has a 12-inch footer.  This is easily removable and not considered “deeply” embedded.  

c. I took direction and guidance from the coastal commission representative for the area of cayucos.  I don’t know what more I could have done.  

d. We will modify as necessary  

e. Result – not substantial issue and will conform

3. County has approved a large hotel facility on a dynamic blufftop, oceanfront and creek adjacent property subject to numerous coastal hazards risks.  County’s approval raises questions about whether such risks was adequately accounted for in project sitting and design.

a. There are no risks

b. Please refer to the completed studies and plans 

i. Additionally, we have a responsible plan for riparian habitat improvements to protect the bluff edge and bank, provide erosion control, and preserve its natural beauty.  We will do this by redirecting how the water currently slopes toward the bluff and washes down the banks.  Our core drainage system redirects all the water away from the bluff perimeter and along the perimeter the planned path slopes slightly towards the hotel (away from the bluff edge) and water runoff would then go into a vegetation bioswale catch that redirects all the water to stabilize and eliminate the current floodwaters from running down the bank.  This solution will increase the time available for water to infiltrate into the soil recharging groundwater and alluvial aquifers.  This protection and restoration could serve as migration routes and stopping points supplying food, cover and water for a variety of animals.  Our plan protects the bluff and animals.  

c. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 

4. Public recreational access: LCP requires lateral and vertical access for projects between the sea and the first public road.  

a. Pedestrian path is located in the setback and does not include requirements for maintenance or upkeep.  

i. This path was placed into the setback per Brian O’Neill’s suggestion.  Brian also requested a plan for shifting the path as the bluff erodes, which we have addressed by shifting pavers from the ocean side to the hotel side as erosion occurs, which was approved by Brian O’Neill.  The lateral public path and separation from the path to the hotel was designed per the guidance of Brian O’Neill.  

ii. What type of requirements for maintenance and upkeep are you looking for?  

b. Approval does not include a vertical accessway to the ocean.  

i. This is not needed as there is vertical access within 600 feet of the site, however we do have an agreement for shared access and a maintenance plan on the existing stairs next door.  We followed Brian O’Neill’s and Kevin Kahn’s guidance for vertical access.  

c. Existing staircase next door is not open to public use.  There are no prescriptive rights of access associated with the site and how protected if present.

i. See Pamela Jardini’s responses to the contentions.  

d. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 

5. Project would require 77 parking spaces and no public beach parking.

a. Project does not require 77 spaces.  See Pamela Jardini’s responses to the contentions.  

b. Parking is 1 space per guest room for 16 rooms (16 spaces), 1 space for every 10 rooms (1.6 spaces), and 2 spaces for employees for a total of 19.6 spaces.  We have 21 spaces. 

c. There is a public beach parking lot directly next to the hotel and creek lot.  

d. The project’s 21 parking spaces complies with the CZLUO requirements for hotels.

e. The hotel operation does not require any parking spaces outside of the hotel property.

f. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 

6. Lower cost accommodations 

a. Cayucos already has the lowest cost motels/hotels out of any beach town on the central coast.

b. There is also a low-cost RV Park directly across the street with some of the units available to rent.  

c. There are many vacation rentals in the area, with some being low end low rent options.

d. The addition of higher end rooms, would move those travelers who could afford the higher rate out of the lower cost rooms-- leaving more supply of lower cost rooms for people needing a lower cost option. 

e. Low cost accommodations are a suggestion, but not a requirement…”lower cost rooms are preferred when feasible”. 

i. Given the current cost of coastal property, the size and constraints of this lot, and the current cost of building, the feasibility of low-cost options is limited. 

f. We are contributing to the accessibility of enjoying the coast by offering recreational activities.

i. A scenic walking path along the perimeter of the bluff that loops around the hotel and connects into the sidewalk on Ocean Ave.

ii. Beach access

iii. A rental shop for the public

iv. Sidewalk in front of the hotel to extend the sidewalk from the creek bridge 

1. If needed six of our rooms can be considered low-cost accommodations based on how they can accommodate six or more people in one room.  

2. Here are a couple in lieu mitigation options that I’m starting that could provide a benefit someplace else for the community.

a. low-cost tour company similar to the tour companies in Spain, France, and Italy where large groups tour the town and visit all of the most popular sites on bike.  This is very popular abroad.  

b. A non-profit organization called 2 Give Back (2giveback.org), where businesses and individuals will donate money, their time, and their possessions to organizations, communities or people that are in need.  

c. We are also open to starting an outreach program that could benefit the community.  

g. Result – not substantial issue and conforms

7. Public views 

a. Brian O’Neill has already addressed this and stated because of the orientation of the site being much lower than highway 1 that the building would not obstruct any public views.  Given the significant drop in elevation from Highway 1 to the lot, public views would not be disturbed.  He also explained other public views would not be a concern.  From ocean ave. there are several ocean viewing gaps throughout the town of Cayucos along Ocean Ave. and miles of open views at both ends of the town.  Furthermore, 40% of the parcel is not being developed along Ocean Ave. leaving approximately 150 feet of undeveloped area for views straight to the ocean.   

b. One could actually look through the lobby and directly to the ocean from Ocean Ave.    

c. Result – not substantial issue and conforms

8. Designed in similar character to the surrounding area and view corridors or breaks in the building.   

a. The Cayucos Advisory Citizens Council along with the help of San Luis Obispo County made changes to our design to conform.  They showed us what buildings they liked in Cayucos.  The hotel was modeled after those designs.  I redesigned the building to match what they liked.  The Cayucos Advisory Citizens Council designed this hotel.  They unanimously approved it.  The design mimics actual building structures within the community.

b. There are pop outs, different shapes, different textures and a see-through section from the front of the building directly to the ocean.  We plan to add a larger see-through area with more glass at the entry and a less obtrusive covering at the entry.  We will also remove the columns at the entry and add details to the front similar to those in the back of the hotel to include glass railing balconies and canopies.  

c. One could actually look through the lobby and directly to the ocean from Ocean Ave.   

d.  The hotel will be much approximately 10 feet lower in height and significantly smaller in overall size while comparing it to the neighboring condos.

e. Result – not substantial issue and conforms







meet their wishes.  Also, the hotel is not nearly as tall or as large as the condo building next door
negating the height and mass concerns expressed. 
 
Throughout the studies and hearings process in seeking construction approval, we have designed
the project through the guidance of Brian O’Neill from the Coastal Commission, San Luis Obispo
County, Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council, community residents and the Planning Commission. 
Every directed change has been incorporated into this project.  The Estero Area Plan’s and Local
Coastal Program’s goals are to take advantage of the planning area's scenic beauty and recreational
attractions to expand tourist and visitor-serving development such as a small-scale resort/retreat,
visitor accommodations, bicycle; and low-cost recreation.  All of which our project would have.  We
have followed the requirements of the Estero Area Plan and the Local Coastal Program.  The only
appeal contention that doesn’t follow the LCP requirement is a retaining wall that separates the
private space of the hotel to the public visitor serving space of the bluff walking path.  This was
directed by Brian O’Neill, the staff member that covered the Cayucos area for the Coastal
Commission.  He wanted separation and he felt this was the best way to achieve that.  We
redesigned our entire landscape plan with our civil engineer and landscape architect to
accommodate this Coastal Commission request.  The retaining wall is far from being deeply
embedded as suggested in the appeal contention.  There is only a 12 inch footer that can be easily
removed.  If the Coastal Commission feels we weren’t advised properly by your representative, we
will remove the retaining wall and even the visitor serving walking path if that will earn your support
for the project. 
 
In summary, we have done all the necessary preplanning, professional studies, and followed the
entire approval process with support from all agencies (even the Coastal Commission up to Brian
O’Neill’s departure).  We received unanimous approvals from both the Cayucos Citizens Advisory
Council and the Planning Commission.  We want this to be a great project for everyone; the
community, the Coastal Commission, San Luis Obispo County and the guests.  I am flexible for
modifications we have to make to complete this goal and to earn your support for the project.   
 
Please see the responses to the appeal contentions (attached). 
 
If interested, I can meet with you at the lot any time before the upcoming hearing. 
 
Best regards,
Jay Cobb
 



From: Craig, Susan@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: FW: Cobb Hotel Appeal
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:39:47 AM
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
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 8:32 AM
To: Hart, Caryl@Coastal <caryl.hart@coastal.ca.gov>; Escalante, Linda@Coastal
<linda.escalante@coastal.ca.gov>
Cc: Craig, Susan@Coastal <Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov>; ExecutiveStaff@Coastal
<ExecutiveStaff@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: FW: Cobb Hotel Appeal
 
This email and the following email is being sent to staff to follow ex parte communication
requirements.  Please advise if something further is needed. 
 

From: Jay Cobb 
Sent: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 10:10 AM
To: 'Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov' <Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov>; 'Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov'
<Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Cobb Hotel Appeal
 
Good morning Dr. Hart and Ms. Escalante,
My Name is Jay Cobb, the owner of the beachfront lot in Cayucos that you appealed for the
construction of a boutique hotel.  There are many important facts for this project that you will
hopefully consider.  I have attached the responses to the appeal contentions.  In addition, can I
please meet with you at the lot this week or next week before the upcoming hearing?  It would be
worthwhile for you to see firsthand all the dynamics of the lot and the vision for this space that has
been extensively worked on for the past three years. 
 
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
tall, doesn’t blend, or is out of character.  The hotel was influenced by the Cayucos Advisory Citizens
Council to blend in with the community.  We took all their suggestions and redesigned the project to

mailto:Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov
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
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GeSolutions, Inc., June 23, 2020, Coastal Bluff Evaluation Update, Cobb Boutique Hotel, North Ocean 
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GeoSolutions, Inc., March 14, 2019, Soils Engineering Report, Cobb Boutique Hotel, North Ocean Avenue, 
APN: 064-481-009, Cayucos Area, San Luis Obispo County, California, Project SL11157-2. 
 
Johnsson, Mark, 2002, Establishing Development Setbacks from Coastal Bluffs, in Magoon, Orville (ed.) 
Proceedings, California and the World Ocean.






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
County, Cayucos Advisory Citizens Council, community residents and the Planning Commission. 
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
have followed the requirements of the Estero Area Plan and the Local Coastal Program.  We want
this to be a great project for everyone; the community, the Coastal Commission, San Luis Obispo
County and the guests.  I am flexible for modifications we have to make to complete this goal and to
earn your support for the project.   
 
Please see the responses to the appeal contentions (attached).  Also, please let me know your
availability to meet at the lot to see firsthand the dynamics of the lot and the vision for the space.  I
can make myself available whenever is best for you. 
 
Best regards,
Jay Cobb
559-248-6700



Summary of Coastal Commission’s concerns and why not substantial issue  

***this is only a summary, please see Pamela Jardini’s and Geo Solution’s 
responses to each contention.   

1. Bluff and creek setbacks – See Geo Solutions’ response  
a. Result – not substantial issue and conforms  

2. County conditioned the project to prohibit shoreline protection devices, but we have a “deeply” 
embedded retaining wall. 

a. This was advised by Brian O’Neill at the coastal commission with the intent to separate 
public and private access on the property.   

b. Please see the diagram on the civil engineer plan.  It has a 12-inch footer.  This is easily 
removable and not considered “deeply” embedded.   

c. I took direction and guidance from the coastal commission representative for the area 
of cayucos.  I don’t know what more I could have done.   

d. We will modify as necessary   
e. Result – not substantial issue and will conform 

3. County has approved a large hotel facility on a dynamic blufftop, oceanfront and creek adjacent 
property subject to numerous coastal hazards risks.  County’s approval raises questions about 
whether such risks was adequately accounted for in project sitting and design. 

a. There are no risks 
b. Please refer to the completed studies and plans  

i. Additionally, we have a responsible plan for riparian habitat improvements to 
protect the bluff edge and bank, provide erosion control, and preserve its 
natural beauty.  We will do this by redirecting how the water currently slopes 
toward the bluff and washes down the banks.  Our core drainage system 
redirects all the water away from the bluff perimeter and along the perimeter 
the planned path slopes slightly towards the hotel (away from the bluff edge) 
and water runoff would then go into a vegetation bioswale catch that redirects 
all the water to stabilize and eliminate the current floodwaters from running 
down the bank.  This solution will increase the time available for water to 
infiltrate into the soil recharging groundwater and alluvial aquifers.  This 
protection and restoration could serve as migration routes and stopping points 
supplying food, cover and water for a variety of animals.  Our plan protects the 
bluff and animals.   

c. Result – not substantial issue and conforms  
4. Public recreational access: LCP requires lateral and vertical access for projects between the sea 

and the first public road.   
a. Pedestrian path is located in the setback and does not include requirements for 

maintenance or upkeep.   
i. This path was placed into the setback per Brian O’Neill’s suggestion.  Brian also 

requested a plan for shifting the path as the bluff erodes, which we have 
addressed by shifting pavers from the ocean side to the hotel side as erosion 
occurs, which was approved by Brian O’Neill.  The lateral public path and 



separation from the path to the hotel was designed per the guidance of Brian 
O’Neill.   

ii. What type of requirements for maintenance and upkeep are you looking for?   
b. Approval does not include a vertical accessway to the ocean.   

i. This is not needed as there is vertical access within 600 feet of the site, however 
we do have an agreement for shared access and a maintenance plan on the 
existing stairs next door.  We followed Brian O’Neill’s and Kevin Kahn’s guidance 
for vertical access.   

c. Existing staircase next door is not open to public use.  There are no prescriptive rights of 
access associated with the site and how protected if present. 

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
b. Parking is 1 space per guest room for 16 rooms (16 spaces), 1 space for every 10 rooms 

(1.6 spaces), and 2 spaces for employees for a total of 19.6 spaces.  We have 21 spaces.  
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
a. Cayucos already has the lowest cost motels/hotels out of any beach town on the central 

coast. 
b. There is also a low-cost RV Park directly across the street with some of the units 

available to rent.   
c. There are many vacation rentals in the area, with some being low end low rent options. 
d. The addition of higher end rooms, would move those travelers who could afford the 

higher rate out of the lower cost rooms-- leaving more supply of lower cost rooms for 
people needing a lower cost option.  

e. Low cost accommodations are a suggestion, but not a requirement…”lower cost rooms 
are preferred when feasible”.  

i. Given the current cost of coastal property, the size and constraints of this lot, 
and the current cost of building, the feasibility of low-cost options is limited.  

f. We are contributing to the accessibility of enjoying the coast by offering recreational 
activities. 

i. A scenic walking path along the perimeter of the bluff that loops around the 
hotel and connects into the sidewalk on Ocean Ave. 

ii. Beach access 
iii. A rental shop for the public 
iv. Sidewalk in front of the hotel to extend the sidewalk from the creek bridge  

1. If needed six of our rooms can be considered low-cost accommodations 
based on how they can accommodate six or more people in one room.   

2. Here are a couple in lieu mitigation options that I’m starting that could 
provide a benefit someplace else for the community. 



a. low-cost tour company similar to the tour companies in Spain, 
France, and Italy where large groups tour the town and visit all 
of the most popular sites on bike.  This is very popular abroad.   

b. A non-profit organization called 2 Give Back (2giveback.org), 
where businesses and individuals will donate money, their time, 
and their possessions to organizations, communities or people 
that are in need.   

c. We are also open to starting an outreach program that could 
benefit the community.   

g. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 
7. Public views  

a. Brian O’Neill has already addressed this and stated because of the orientation of the site 
being much lower than highway 1 that the building would not obstruct any public views.  
Given the significant drop in elevation from Highway 1 to the lot, public views would not 
be disturbed.  He also explained other public views would not be a concern.  From ocean 
ave. there are several ocean viewing gaps throughout the town of Cayucos along Ocean 
Ave. and miles of open views at both ends of the town.  Furthermore, 40% of the parcel 
is not being developed along Ocean Ave. leaving approximately 150 feet of undeveloped 
area for views straight to the ocean.    

b. One could actually look through the lobby and directly to the ocean from Ocean Ave.     
c. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 

8. Designed in similar character to the surrounding area and view corridors or breaks in the 
building.    

a. The Cayucos Advisory Citizens Council along with the help of San Luis Obispo County 
made changes to our design to conform.  They showed us what buildings they liked in 
Cayucos.  The hotel was modeled after those designs.  I redesigned the building to 
match what they liked.  The Cayucos Advisory Citizens Council designed this hotel.  They 
unanimously approved it.  The design mimics actual building structures within the 
community. 

b. There are pop outs, different shapes, different textures and a see-through section from 
the front of the building directly to the ocean.  We plan to add a larger see-through area 
with more glass at the entry and a less obtrusive covering at the entry.  We will also 
remove the columns at the entry and add details to the front similar to those in the back 
of the hotel to include glass railing balconies and canopies.   

c. One could actually look through the lobby and directly to the ocean from Ocean Ave.    
d.  The hotel will be much approximately 10 feet lower in height and significantly smaller in 

overall size while comparing it to the neighboring condos. 
e. Result – not substantial issue and conforms 
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COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Bruce Gibson District Two Supervisor

August 5, 2021

Mr. Steve Padilla, Chair
California Coastal Commission

455 Market Street, Suite 300
San Francisco, CA 94105

RE: SUPPORT finding substantial issue
Item Th 17b, August 12, 2010
Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel, Cayucos)

Dear Chair Padilla and Commissioners:

I write in support of your staff's recommendation to find substantial issue with the above-
referenced appeal. The appeal issues identified by Commissioners Escalante and Hart are of
considerable concern to myself and many members of the Cayucos community and should be
thoroughly discussed in a de novo hearing.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely yours,

Bruce Gibson

Supervisor, District Two
San Luis Obispo County

County of San LuSs Obispo Government Center
1055 Monterey Street | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-43381 (F) 805-781-1350

info@slocounty. ca.gov | slocounty. ca. gov



From: ANASTASIA KELLY
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 8:20:30 AM
Attachments: Screen Shot 2021-03-05 at 9.11.20 AM.png

To:  California Coastal Commission

From: Ann Kelly

Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos

I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the
Public Access Policies of the Coastal Act.   Please note:

There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks
enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on
fill, where erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently exist from the Highway, public
walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.  Cayucos is a
blue collar town.  In order fo rate hotel to be a successful business room rates would be well north of $500 a night.  Cayucos is
not that type of town to support guests expectations at that price point.  The California coast does not need another development
for the wealthy only. 

Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of this scope (77 down to 21?) was
granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take
coastal access away from the public.

The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the existing public view sheds and
existing public parking for private interests.  

Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented waivers and modifications on a
project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that
will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We risk losing these protections for the community
and public coastal access.

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the
proposed project.

Sincerely,

mailto:annkelly6@mac.com
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov
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From: Liana Moynier
To: Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig,

Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal
Subject: community opposition to the Cobb Hotel in Cayucos
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:58:25 PM

My name is Liana Moynier.  I’m a lifelong resident, as are my parents, of Cayucos and Cambria. I grew up in Cambria and
lived in Cayucos for 13 years - I now live right outside of town. I have my own business which operates out of Cayucos and
love the town very much. It’s home to me. 

I’m writing to state my vehement opposition to the Cobb Hotel project. I don’t believe the infrastructure of Cayucos can or
should try to support this project for several reasons, including:

1. Cayucos’ already maxed out population and traffic, which, especially since the pandemic hit,       has seen exponentially
more visitors in town during all times of year. Cayucos is crowded as it is and traffic patterns have drastically changed in
negative ways over a short period of time. It is very difficult to find parking downtown and in surrounding areas nowadays
because of how many cars/visitors are in town. I can’t imagine allocating public parking to The Cobb Hotel, nor do I see how
the amount of space required as parking for such a building will be found on that lot. 

2. This project is damaging to the character of Cayucos. The community who lives here pays a premium for housing
(increasingly hard to come by), utilities and more in exchange for being able to live in their hometown and/or enjoy small
town life. This enjoyment is already difficult to come by given the amount of tourists constantly in town staying at vacation
rentals, which are often disruptive for permanent residents. A massive project such as this one changes the tone and character
of Cayucos by inviting it to become more about hosting tourists and wealthy people than about nurturing and cultivating a
community who already lives here. The residents don’t want or need exclusive luxury tourist attractions. We need projects
that will enhance our community. 

3. Environmental impacts, namely the extreme drought we are currently experiencing, which has no end in sight. Where is the
water supposed to come from to support this project? How is this a responsible use of resources within our small community?
Further environmental impacts include increased foot traffic in surrounding sensitive natural areas, which are already seeing
so much more trash than I’ve ever witnessed. There’s also the fact that the bluff chosen for this project is eroding and will
ultimately erode. Nothing about this project is sustainable.

I know that projects like these bring in a lot of money for the county and that must be the reason why this is even being
entertained, but I implore you to listen to the voices of community members whose lives and homes you’d be negatively
affecting by its approval. I ask you to please ask yourselves whether this is what the land itself would want. Do we really need
a huge development, luxury hotel property in Cayucos? We’ve gone this far without it, and in all of my time living here I have
never once heard anyone say they wished something like that was located here. We have no interest in turning Cayucos into
SLO county’s second Pismo Beach. 

Thanks for your consideration,
Liana Moynier
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From: Craig, Susan@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: FW: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Wednesday 6a - Executive Director"s Report
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:58:51 PM

-----Original Message-----
From: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal <ExecutiveStaff@coastal.ca.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:54 PM
To: Craig, Susan@Coastal <Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: FW: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Wednesday 6a - Executive Director's Report

-----Original Message-----
From: S. B. <stuckey.sherry@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 5, 2021 6:04 PM
To: ExecutiveStaff@Coastal <ExecutiveStaff@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Wednesday 6a - Executive Director's Report

I like the idea of a resort in Cayucos to increase employment, the tax base, and just services in general.  The Coastal
Commission should take into consideration how stymied commercial property owners are in SLO county as a result
of severe development restrictions and regulations.  Some development is needed to support the increase in
permanent population, and to avoid the blighting of commercial sectors.

Sherry Stuckey
2898 Taft Place
Cambria, CA. 93428
805.216.3700
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From: Susan Honnell
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders,

Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal;
Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal;
mark.gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; Kahn,
Kevin@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: CC Reference# A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project - Cayucos CA
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 1:02:57 PM

"The Commission is committed to protecting and enhancing California's coast and ocean for
present and future generations. It does so through careful planning and regulation of
environmentally-sustainable development, rigorous use of science, strong public participation,
education, and effective intergovernmental coordination."

I am astounded that the Cobb project was in any way considered to have met this criteria -
taken from your own mission statement. A "three story, 20,000 sq ft hotel, spa, health center,
restaurant, bar, outdoor pool, blufftop pathway, and 'related development' (?)" project in the
small town of Cayucos, especially in the designated location, could not possibly be considered
protective or enhancing of our California coast. 

As it sits now, this beautiful piece of open property adjoining the creek provides a spectacular
view corridor. It overlooks an increasingly sensitive tidal pool zone that is already overrun with
too many visitors disturbing the natural sea life. It sits close to an existing parking area closer
to the pier, which is now unable to accommodate the cars coming to our town daily. 

The scope of this project is entirely inconsistent with the character of our beloved town.
Generations of families return here every year for beachwalks and gatherings,
swimming,surfing, boogie boarding, stand-up paddling - not to spend time indoors in a spa or
health center. Time is spent walking the pier or watching a sunset together - taking walks on
the beach - not on a "blufftop pathway." 

California is suffering through a drought that will most likely continue indefinitely. Water use is
monitered and considered a precious resource here. How much water would the Cobb project
be utilizing?

I have been spending time in our family home in Cayucos since the 1950's. I have been a
homeowner here since 1976, when I moved here full time to attend Cal Poly. I love this town
and have called it home ever since. With the exception of the diminishing sealife in our local
tidal pools, I have not seen many changes to this area in my lifetime. I have always been
appreciative of the care I felt the California Coastal Commission has taken in protecting our
California coastline. Approval of the Cobb project would go against everything you say you
stand for.

Thank you for your consideration in reading my concerns here.
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Warmest Regards,
Susan Honnell



 
    Many Thanks,
       Ann Kelly
(949) 233-4231

    Many Thanks,
       Ann Kelly
(949) 233-4231



From: Barbara Karush
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal;

Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice,
Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Donovan,
Forest@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal; Padilla,
Stephen@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal

Subject: Cobb Hotel Project Concerns
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:11:51 AM

To:  California Coastal Commission

From:  BARBARA KARUSH

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
walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

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

Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented waivers and modifications on a
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

Barbara Karush
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This is regard to the proposed Cobb Hotel. 

When will we learn that everything does not have to grow “big” to be beautiful in our world?   
Protecting our quaint and beautiful areas is a way of saving the gifts that nature has given us.  Filling 
them with expensive over sized hotels is going to ruin one of the last places on the California coast that 
shows what a small town really looks like.  A place that you can walk the whole town on one clean 
uncluttered street. An historical wharf you can walk out on and view the coastline.  Homes built on the 
hillside with limits to their heights to maintain views or all.  Get real, folks, get real!!! 

Beverly Carlson 



From: Carol Raimondo
To: Dayna.Bocho@coastal.ca.gov; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh,

Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal;
Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastalca.gov; Kahn,
Kevin@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal

Subject: Proposed Cobb Hotel Project
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 9:15:24 AM

Dear Coastal Commission Member,

I live in Cayucos and there are so many things wrong with this proposed project - Where to
begin?  

First of all, the land is primarily fill dirt so is not stable.  Secondly, it has eroded greatly over
the years and will continue to so
so without a massive sea wall.  The CC has refused to allow other applicants to build these
kinds of walls in recent years, and should
not allow it here either.  Thirdly, the projects blocks the ocean view.  Fourth, the parking
situation in that area of Cayucos, in all of downtown
Cayucos, is all ready terrible; proposed  inadequate parking for this project simply exacerbates
the problem that is already pretty severe.
The adjacant public parking will be appropriated by patrons of this boutique, "elitist"
establishment, further disadvantaging the public.

In the public interest, this project should be nixed.

Carol Raimondo
789 Park Avenue
Cayucos, California 93430
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To:  California Coastal Commission 
 
From:  Charles Terry Throop 
 
Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos 
 
I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several in-
consistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the 
Coastal Act.   Please note: 
 
• There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to 

this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other im-
pacts associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on 
fill, where erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types. 

 
• The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that cur-

rently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It 
is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos. 

 
• Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a pro-

ject of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the 
public parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take 
coastal access away from the public. 

 
• The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would 

take the existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests. 
 
• Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprec-

edented waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Ocean-
front parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will 
encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We risk los-
ing these protections for the community and public coastal access. 

 
Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their 
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP applica-
tion for the proposed project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Charles Terry Throop 
515 Picachio Road 
Cayucos, CA  93430 

 



From: CHERI ARCHER
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders,

Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal;
Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark
Gold, Alternate for Meagan Harmon -; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal;
Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos (APN 064-481-009) Appeal #A-3-slo-21-0039
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 9:30:04 AM

We strongly support the staff’s substantial issue determination (report:Th17b) and agree with all the
staff’s recommendations.
 
We love our small town of Cayucos and would never want to lose our small unique treasured feel. 
It’s one of the last small beach towns in California and we are proud of that!  When people come to
our town they love the quiet, relaxed, non-congested sensation they get when they visit us.  We love
the small shops and friendly local owned restaurants.  If we start deviating from the “Cayucos” feel
by building large, spa type hotels with restaurants we will definitely suffer a loss, not only for us but
for generations to come. 
 
In regards to the location It will be a constant battle to maintain the stability of this hotel because of
erosion on the coastline located by a creek and ocean.  This must be addressed. 
 
We come to Cayucos to see the ocean and coastline.  Not large hotels and parking lots. 
 
Please listen to the people of Cayucos and keep our beach town “Unique”.
 
Thank you.
 
Cheri and Greg Archer
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

Subject: Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos (APN 064-481-009)- Appeal #A-3-slo-21-0039
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 8:32:07 AM
Attachments: CCC letter General word doc (1).docx

th17b-8-2021-report.pdf

We strongly support the staff’s substantial issue determination (report:Th17b) and agree with all the
staff’s recommendations.
 
We love our small town of Cayucos and feel that a development of this type would ruin our towns
 

From: Kristy Yuhas <kcyuhas@outlook.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 5, 2021 4:50 PM
To: cherla@msn.com
Subject: FW: REMINDER - Friends of Cayucos Urgent: Coastal Commission Aug 6 deadline!
 
Open Mr. Cobb’s responses below in blue.  After his responses are local comments.  Interesting. 
I didn’t send to Mom, didn’t know if this would get her riled up!
 

From: friends-of-cayucos@googlegroups.com <friends-of-cayucos@googlegroups.com> On Behalf
Of Vicki Tamoush
 
 

Sent: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 5:25 PM
To: friends-of-cayucos@googlegroups.com
Subject: REMINDER - Friends of Cayucos Urgent: Coastal Commission Aug 6 deadline!
 
Dear Friends of Cayucos,
 
We have some good news to report: the staff of the California Coastal Commission (CCC) has issued
its Staff Report for the August 12 meeting and they recommend that the Commission determine that
a Substantial Issue exists on the Cobb hotel property.  You can read it
here: https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2021/8/Th17b/th17b-8-2021-report.pdf   
 
If you are interested to see Mr Cobb's responses to the Coastal Commission, you can see them here: 

  Th17b-8-2021-corresp.pdf

 
We are hoping that the Commission will follow the recommendations of its staff, and we want to
support this effort in every way we can.  The Staff Report says, "If the Commission finds that the
appeal does not raise a substantial issue, then the local government CDP decision stands, and is thus
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To:  California Coastal Commission



From:  ________________________________



Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos



I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal Act.   Please note:



There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.



The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.



Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access away from the public.



· The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.



Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We risk losing these protections for the community and public coastal access.





Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project.





Sincerely,









Cayucos CA  93430








STATE OF CALIFORNIA — NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY  GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR 


CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION  
CENTRAL COAST DISTRICT 
725 FRONT STREET, SUITE 300 
SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060 
PHONE: (831) 427-4863 
FAX: (831) 427-4877 
WEB: WWW.COASTAL.CA.GOV  


Th17b 
Appeal Filed: 6/16/2021 
Action Deadline: 8/25/2021 
Staff: Forest Donovan - SC 
Staff Report: 7/23/2021 
Hearing Date: 8/12/2021 


STAFF REPORT 


SUBSTANTIAL ISSUE DETERMINATION 


Appeal Number: A-3-SLO-21-0039 
Applicants: Jay and Lisa Cobb   
Appellants:  Commissioners Linda Escalante and Caryl Hart 
Local Government: San Luis Obispo County 
Local Decision: San Luis Obispo County coastal development permit number 


DRC2019-00297, approved by the San Luis Obispo County 
Planning Commission on April 22, 2021.  


Project Location:  On the blufftop and adjacent to Cayucos Creek seaward of 
North Ocean Avenue and fronting Cayucos State Beach in 
the unincorporated community of Cayucos in San Luis 
Obispo County (APN 064-481-009). 


Project Description: Construction of a three-story, 35-foot-tall, 20,114-square-
foot, 17-unit hotel, with a day-spa/health center, restaurant, 
bar, outdoor swimming pool, public blufftop pathway, and 
related development.  


Staff Recommendation: Substantial Issue Exists  


IMPORTANT HEARING PROCEDURE NOTE 


Please note that at the hearing for this item the Commission will not take testimony on 
staff’s substantial issue recommendation unless at least three Commissioners request 
it. Commissioners may ask questions of the Applicants, aggrieved persons (i.e., 
generally persons who participated in some way in the local permitting process), the 
Attorney General, the Executive Director, and their proxies/representatives prior to 
determining whether to take such testimony. If the Commission does decide to take 
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such testimony, then it is generally limited to three minutes total per side (although the 
Commission’s Chair has the discretion to modify these time limits). Only the Applicants, 
persons who opposed the application before the local government, the local 
government, and their proxies/representatives are allowed to testify during this 
substantial issue phase of the hearing. Other interested parties may submit comments 
in writing. If the Commission finds that the appeal raises a substantial issue, then the 
Commission takes jurisdiction over the underlying coastal development permit (CDP) 
application and will then review that application at a future Commission meeting, at 
which time all persons are invited to testify. If the Commission finds that the appeal 
does not raise a substantial issue, then the local government CDP decision stands, and 
is thus final and effective. 


SUMMARY OF STAFF RECOMMENDATION 


San Luis Obispo County approved a CDP for a new three-story, 35-foot tall, 20,114-
square-foot, 17-unit hotel on a vacant 1.1-acre blufftop and ocean fronting property in 
the unincorporated community of Cayucos in San Luis Obispo County. The project is 
seaward of North Ocean Avenue and it includes a day spa/health center, restaurant, 
bar, outdoor swimming pool, blufftop pathway, a 21-space parking area, and related 
development. The appeal contends that the County-approved project raises questions 
of consistency with the San Luis Obispo County Local Coastal Program (LCP) and the 
public access policies of the Coastal Act because the approved project: (1) has potential 
creek and bluff setback issues related to coastal hazards (such as exposure to wave 
action, sea level rise, subsequent bluff erosion, and the potential need for shoreline 
armoring); (2) does not adequately address public recreational access issues, including 
in terms of parking and lower-cost overnight accommodations; and (3) raises issues in 
regards to protecting public views and community character. 


In terms of coastal hazards, the County calculated the required bluff setback using a 
hybrid approach of identifying 28 feet as the 100-year setback based on historic erosion 
rates, and then added 10 feet to account for 50 years’ worth of sea level rise. However, 
doing so is inconsistent with LCP requirements to calculate 100 years for both, and the 
actual setback methodologies employed do not seem to adequately take into account 
the nature of the site’s substrate, which appears to be fill material, and the way in which 
the site and hazards will change over time, including in light of rising seas. Further, the 
project was set back the LCP minimum of 25 feet from adjacent Cayucos Creek, but it is 
unclear whether such setback is adequate given that there is no evidence to suggest 
the coastal hazards analysis evaluated the combined effects of coastal and fluvial 
flooding, including from creek scour, and how that too affects site stability. Additionally, 
although the LCP does not allow for shoreline armoring for new development (and here 
the County conditioned the project to prohibit such armoring), the approved project 
appears to include a deeply embedded retaining wall just seaward of the main hotel 
buildings, raising questions about whether this retaining wall is intended to and/or will 
actually serve as some type of armoring device. In sum, it is not clear that the project 
has been appropriately sited to avoid coastal hazards without armoring as required by 
the LCP, including whether the blufftop setbacks (both ocean and creek sides) are 
adequate to account for erosion and impacts associated with coastal hazards, including 
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sea level rise, over time. These concerns are further exacerbated because ensuring 
proper setbacks is particularly important with a large hotel structure that may not be 
easily relocatable should it become threatened by coastal hazards in the future. 


With respect to public access, while the County’s approval includes a blufftop 
pedestrian path, it is located within the identified creek and bluff setback area and it 
does not include requirements for maintenance or upkeep (e.g., rebuilding, relocating 
inland when the bluff erodes, etc.), including in light of the aforementioned coastal 
hazards risks, and it is not clear that the path would actually be usable by the public 
over the longer term as is required. The approval also does not include a public 
accessway down to the beach, instead relying on an agreement with the neighboring 
private property for hotel guests to use their existing staircase (which does not appear 
to be open to public use, and the potential agreement is limited to hotel guests, and not 
the public, in any case). Further, although the County indicates that the project would 
ordinarily require 77 parking spaces, the County’s approval requires only 21 parking 
spaces. However, it is both not clear that a hotel project like this is allowed any 
reduction of parking spaces under the LCP and, even if it were, this reduction is beyond 
what is allowed by the LCP for such reductions. Thus, it appears that hotel guests and 
employees will be forced into public parking spaces nearby, thus reducing and 
adversely affecting public beach parking opportunities.  


In terms of lower-cost accommodations, the County did not analyze or require the 
provision of lower-cost accommodations, nor mitigate for the lack of same, as required 
by the Coastal Act. And although the project materials do not identify proposed room 
rates, they do describe the hotel as being “boutique” and intended to fulfill an unmet 
need for quality hotel accommodations in Cayucos. This suggests that rooms here will 
be higher cost and without the requisite lower-cost components and/or mitigation.  


Finally, the LCP defines the site as being part of a special community that requires 
development to be sited and designed in a manner compatible with established 
architectural styles and natural features. However, the approved hotel is boxy in design, 
without any view corridors or breaks in building volume, and it would block nearly all 
existing public shoreline views from adjacent North Ocean Avenue, where these views 
are significant, including views across Cayucos State Beach and with Morro Rock in the 
distance. Further, any public views not blocked would be adversely impacted, including 
as the project would introduce a significant structure into a significant public viewshed 
with which it does not appear compatible. And the project would also introduce a large 
structure into the view of beachgoers at Cayucos State Beach, blocking inland views of 
coastal hills and otherwise increasing the massing of the built environment right at the 
edge of the beach and in the beach’s viewshed. Additionally, the hotel would be a rather 
monolithic three-story, 35-foot-tall structure fronted by a surface level parking lot that 
lacks compatibility with the community’s character, including with the natural and built 
environment. 


For these reasons, Staff recommends that the Commission find that the appeal raises 
substantial LCP conformance issues and that the Commission take jurisdiction over the 
CDP application for the proposed project. If the Commission does so, then the de novo 
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hearing on the merits of the CDP application would be scheduled for a future 
Commission meeting. The motion and resolution to effect this recommendation are 
found on page 6. 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


1. MOTION AND RESOLUTION ............................................................................. 6 


2. FINDINGS AND DECLARATIONS ..................................................................... 6 


A. Project Location and Description .......................................................................... 6 
B. San Luis Obispo County Approval ........................................................................ 6 
C. Appeal Procedures ............................................................................................... 6 
D. Summary of Appeal Contentions .......................................................................... 8 
E. Substantial Issue Determination ........................................................................... 8 


1. Substantial Issue Background ......................................................................... 8 
2. Coastal Hazards .............................................................................................. 9 


3. Public Access and Recreation ....................................................................... 10 
4. Visual Resources and Community Character................................................ 15 


5. The “Five Substantial Issue” Factors ............................................................. 17 
6. Information Needed for De Novo Review of Application ............................... 19 


3. APPENDICES ....................................................................................................... 20 


A. Substantive File Documents ............................................................................... 20 


B. Staff Contact with Agencies and Groups ............................................................ 20 
  
EXHIBITS 
Exhibit 1 – Location Map 
Exhibit 2 – County’s Final Local CDP Action Notice and Project Plans 
Exhibit 3 – Appeal of County’s CDP Decision 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
Correspondence 1 – Applicants’ Correspondence 
Correspondence 2 – Public Correspondence 
 
  



https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2021/8/Th17b/Th17b-8-2021-exhibits.pdf

https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2021/8/Th17b/Th17b-8-2021-corresp.pdf





A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel) 


Page 6 


1. MOTION AND RESOLUTION  
Staff recommends that the Commission determine that a substantial issue exists with 
respect to the grounds on which the appeal was filed. A finding of substantial issue 
would bring the CDP application for the proposed project under the jurisdiction of the 
Commission for de novo hearing and action. To implement this recommendation, staff 
recommends a NO vote on the following motion. Failure of this motion will result in a 
future de novo hearing on the CDP application, and adoption of the following resolution 
and findings. Passage of this motion will result in a finding of No Substantial Issue and 
the local action will become final and effective. The motion passes only by affirmative 
vote of a majority of the Commissioners present. 


Motion: I move that the Commission determine that Appeal Number A-3-SLO-
21-0039 raises no substantial issue with respect to the grounds on which the 
appeals have been filed under Section 30603 of the Coastal Act, and I 
recommend a no vote.  


Resolution to Find Substantial Issue: The Commission hereby finds that 
Appeal Number A-3-SLO-21-0039 presents a substantial issue with respect to 
the grounds on which the appeal has been filed under Section 30603 of the 
Coastal Act regarding consistency with the certified Local Coastal Program 
and/or the public access and recreation policies of the Coastal Act. 


2. FINDINGS AND DECLARATIONS 


A. Project Location and Description 
The County-approved project is located on a vacant 1.1-acre blufftop/oceanfront 
property adjacent to and immediately upcoast of Cayucos Creek on North Ocean 
Avenue in the unincorporated community of Cayucos in San Luis Obispo County. The 
County-approved project includes the construction of a new three-story, 35-foot-tall, 
20,114-square-foot, 17-unit hotel (16 hotel units and one manager’s unit), including a 
day spa/health center, restaurant, bar, outdoor swimming pool, a blufftop pathway, 21-
space parking area, and related development. See Exhibit 1 for location maps and 
photos of the site; see pages 57-62 of Exhibit 2 for the County-approved project plans. 


B. San Luis Obispo County Approval  
On April 22, 2021 the San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission approved a CDP 
for the project. The County’s Final Local CDP Action Notice was received in the Coastal 
Commission’s Central Coast District Office on June 8, 2021 (see Exhibit 2). The 
Coastal Commission’s ten-working-day appeal period for this action began on June 9, 
2021 and concluded at 5 pm on June 22, 2021. One valid appeal was received during 
the appeal period (see Exhibit 3).  


C. Appeal Procedures 
Coastal Act Section 30603 provides for the appeal to the Coastal Commission of certain 
CDP decisions in jurisdictions with certified LCPs. The following categories of local CDP 
decisions are appealable: (a) approval of CDPs for development that is located (1) 
between the sea and the first public road paralleling the sea or within 300 feet of the 
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inland extent of any beach or of the mean high tide line of the sea where there is no 
beach, whichever is the greater distance, (2) on tidelands, submerged lands, public trust 
lands, within 100 feet of any wetland, estuary, or stream, or within 300 feet of the top of 
the seaward face of any coastal bluff, and (3) in a sensitive coastal resource area; or (b) 
for counties, approval of CDPs for development that is not designated as the principal 
permitted use under the LCP. In addition, any local action (approval or denial) on a CDP 
for a major public works project (including a publicly financed recreational facility and/or 
a special district development) or an energy facility is appealable to the Commission. 
This County CDP decision is appealable to the Commission because the project site is 
located between the first public road and the sea, within 300 feet of the inland extent of 
the beach and the seaward face of the coastal bluff, and within 100 feet of a stream, 
and because hotels are not the principally permitted use in the “Recreation” designation 
that applies to the site.  


For appeals of a CDP approval, grounds for appeal are limited to allegations that the 
approved development does not conform to the LCP and/or to Coastal Act public 
access provisions. For appeals of a CDP denial, where allowed (i.e., such appeals are 
only allowed in extremely limited circumstances – see description of appealable actions, 
above), the grounds for appeal are limited to allegations that the development conforms 
to the LCP and to Coastal Act public access provisions. 


The Commission’s consideration of appeals is a two-step process. The first step is 
determining whether the appeal raises a substantial issue that the Commission, in the 
exercise of its discretion, finds to be significant enough to warrant the Commission 
taking jurisdiction over the CDP application. This step is often referred to as the 
“substantial issue” phase of an appeal. The Commission is required to begin its hearing 
on an appeal, addressing at least the substantial issue question, within 49 working days 
of the filing of the appeal unless the applicant has waived that requirement, in which 
case there is no deadline. 


The Coastal Act and the Commission’s implementing regulations are structured such 
that there is a presumption of a substantial issue when the Commission acts on this 
question, and the Commission generally considers a number of factors in making that 
determination. At this stage, the Commission may only consider issues brought up by 
the appeal. At the substantial issue hearing, staff will make a recommendation for the 
Commission to find either substantial issue or no substantial issue. If staff makes the 
former recommendation, the Commission will not take testimony at the hearing on the 
substantial issue recommendation unless at least three Commissioners request it, and, 
if no such testimony is requested, a substantial issue is automatically found. In both 
cases, when the Commission does take testimony, it is generally (and at the discretion 
of the Commission Chair) limited to three minutes total per side, and only the Applicant, 
persons who opposed the application before the local government, the local 
government, and their proxies/representatives are allowed to testify, while others may 
submit comments in writing. 


If, following testimony (if any) and a public hearing, the Commission determines that the 
appeal does not raise a substantial issue, then the first step is the only step, and the 
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local government’s CDP decision stands. However, if the Commission finds a 
substantial issue, the Commission takes jurisdiction over the underlying CDP 
application for the proposed project, and the appeal heads to the second phase of the 
hearing on the appeal.  


In the second phase of the appeal, the Commission must determine whether the 
proposed development is consistent with the applicable LCP (and in certain 
circumstances (including that apply in this case), the Coastal Act’s public access and 
recreation provisions). This step is often referred to as the “de novo” review phase of an 
appeal, and it entails reviewing the proposed project in total. There is no legal deadline 
for the Commission to act on the de novo phase of an appeal. Staff will make a CDP 
decision recommendation to the Commission, and the Commission will conduct a public 
hearing to decide whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the subject 
CDP. Any person may testify during the de novo phase of an appeal hearing (if 
applicable). 


D. Summary of Appeal Contentions 
The appeal contends that the County-approved project raises questions of LCP and 
Coastal Act public access consistency because the approved development: (1) does not 
appear to have accurately calculated or accounted for LCP-required blufftop and creek 
setbacks, and the project includes a retaining wall that appears may act as shoreline 
armoring when that is not allowed by the LCP; (2) does not adequately address public 
recreational access issues, including in terms of parking and lower-cost overnight 
accommodations; and (3) introduces a significant structure into a prominent public 
viewshed in a way that blocks public views and otherwise adversely impacts views not 
blocked and the character of the surrounding area. For all of these reasons, the appeal 
suggests that the Commission needs to further evaluate these issues to ensure LCP 
and Coastal Act conformance.   


E. Substantial Issue Determination  


1. Substantial Issue Background  
The term substantial issue is not defined in the Coastal Act. Rather, the Coastal Act 
requires that the Commission shall hear an appeal unless no substantial issue exists 
with respect to the grounds on which the appeal was filed under Section 30603 
(Section 30625(b)(2)). And the Commission’s regulations simply indicate that the 
Commission will hear an appeal unless it “finds that the appeal raises no substantial 
issue” (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, (CCR) Section 13115(b)). CCR 
Section 13115(c) also provides that the Commission may consider the following five 
factors when determining if a local action raises a significant issue: 1) the degree of 
factual and legal support for the local government’s decision that the development is 
consistent or inconsistent with the certified LCP; 2) the extent and scope of the 
development as approved or denied by the local government; 3) the significance of the 
coastal resources affected by the decision; 4) the precedential value of the local 
government's decision for future interpretations of its LCP; and 5) whether the appeal 
raises only local issues, or those of regional or statewide significance. The 
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Commission may, but need not, assign a particular weight to a factor, and may make 
a substantial issue determination for other reasons as well.  


In this case, for the reasons discussed further below, the Commission determines that 
the appeal regarding the County’s approval of a CDP for the project presents 
substantial LCP conformance issues.  


2. Coastal Hazards  
The LCP’s coastal hazards provisions require development to be set back from coastal 
bluffs a sufficient distance to be safe from coastal hazards/bluff erosion, including as 
may be exacerbated by sea level rise, for a minimum of 100 years without shoreline 
armoring. The LCP states: 


Estero Area Plan, Ch. 7, Section I.4: The bluff setback is to be determined by 
the engineering geology analysis required in I.1.a. above adequate to withstand 
bluff erosion and wave action for a period of 100 years. In no case shall bluff 
setbacks be less than 25 feet…. 


Estero Area Plan, Chapter 7, Section I.5. Shoreline and bluff protection 
structures shall not be permitted to protect new development. All permits for 
development on blufftop or shoreline lots that do not have a legally established 
shoreline protection structure shall be conditioned to require that prior to 
issuance of any grading or construction permits, the property owner record a 
deed restriction against the property that ensures that no shoreline protection 
structure shall be proposed or constructed to protect the development, and which 
expressly waives any future right to construct such devices that may exist 
pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 30235 and the San Luis Obispo 
County certified LCP.    


The LCP also requires a minimum 25-foot setback from Cayucos Creek within the 
Cayucos urban area, stating: 


Estero Area Plan Table 7-2: Coastal Stream Setbacks. 


Coastal Stream Setback (feet) 


Cayucos Creek 25 
 
Here, the County applied a 38-foot blufftop setback along the ocean frontage; 28 feet to 
accommodate projected erosion and an additional 10 feet to account for potential 
increased erosion due to sea level rise and increased wave action. There are multiple 
issues with this assessment. First, the County estimated 100 years of erosion based on 
an evaluation of historic erosion rates which do not account for changes in same 
moving forward due to sea level rise and other changes over time. Second, to address 
sea level rise, the County added 10 feet to the setback based on a suggestion that this 
accounts for 50 years of sea level rise, but it is not clear how or why that would be the 
case, and instead appears to be a “round number” used as some sort of proxy. 
However, not only is that not an appropriate manner of estimating potential setback 
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needs associated with sea level rise over time, but the LCP requirement is for an 
assessment of 100 years of impacts, not 50 years. In addition, the assessment did not 
adequately account for the effect of combined riverine/coastal impacts (and only applied 
the LCP-minimum 25-foot setback along adjacent Cayucos Creek), nor did it appear to 
adequately account for the fact that the site appears to be made up of fill and not native 
materials. The Commission’s Geologist, Dr. Joseph Street, has reviewed the County’s 
project materials on this point, and indicates that understanding the combined 
coastal/fluvial scour effects is particularly important in this case because those materials 
indicate that the site appears to be made up of terrace deposits, alluvium, or even fill, 
any of which would erode easily and quickly if subjected to more regular wave attack 
and higher sea levels. Dr. Street also notes that the setback does not appear to have 
accounted for factors of safety associated with slope stability over time, which is a fairly 
standard estimate for blufftop situations like this, and these factors would only increase 
the setback needed to meet LCP requirements.  


In short, the required historical analysis and future estimates do not appear to have 
adequately taken into account critical factors, including the effects of increased coastal 
hazards and sea level rise over time on slope stability and erosion, and it does not 
appear that the project has been sited as required by the LCP. In fact, although the LCP 
does not allow for shoreline armoring for new development, and although the County 
conditioned the project to prohibit shoreline armoring, the approved project design 
includes a deeply embedded retaining wall just seaward of the main hotel buildings that 
potentially could function as some type of armoring device. 


For all the above reasons, the County’s CDP approval raises a substantial LCP 
conformance issue with regard to coastal hazards. 


3. Public Access and Recreation 
The Coastal Act’s public access and recreation policies and the LCP require that public 
recreational access opportunities be maximized, including with the LCP requiring lateral 
and vertical access for projects located between the sea and first inland public road, 
such as this. The Coastal Act and LCP also require that lower-cost visitor and 
recreational facilities be protected, encouraged, and where feasible, provided. The 
Coastal Act states: 
 


Section 30210. In carrying out the requirement of Section 4 of Article X of the 
California Constitution, maximum access, which shall be conspicuously posted, 
and recreational opportunities shall be provided for all the people consistent with 
public safety needs and the need to protect public rights, rights of private 
property owners, and natural resource areas from overuse.  


Section 30211. Development shall not interfere with the public's right of access 
to the sea where acquired through use or legislative authorization, including, but 
not limited to, the use of dry sand and rocky coastal beaches to the first line of 
terrestrial vegetation. 


Section 30212. (a) Public access from the nearest public roadway to the 
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shoreline and along the coast shall be provided in new development projects 
except where: …(2) adequate access exists nearby… 


Section 30213. Lower cost visitor and recreational facilities shall be protected, 
encouraged, and, where feasible, provided. Developments providing public 
recreational opportunities are preferred. … 


Section 30214(a). The public access policies of this article shall be implemented 
in a manner that takes into account the need to regulate the time, place, and 
manner of public access depending on the facts and circumstances in each 
case… 


Section 30221. Oceanfront land suitable for recreational use shall be protected 
for recreational use and development unless present and foreseeable future 
demand for public or commercial recreational activities that could be 
accommodated on the property is already adequately provided for in the area. 


Section 30223. Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses 
shall be reserved for such uses, where feasible. 


Similarly, the County’s LCP reiterates and amplifies Coastal Act direction, including 
through requiring that coastal public access and recreational opportunities be 
maximized for everyone, that existing accessways be protected, and that recreational 
facilities be protected, encouraged, and where feasible provided, particularly ones that 
are lower cost. These policies include (in relevant part): 


Access Policy 1. Development shall not interfere with the public’s right of 
access to the sea where acquired through historic use of legislative authorization. 


Access Policy 2. Maximum public access from the nearest public roadway to 
the shoreline and along the coast shall be provided in new development… 


Recreation Policy 1. Coastal recreational and visitor-serving facilities, especially 
lower-cost facilities, shall be protected, encouraged and where feasible provided 
by both public and private means. 


Estero Area Plan, Cayucos Urban Area Standards, Recreation: The following 
standards apply only to lands within the Recreation land use category. 


A. The following standards apply to the approximately 1.8-acre property 
located on the south side of North Ocean Avenue, west of and adjacent to 
Cayucos Creek… 
 


2. Site Design Criteria—Public Access. Site design shall incorporate 
public access to and along the bluff top for a scenic vista. In 
addition, lateral beach access from the toe of the bluff to the mean 
high tide line, consistent with public safety and sensitive habitat 
concers, shall be provided.  
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Implementation Plan (IP) Section 23.04.420. Coastal Access Required. 
Development within the Coastal Zone between the first public road and the 
tidelands shall protect and/or provide coastal access as required by this section. 
The intent of these standards is to assure public rights of access to the coast are 
protected as guaranteed by the California Constitution. Coastal access standards 
are also established by this section to satisfy the intent of the California Coastal 
Act… 


d. Type of Access Required: 


(1) Vertical Access: 


(i): Within urban and village areas: Within an urban or village 
area where no dedicated or public access exists within one-
quarter mile of the site, or if the site has more than one-quarter 
mile of coastal frontage, an accessway shall be provided for 
each quarter mile of frontage. 


For parking, the LCP states: 


IP Section 23.08.012(b). Exceptions to special use standards. The standards of 
this chapter may be waived or modified through Development Plan approval, 
except where otherwise provided by this chapter and except for standards 
relating to residential density or limitations on the duration of a use (unless 
specific provisions of this chapter allow their modification). Waiver or modification 
of standards shall be granted through Development Plan approval (Section 
23.02.034) only where the Planning Commission first makes findings that: 


(1) Set forth the necessity for modification or waiver of standards by identifying 
the specific conditions of the site and/or vicinity which make standard 
unnecessary or ineffective.  


(2) Identify the specific standards of this chapter being waived or modified. 


(3) The project, including the proposed modifications to the standards of this 
chapter, will satisfy all mandatory findings required for Development Plan 
approval by Section 23.02.034c(4) of this title. 


In no case, however, shall any standard of this chapter be reduced beyond the 
minimum standards of the other chapters of this title, except through Variance 
(Section 23.01.045). 


IP Section 23.04.162(d). Shared on-site parking adjustment: Where two or more 
nonresidential uses are on a single site, the number of parking spaces may be 
reduced through adjustment (Section 23.01.044) at a rate of five percent for each 
separate nonresidential use, up to a maximum of 20%; as long as the total of 
spaces is not less than required for the use requiring the largest number of 
spaces. 
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IP Section 23.08.262(c). The density of a hotel or motel is not limited by this title 
except that a site for such use shall be designed to accommodate all proposed 
units while also satisfying all applicable height, setback, parking and other 
standards of this title and the Land Use Element without the need for 
modification, adjustment or variance of such standards. 


IP Section 23.08.262(d). Hotels and motels shall provide off-street parking as 
set forth in Section 23.04.166c(9) (Transient Lodgings). In the event that a hotel 
or motel includes any facilities in addition to overnight units (e.g., restaurant, bar, 
meeting rooms, etc.), all additional facilities shall be provided off-street parking 
as required by Section 23.04.166c of this title, in addition to the parking required 
for the hotel or motel. 


Thus, both the Coastal Act and the LCP include both general protections and 
requirements applicable to public access, as well as some that are quite specific. For 
example, with respect to lateral and vertical access, the Estero Area Plan (part of the 
LCP’s Land Use Plan) includes a policy specific to this very site requiring the provision 
of a lateral blufftop pathway as well as beach access from the toe of the bluff to the 
mean high tide line. Here, however, while the County’s approval does include a lateral 
blufftop pedestrian path that would apparently be available to the public,1 it is located in 
the identified creek and bluff setback area. The County’s approval does not include 
requirements for maintenance or upkeep of this path (e.g., rebuilding, relocating inland 
when the bluff erodes, etc.), which is particularly concerning in light of the 
aforementioned coastal hazards and erosion risks. Thus, it is not clear that the path 
would be available for longer-term public use as is required by the LCP. In addition, the 
County required an easement of 25 feet of sandy beach space for public use but it is 
unclear whether that meets the LCP’s requirement to ensure that the entire beach from 
the toe of the bluff to the mean high tide line is available for public use.  


In addition, the approval also does not include a vertical public beach accessway. On 
this, several points are made. First, although the County is correct that the site is closer 
than one-quarter mile from the next nearest existing vertical public beach accessway,2 
the site is located on the upcoast side of the North Ocean Avenue Bridge over Cayucos 
Creek, and there are no developed vertical beach accessways on this entire northern 
side of the town (roughly three-quarters of a mile) to where the road meets Highway 1. 
The Coastal Act and LCP’s general provisions for requiring maximized public access 
opportunities (see, for example, the cited Coastal Act sections and LCP policies above) 
would suggest that a project of this scale, and a project that already must include lateral 
public access, could provide the vertical public access that is needed for this side of 


 
1 It is not clear that it would be available to the public because there are no conditions that require such, 
or that require signing and information or other management measures applicable to public use.  
2 This vertical access, which consists of beach access stairs in the public parking lot adjacent to Cayucos 
Pier, is located about 700 feet (not 600 feet as identified by the County) in walking distance from the 
project site. 
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town north of the bridge.3 In addition, although it appears that the site may have been 
used for such access in the past, there is nothing in the County record analyzing 
whether any prescriptive rights of access might be associated with the subject site, and 
how those would be protected if present. Finally, the County appears to have relied on 
an agreement that the Applicants apparently have with the neighboring private property 
for hotel guests to use the neighboring existing staircase (which does not appear to be 
open to public use) to help find the project approvable as it relates to vertical public 
access. However, it is not clear whether any such right exists, and it is not codified in 
the County’s approval in a way that would suggest that the public, as distinguished from 
hotel guests, could make use of the stairway for public vertical access.  


In terms of lower-cost accommodations, both the Coastal Act and the LCP require that 
lower-cost visitor and recreational facilities be protected, encouraged and, where 
feasible, provided (see Coastal Act Section 30213 and LCP Recreation Policy 1). As 
has been applied generally to overnight accommodations projects, such as hotels, 
these policies require lower-cost overnight accommodations to be provided where 
feasible. Here, however, the County did not analyze or require the provision of lower-
cost accommodations nor mitigate for the lack of same. The County’s analysis only 
found that the project’s free public use of the identified blufftop pathway would fulfill the 
Coastal Act and LCP’s lower-cost facilities requirements. But this does not account for 
the need to also evaluate and provide, where feasible, lower-cost facilities, including 
lower-cost overnight accommodations when considering an overnight facility, such as a 
hotel. And although, the project materials do not identify proposed room rates, they do 
describe the hotel as being “boutique” and fulfilling an unmet need for quality hotel 
accommodations in Cayucos, suggesting that rooms here will be higher cost and 
therefore without the requisite lower-cost components and/or mitigations.  


Lastly, the County found the project would ordinarily require 77 parking spaces based 
on LCP parking requirements to accommodate hotel guests and workers, as well as for 
users of other hotel facilities such as the restaurant and spa. But the County’s approval 
requires only 21 spaces with no spaces designated for public beach parking spaces.4 
The County cited to IP Section 23.08.012(b), which allows for deviations from certain 
LCP parking standards if particular findings are met. However, it would appear that such 
deviation is not allowable for this project. In fact, IP Section 23.08.262(c) (which 
specifies special standards for hotels and motels in the Recreation land use 
designation) states that parking shall be provided on site “without the need for 


 
3 And gaining vertical beach public access from this site and the northern part of town requires a trek 
along the roadway, and sometimes on the roadway pavement itself, and across a fairly narrow concrete 
access apron across a bridge, to arrive at the public parking lot south of the bridge and the associated 
public beach stairway.  
4 While the LCP doesn’t require a specific amount of public beach parking for shoreline development, 
there are a few things to note. First, including public beach parking is a fairly typical requirement imposed 
on new shoreline development, particularly hotels, to both maximize public coastal access as required by 
the Coastal Act and the LCP (again, see cited provisions above) but also to mitigate for the 
development’s parking and traffic impacts on existing public access. And second, in this case, given that 
the hotel appears to be impermissibly underparked, it is likely that there will be traffic and parking 
impacts, including on existing on-street spaces used by the public for beach access.  
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modification, adjustment or variance of such standards.” As such, a hotel project like 
this is not allowed by the LCP to reduce parking requirements, as was done in this case. 
Further, even if it were to be allowed, IP Section 23.04.162(d) only allows a parking 
reduction up to 20% of the otherwise required total, which in this case would be a 
reduction of 15 spaces, resulting in a total of 62 required parking spaces. Thus, the 
reduction is beyond what the LCP allows even when a reduction is allowable under the 
LCP, and it is not here. And in any case, it is not clear that any parking reduction would 
be appropriate in this case, particularly such a large reduction, because that would likely 
mean that the project’s parking needs would be addressed via public parking options 
nearby, reducing and adversely affecting public beach parking opportunities. 


For all the above reasons, the County’s CDP approval raises a substantial LCP and 
Coastal Act conformance issue with regard to public access and recreation.  


4. Visual Resources and Community Character 
The LCP requires the protection of scenic coastal areas and views to and along the 
shoreline and requires development to be sited and designed in a manner that respects 
the character of the surrounding area. Specifically, the LCP states: 


Visual and Scenic Resources Policy 2. Permitted development shall be sited 
so as to protect views to and along the ocean and scenic coastal areas. 
Wherever possible, site selection for new development is to emphasize locations 
not visible from major public view corridors. 


Furthermore, for developed and more urban areas, like this part of Cayucos, additional 
standards apply. The LCP defines Recreation-designated parcels along Ocean Avenue, 
such as the project site, as a “special community” for which Visural and Scenic 
Resources Policy 6 applies. The LCP states:  


Visual and Scenic Resources Policy 6. Within the urbanized areas defined as 
small-scale neighborhoods or special communities, new development shall be 
designed and sited to complement and be visually compatible with existing 
characteristics of the community which may include concerns for the scale of 
new structures, compatibility with unique or distinguished architectural historical 
style, or natural features that add to the overall attractiveness of the community.  


IP Section 23.11.030: Definitions. Special Communities. Areas and 
communities with unique, visually pleasing characteristics which serve as visitor 
destination points and include:…d. Cayucos—Commercial and Recreation 
categories along Ocean Avenue. 


And finally, the LUP requires development on coastal bluff tops to be sited and 
designed to be compatible with the natural landform as much as feasible, as well as to 
minimize visual intrusion on adjacent sandy beaches: 


Visual and Scenic Resources Policy 11. Development on Coastal Bluffs. 
Permitted development shall be sited and designed to be compatible with the natural 
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features of the landform as much as feasible. New development on bluff tops shall 
be designed and sited to minimize visual intrusion on adjacent sandy beaches.   


The public’s views that cross or otherwise are associated with the project site provide 
striking views from inland locations of both the adjacent central village of Cayucos, the 
Cayucos Pier, as well as of downcoast hills and shoreline stretching down to Morro 
Rock and Montaña de Oro. The site is also prominent in the views from Cayucos State 
Beach, which currently take in the hillsides behind this site and a range of built and 
natural environmental features. The approved development is boxy in design without 
any view corridors or breaks in building volume, and essentially would block nearly all 
such existing and significant public shoreline views from adjacent North Ocean Avenue 
and Cayucos State Beach. The LCP explicitly requires that this development be sited 
“to protect views to and along the ocean and scenic coastal areas” (Visual and Scenic 
Resources Policy 2), and that view here is not being protected, but rather is being 
replaced by views of the hotel, which is not consistent with that LCP requirement. 
Furthermore, the LCP requires that new development such as this not be visible from 
major public view corridors wherever possible (Visual and Scenic Resources Policy 2). 
The hotel would be very visible in these major public view corridors, and there is no 
evidence in the County’s action that alternatives were considered to verify that it was 
not possible to avoid this outcome. On the contrary, the hotel appears to have been 
sited to maximize its prominence in this protected view corridor, which appears 
inconsistent with that LCP requirement.  


Further, any public views not blocked would themselves be adversely impacted, as the 
project would introduce a three-story structure into this significant public viewshed with 
which it does not appear compatible. In addition, beachgoers’ views at Cayucos State 
Beach that would not be blocked would be adversely affected by introducing increased 
massing of the built environment right at the edge of the beach, and in the beach’s 
viewshed, which raises questions of consistency with Visual and Scenic Resources 
Policy 11’s requirement for development to not domineer over or visually intrude upon 
sandy beaches. In fact, the hotel would be three stories and 35 feet tall with limited 
articulation, which is not akin to the generally modest one- and two-story residential 
scale of the town. Rather, the approved design appears as a rather bland and 
monolithic large structure fronted by a surface parking lot along North Ocean Avenue 
that does not blend in with its natural surroundings or the existing characteristics of the 
community, including the community’s architectural aesthetic and natural features that 
add to the community’s attractiveness, as required by the LCP (Visual and Scenic 
Resources Policy 6). In fact, as opposed to complementing and being visually 
compatible with the community’s character as the LCP requires here (again, see Visual 
and Scenic Resources Policy 6), the project appears to do just the opposite, particularly 
in terms of its scale and its relation to the adjacent natural environmental features that 
are defining for Cayucos.5 All of these factors contribute to the project’s lack of 
compatibility with its surroundings. 


 
5 On this point some might suggest that the design is not dissimilar from the existing residential structure 
located adjacent to the site, and thus this similarity on its own ensures community compatibility. However, 
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For all the above reasons, the County’s approval raises a substantial LCP conformance  
issue with regard to visual resource and community character provisions. 


5. The “Five Substantial Issue” Factors 
When considering a project on appeal, the Commission must first determine whether 
the project raises a substantial issue of LCP (and Coastal Act, as applicable here) 
conformity, such that the Commission should assert jurisdiction over the CDP 
application for such development. At this stage, the Commission has the discretion to 
find that the project does or does not raise a substantial issue of LCP and Coastal Act 
conformance. As mentioned previously, guiding the Commission’s substantial issue 
analysis is CCR Section 13115(c), which states that the Commission may consider the 
following five factors when making this determination: 1) the degree of factual and legal 
support for the local government’s decision that the development is consistent or 
inconsistent with the certified LCP; 2) the extent and scope of the development as 
approved or denied by the local government; 3) the significance of the coastal 
resources affected by the decision; 4) the precedential value of the local government's 
decision for future interpretations of its LCP; and 5) whether the appeal raises only local 
issues, or those of regional or statewide significance. The Commission may, but need 
not, assign a particular weight to a factor, and may make a substantial issue 
determination for other reasons as well.  


Under the first factor, and as detailed above, the County’s determinations do not have a 
high degree of factual and legal support. To identify a few key issues, the County’s 
setback determination lacks sufficient factual support because it is erroneously based 
on a hybrid model taking into account projected sea level rise over a 50-year period, 
rather than the LCP required 100-year period, with a 10-foot proxy being added to 
address sea level rise. This does not represent the sort of analysis that is required by 
the LCP, including as its lacks details and specificity over the required 100-year period 
as it relates to the effects of increasing hazards and sea levels in relation to erosion, 
slope stability, and other hazard contexts, including as the site appears to be easily 
erodible (i.e., potential fill material as opposed to native material). Further, the setback 
from the creek also raises questions of fact in terms of site safety as it is not based on 
an evaluation of the combined effects of coastal and fluvial flooding, including from 
creek scour, and rather appears to simply be a minimum setback that was applied 
without adequate supporting analysis. Further, the County’s decision to allow for the low 
amount of parking and to base its public vertical access conclusion on a potential 


 
to do so misses the entire point of evaluating compatibility. The adjacent structure is hardly indicative of 
the built environment in Cayucos, and is in fact one of the larger (if not largest) structures in town. To 
suggest that an anomaly like that be used as the arbiter of community character is mistaken, as an 
anomaly defines the opposite of the character overall. Rather it is the overall community’s character that 
matters in the LCP sense, and here it is the community’s low intensity, generally one- and two-story scale 
that is critical to that question, as are the ways in which the natural environment is part of that 
compatibility question. Here, this site is located adjacent to the most significant natural resources in the 
entire community, namely the beach, the Pacific Ocean, and Cayucos Creek. These are community 
defining features and must be accounted for as well, includng here where the approved project would 
loom over, as opposed to blend into, the important natural Cayucos Creek viewshed, and where there are 
very few sites in Cayucos that have the potential to affect same. 
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agreement with the neighboring landowner also lacks factual and legal support. Taken 
together, valid questions are raised regarding the County’s interpretations of core LCP 
provisions, including in terms of coastal hazards and lower-cost accommodations (e.g., 
finding that providing a public pathway satisfies the Coastal Act’s and LCP’s lower-cost 
accommodations requirements). Therefore, the first factor weighs heavily in favor of 
finding substantial issue. 


Turning to the second factor, the extent and scope of the approved development is 
significant. The County-approved project includes the construction of a new three-story, 
35-foot-tall, 20,114-square-foot 17-unit boutique hotel (16 hotel units and one 
manager’s unit), including a day spa/health center, restaurant, bar, outdoor swimming 
pool, a bluff top pathway, and related development. The project represents a large 
commercial project in any context, and particular within the generally limited scale of 
development in Cayucos, wherein community character is an important part of the LCP 
consistency analysis in this case. Accordingly, the second factor weighs in favor of 
finding substantial issue. 


The third factor relates to the significance of coastal resources that would be affected by 
the County’s decision. Here important and core LCP and Coastal Act protected coastal 
resources related to public access and recreation, public views, community character, 
and shoreline/beach loss are all affected by the County’s approval of the project. This 
factor weighs in favor of finding substantial issue. 


Under the fourth factor, the precedential value of the County’s interpretation of its LCP 
using this CDP action is high. This includes the County’s unsupported interpretation of 
the LCP’s coastal hazard, public recreational access (including parking and lower-cost 
facilities), and public views/compatibility provisions that appear to have led to an LCP-
inconsistent project related to each.  


For similar reasons, the fifth factor also supports a finding of substantial issue. These 
sorts of determinations related to coastal hazards, public access and recreation, and 
public views/character compatibility are important not only here in Cayucos in this case, 
but are indicative of regional and statewide trends and issues that raise significant 
coastal resource concerns. To allow for the County’s LCP to be interpreted the way it 
has here would affect how similar provisions are interpreted statewide and elsewhere in 
the region. 


In this case, these five factors, considered together, support a conclusion that the 
County’s approval of a CDP for this project raises a substantial issue of Coastal Act and 
LCP conformance. Thus, and for the reasons stated herein, the Commission finds that 
Appeal Number A-3-SLO-21-0039 raises substantial Coastal Act and LCP conformance 
issues in terms of coastal hazards, public recreational access, and public 
views/character compatibility. Therefore, the Commission finds that a substantial issue 
exists with respect to the County-approved project’s conformance with the certified San 
Luis Obispo County LCP and the public access policies of the Coastal Act, and takes 
jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project 
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6. Information Needed for De Novo Review of Application  
As discussed above, the project lacks important supporting documentation, perhaps 
none more critical than a geologic and geotechnical evaluation, consistent with typical 
Commission-required methodologies and standards, that evaluates the nature of the 
site and its ability to accommodate development safe from coastal hazards and without 
armoring, including over time and against a 100-year evaluation timeframe. Thus, prior 
to bringing this matter back for Coastal Commission de novo review, the Applicants will 
need to provide such evaluation, working with Commission staff to ensure the 
evaluation meets the Commission’s needs.  


As to other supporting documentation, it is premature to specify the precise nature of 
such materials in depth in this case unless and until the geologic and geotechnical 
evaluation is complete and the site constraints are better understood, including as these 
constraints will drive what may be able to be found LCP and Coastal Act consistent at 
this location. That said, the Commission expects that the Applicants will work with 
Commission staff (once geologic and geotechnical criteria for development have been 
clearly established) to develop supplementary materials that would also be required for 
a Commission de novo review of a CDP application for a project here, including an 
assessment of the feasibility of providing lower-cost accommodations on site as part of 
the project; design revisions intended to satisfy the LCP’s scale and community 
character requirements; design revisions to provide through views and other features 
intended to provide compatibility of structures with the surrounding natural and built 
environment (including enhanced articulation, use of natural materials and colors, use of 
visual screening/softening elements (including landscaping), etc.); visual simulations of 
the project from key and representative public viewpoints; and other materials 
necessary at that point to support a CDP application in a de novo review, including, if 
necessary based on site constraints, an evaluation of alternatives intended to better 
avoid and reduce identified coastal resource impacts. Absent such key fleshed out 
information, the Commission will not be in a position to fully evaluate a proposed project 
against requisite LCP and Coastal Act requirements, and does not intend to schedule a 
de novo hearing on this CDP application until the County and/or the Applicants have 
developed and provided such information, including to bridge the analytic gaps that are 
currently present and associated with the proposed project.  
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3. APPENDICES 


A. Substantive File Documents6  
▪ Coastal Development Permit Appeal Number A-3-SLO-21-0039 


B. Staff Contact with Agencies and Groups 
▪ Applicants 
▪ San Luis Obispo County Planning and Building Department 


 
6 These documents are available for review in the Commission’s Central Coast District office. 







final and effective."  So this is our time to raise our voices, friends.
 
Here are some things you can do:
 
--Email the CCC with your concerns (sample list is below).  There are certain circumstances that
must be met for a member of the public to make verbal public comment at the August 12 meeting,
but everyone is permitted to submit written comments beforehand.  Please be clear about your
specific concerns about the property.  Some sample concerns are listed below.
The deadline to submit written communication to CCC is this Friday, August 6 at 5 PM.
--Tell your friends, family, and neighbors about this opportunity to support the CCC Staff Report
recommendation.  Encourage them to email their own comments to the CCC.
--Add names to our email list.  We need every possible voice for this effort.  One thing we've learned
so far is that numbers matter.
 
Some examples of concerns you may want to address:
 
- parking issues
- coastal hazards such as erosion
- history of the site and possible instability of soil
- no Environmental Impact Report
- inconsistent with the character of Cayucos
- rental rates of $1,200 to $1,500 per night is prohibitive for most people (CCC emphasizes
environmental justice and access for everyone)
- blocks/destroys views
- increased noise
- increased litter
- increased congestion
 
The Cobb hotel is item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda for August 12.  Please address
your emails to all of these:
 
Donne Brownsey, Commissioner - Donne.Brownsey@coastal.ca.gov
Dayna Bochco, Commissioner - Dayna.Bochco@coastal.ca.gov
Steve Padilla, Commissioner - Stephen.Padilla@coastal.ca.gov
Effie Turnbull-Sanders, Commissioner - Effie.Turnbull-Sanders@coastal.ca.gov
Sara Aminzadeh, Commissioner - Sara.Aminzadeh@coastal.ca.gov
Dr. Caryl Hart, Commissioner - Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov
Mike Wilson, Commissioner - mike.wilson@coastal.ca.gov
Catherine (Katie) Rice, Commissioner - Katie.Rice@coastal.ca.gov
Linda Escalante, Commissioner - Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov
Meagan Harmon, Commissioner - Meagan.Harmon@coastal.ca.gov
Roberto Uranga, Commissioner - Roberto.Uranga@coastal.ca.gov
Carole Groom, Commissioner - Carole.Groom@coastal.ca.gov
Mark Gold, Alternate for Meagan Harmon - Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov
Dan Carl, District Director - Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov

mailto:Donne.Brownsey@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Dayna.Bochco@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Stephen.Padilla@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Effie.Turnbull-Sanders@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Sara.Aminzadeh@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:mike.wilson@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Katie.Rice@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Meagan.Harmon@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Roberto.Uranga@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Carole.Groom@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov


Susan Craig, District Manager - Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov
Kevin Kahn, District Supervisor - Kevin.Kahn@coastal.ca.gov
Forest Donovan, Coastal Planner - Forest.Donovan@coastal.ca.gov
Central Coast District - CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov
 
Remember: the deadline to submit written communication/letters to CCC is this Friday, August 6
at 5 PM.
 
We can definitely do this!

Vicki Tamoush
(714) 362-7676
-- 
You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups "Friends of Cayucos"
group.
To unsubscribe from this group and stop receiving emails from it, send an email to friends-of-
cayucos+unsubscribe@googlegroups.com.
To view this discussion on the web visit https://groups.google.com/d/msgid/friends-of-
cayucos/CAJs242d9s3aqA6qaSqpqRS%3DdN-
zH6J3rW89BWh73nqsQ4hmm%2Bw%40mail.gmail.com.
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From: Dale Kaiser
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Re: CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 4:14:37 PM

Dear Forest Donovan,
 
From: Dale Kaiser, Cayucos Resident & Business owner for over 35 Years

Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
 
I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the
Coastal Act.   Please note:
 

•   There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted
to this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other
impacts associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located
on fill, where erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

 
•   The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that
currently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the
Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

 
•   Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a
project of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume
the public parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would
take coastal access away from the public.

 
•   The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it
would take the existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private
interests.

 
•   Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many
unprecedented waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity
(Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in
motion that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future
development. We risk losing these protections for the community and public coastal
access.

 
 
Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application
for the proposed project.
 
 
Sincerely,

-- 

mailto:dale@cayucos.com
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Dale Kaiser 
Owner Broker 
Dale Kaiser Real Estate
CAL BRE# 01297036
36 N. Ocean Ave., Cayucos, CA 93430
Cell 805.550.9900
Office 805.995.2900
Fax 805.995.2959

cayucos.com 

http://cayucos.com/


From: Dan Borradori
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: CCAC Vote
Date: Monday, August 2, 2021 11:44:35 AM

Forest,

I don’t know if this should be forwarded to Commissioners or not. Mr. Cobb keeps referring to the Cayucos Citizens
Advisory Council vote on his project as a 7-0. He includes this information in every media release he does. In
questioning some of the voting members they said they voted no, 2 members so far and another member wasn’t even
present for the vote. The member who was not present wrote a letter that is in the correspondence section of the
appeal and stated he was voting no, Gil Ingleheart. So, that would be a 4-2 with 1 not present. We went to review
the minutes and voting record of the meeting, mysteriously the minutes and voting records have disappeared.

Dan
Sent from my bike
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
Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan,
Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: Opposition To A-3-SLO-21-0039 Thursday 8/12/2021, 17B
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 4:20:20 PM

Commissioners and Commission Staff,
 
The elimination of this unique and spectacular coastal viewshed will be a loss to
everyone. To the people who live in Cayucos and to the people who visit Cayucos from
the State of California and from around the world. Not only the loss of the view down
the Estero Bay past Cayucos, Toro Point, Morro Rock, Morro Bay, Los Osos to the
Montaña de Oro headlands, but also the view up Cayucos Creek to the top of the Santa
Lucia Mountains would be affected. This canyon plays an important part in the weather
of Cayucos. As the canyon warms it pushes the fog out of Cayucos and creates sunny
warm days that Cayucos enjoys while the rest of the Estero Bay is blanketed in fog. With
the size, monolithic design and location of hotel on the property you will not be able to
enjoy this 180 degree view from North Ocean Ave or the beach without having to walk
around the hotel.
 
Mr. Cobb referred to the hotel as paradise and that reminded me of a song by Joni
Mitchell. “They paved paradise and put up a parking lot, with a pink hotel, a
boutique and a swinging hot spot.” “Don’t it always seem to go, that you don’t know
what you’re got, till it’s gone.” She wrote this song after arriving in Hawaii for the first
time around midnight, taking a taxi to the Pink Hotel and waking up in the morning to
look out at the beautiful green mountains in the distance. She looked down and saw the
parking lot and it broke her heart…this blight on paradise. 
 
There are many potential problems with this project that could affect it’s stability. The
lot the hotel is purposed to be built on was created with undocumented fill that was
deposited sometime around mid 1965 from slide materials from the 1964-66 Highway 1
bypass project. In a June 1, 1965 article from the Telegram Tribune it talks about heavy
rains in April 1965 causing 90,000 cubic yards of dirt and rock slide materials that had to
be removed and disposed of from the Highway 1 Project. I have photographs dated Oct.
1, 1964 and Nov. 23, 1964 that show the lot not being filled in 1964.
 
The Biological Resources Assessment refers to the project as a one story, 10 room ocean
view hotel, not three story and 17 rooms. The Geo-Solutions Coastal Bluff Evaluation
also refers to the project as one or two story, not three. The Geo-Solutions report also
states that, according to historical photographs the fill was placed on the site sometime
between 1953 to 1972 possibly during the grading of the mobile home park in 1958
because the top soils from both projects are similar. The Highway 1 bypass was built on
the backside of the mobile home park. Wouldn’t that material be similar also? In the
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same report they did a Bluff Retreat Rate Evaluation, 1953 to 2019. The problem with
this study was the bluff was not there in 1953, it was beach sand and the fill material
hadn’t been deposited. How can you baseline your study on a 1953 photograph when no
bluff was there and wouldn’t be there for another 12 years?
 
The undocumented fill material violates several County Codes including proper bonding,
size of fill materials, compaction and proper sloping. With undocumented fill, improper
installation of fill materials, the shear size of the hotel, amenities including a hot tub,
lazy river into a swimming pool and an improper bluff retreat rate study this project is a
disaster waiting to happen. 
 
Because of the size and amenities of this project it is required by County Code to have
77 parking places. The County Planning Commission reduce the required parking places
to 21. That’s a 72% reduction of required parking places. There are no parking places for
the public to enjoy the mandated public walking/jogging path. The project stated the 56
vehicles can park in the adjacent public parking lot. The lot is adjacent to their property
line, not the hotel. Also, the public lot has 59 parking places and is normally filled with
visitors enjoying Cayucos and the beach. If you have hotel patrons using the lot where
are visitors going to park? I live across the street from the project and I can see my front
yard becoming a 24 hr/day parking lot for the hotel.
 
There is no beach access for the public from the public walking path. The project says
you can use the stairs from the public parking lot. But, how can you go north when
Cayucos Creek is flowing out to the sea?
 
The County and the Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council claimed this project went
through the Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council in two meeting with a 7-0 unanimous
vote for the project. The problem with this statement is there are members who say they
voted no and one member was not there. The meeting minutes and voting records have
mysteriously disappeared. 
 
The best use for this lot would be what the National Recreation and Park Association
calls a pocket park. A pocket park is most often located in an urban area surrounded by
commercial buildings or houses on small lots with a few places for people to gather,
relax, or to enjoy the outdoors. That way all the people of California could enjoy this
unique and spectacular viewshed.
 
Thank you,
Dante Borradori
borradori@att.net
661-706-0605
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From: Dan Borradori
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal;

CentralCoast@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Donovan,
Forest@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal;
Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal;
Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal

Subject: Changing Stories A-3-SLO-21-0039
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 11:01:44 AM

Commissioners and Commission Staff,

Mr. Cobb will say anything to get you to believe him. He chances his story to fit every situation. In an article for the
Telegram Tribune on July 7, 2021 he stated :

Cobb said he “grew up going to Cayucos as a kid, and my wife and I starting taking our boys to the area 16 years
ago.” Then, “we wanted a place to stay that would accommodate four people, nice and clean with newer features, in
the heart of downtown next to the pier, lots of features and amenities like a resort, and preferably on the beach.”

His website for his high end hotel, Cobbo’s Beach House, in Avila Beach he states:

“My wife and I have been coming to Avila Beach since our college days and now we enjoy coming here as a family.
We welcome you to experience this wonderful town with many hidden secrets.  We will be available to you for any
pre-uplanning and help during your trip.  Our goal is for you to have the best California coast trip you've ever
experienced.”

So which one is it, he and his family have been going to Cayucos or is it Avila Beach?

In his letter to the California Coastal Commission he stated:

“I’m not some big time developer trying to muscle my way through anything. I’m simply a small business owner. I
felt the Cayucos lot was an opportunity for the community and travelers to have a higher end hotel option in
Cayucos as the community is dominated with lower end low cost motels.”

He keeps touting to the media how his project went through the Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council with a
unanimous 7-0 vote. There’s a big problem with this statement. In interviewing some of the voting members I have
found 2 members who voted no and 1 member was not at the meeting and didn’t vote. The minutes and voting
record for the meeting have mysteriously disappeared. The member that wasn’t present said he would have voted no
sent a letter to the Coastal Commission. His name is Gil Ingleheart. This guy has a story for every situation he gets
into and the stories keep changing.

Dante Borradori

Sent from my bike
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From: David Tolley
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; 

Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal
Subject: Cobb Hotel
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:42:36 AM

To:  California Coastal Commission

 

From:  __David Tolley______________________________ <!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->

 

Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos

 

I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the 
Coastal Act.   Please note:

 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->•   <!--[endif]-->There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks 
enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where erosion could happen at a 
quicker rate than on other land types.

 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->•   <!--[endif]-->The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently exist from the Highway, public 
walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->•   <!--[endif]-->Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of this scope (77 down to 21?) was 
granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access away from the public.

 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->•   <!--[endif]-->The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the existing public view sheds and 
existing public parking for private interests.

 

<!--[if !supportLists]-->•   <!--[endif]-->Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented waivers and modifications on a 
project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will encourage and support these waivers to 
our LCP on future development. We risk losing these protections for the community and public coastal access.

 

 

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP 
application for the proposed project.

 

 

Sincerely,

 

David Tolley

2485 Cottontail Creek Rd.

Cayucos, CA. 93430
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From: debbie highfil
To: Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal;

Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon,
Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl,
Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal

Subject: Re: CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Copy is sent to staff also
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 11:36:34 AM

﻿
﻿Dear coastal commission, I would also like to add my voice of concern for this project that has
such a massive, monolithic appearance in our little town, next to our iconic feature, the
Cayucos Pier. 
 
I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the
Coastal Act.   Please note:
 

•   There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to
this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts
associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where
erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

 
•   The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that
currently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier.
It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

 
•   Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project
of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public
parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access
away from the public.

 
•   The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take
the existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.

 
•   Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many
unprecedented waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity
(Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion
that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We risk
losing these protections for the community and public coastal access. 

 
Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application
for the proposed project.
 
 
Sincerely,
Debbie Highfill
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From: S B Fredrik Stenshamn
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart,

Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon,
Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig,
Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders,
Effie@Coastal

Cc: Heather Stenshamn
Subject: item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda August 12, 2021 (Cobb Hotel, Cayucos)
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 9:04:48 PM

Dear Coastal Commission,

Although we will not be able to attend the meeting on August 12, we would like to add our opinion on item Th17b.

We are residents in Cayucos and adamantly oppose this project for reasons eloquently stated in the Appeal No. A-3-
SLO-21-0039, including but not exclusive to:
- parking issues
- coastal hazards such as erosion
- history of the site and possible instability of soil
- rental rates of $1,200 to $1,500 per night are prohibitive for many, and CCC emphasizes environmental justice and
access for everyone
- lack of Environmental Impact Report

But also for what it would do to our town:
- inconsistent with the character of Cayucos
- blocks/destroys views
- increased noise
- increased litter
- increased congestion
- increased water usage

Overall, this project is out of scale, an eyesore, blocks viewshed and public access.
Please deny this project.

Yours sincerely,

Fredrik & Heather Stenshamn
56 9th St.
Cayucos, CA 93430

408-368-7083
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From: Jan Lewis
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders,

Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal;
Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov;
Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal

Subject: Cobb Hotel Cayucos
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 6:13:41 PM

To: California Coastal Commission
From: Jan Lewis
Re: CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal
Act. Please note:
There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this
project. Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated
with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise? The project is located on fill, where erosion could
happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.
The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that
currently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier.
It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.
Inadequate Parking: A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of
this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking
lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access away from
the public.
• The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the
existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.
Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision: Very importantly, granting so many
unprecedented waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront
parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will encourage
and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We risk losing these protections
for the community and public coastal access.
The town's character is changing all the time as wealthy second home owners tear down old
homes and build elaborate vacation homes.  The transient population that stays in all our
neighborhood residential motels has caused our school enrollment to decline because there is
little affordable housing available.  If any large developments occur in this town it should
focus entirely on affordable housing, not a water park for wealthy tourists.

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP
application for the proposed project.

Sincerely, 
Jan Lewis
PO Box 587
84 13th St. 
Cayucos, CA 93430 

,
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From: Jan Meslin
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: no to boutique hotel
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 8:58:19 PM

Dear Coastal Planner Donovan:

I'm Jan Meslin, 29 Bakersfield Ave in Cayucos.
I would like to add my voice to those who are opposed to item Th17B on the Coastal
Commission agenda for August 12. 

My husband and I retired to Cayucos because of the beauty, history, and quiet character of
Cayucos. 
A boutique hotel here would be inconsistent with that character.
There are coastal hazards such as erosion and possible instability of the soil.
Parking issues and congestion would be exasperated.
And more.

Please do what you can to stop this project.

Thank you.         -Jan Meslin, 8583954675

mailto:meslinjan@gmail.com
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov


From: Maryanne Nucci
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Sara.Armindadeh@coastal.ca.gov
Cc: DaynaBocho@coastal.ca.gov; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; 

Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Uranga, 
Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; 
Kevin.Kahn@coastal.ca.go; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: Cobb Hotel Proposal
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 1:47:11 PM

Attn: Calif Coastal Commission
We strongly encourage you to revisit the process of a development of this size, at this location. This 
project requires serious review and public input, not the result of an under attended meeting and that 
resulted in no notes.  Seriously?
Thank you for your consideration
Jerry and Maryanne Nucci

mailto:slonucci@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=ef7077d6ac7c4a27a61571e988d4f3b3-Brownsey, D
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=927bc14935f64937a1ba593661a9ec92-Turnbull-Sa
mailto:Sara.Armindadeh@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:DaynaBocho@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=caeb2afb3a7e445f97bb9de84f87d551-Padilla, St
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4d9fc50fb83d4d5c8629f6c3d60f9a8c-Hart, Caryl
mailto:Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=acc56a38506648fabc8326b32bd82e6d-Harmon, Mea
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=1f6cbdfba84046fb8c24fe4a4442fca8-Rice, Cathe
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=61a947a662a74e808c5e36a4eb764383-Wilson, Mik
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=cc775b88bd764a4d8e691a529a5a6cda-Escalante,
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f8d468642956463cbb15d27f576c48b9-Uranga, Rob
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=f8d468642956463cbb15d27f576c48b9-Uranga, Rob
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=988c38016ef44f698cff1c0e8ddaf77c-Groom, Caro
mailto:Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:Kevin.Kahn@coastal.ca.go
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov


From: CentralCoast@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Thursday 17b - Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel,

Cayucos).
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 10:17:01 AM

From: John Curti <curti.john@charter.net>
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 9:26 AM
To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Thursday 17b - Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039
(Cobb Hotel, Cayucos).
 
I am a native of Cayucos and writing in opposition to the proposed hotel.  I previously sent an email
to you with my objections before seeing the appeal by Dr. Hart and Linda Escalante.  Upon reading
the appeal prepared by staff and the commissioners in my opinion anyone of the six concerns should
be sufficient to cause a reexamination of this project and taking all six issues into consideration
should be enough to deny this project as now proposed.
 

1. The property is largely fill and I can attest to that growing up in Cayucos as I saw dump trucks
carrying all kinds of material to the site including concrete blocks and chunks and all other of
manmade debris. Think about it, a prime piece of property overlooking the Pacific Ocean for
nearly 60 years and nothing has been built on it.  Seems like people realize this is probably no
the best piece of ground to build on.

2. The number of parking spaces is woefully inadequate of the size of the development as
proposed.  I attended the March 2020 Cayucos Citizens Advisory Council meeting where the
project was voted and raised objections regarding the fill issue and parking.  At no point was
there any mention of the project requiring 77 spaces.  Nevertheless, the Council voted to
approve and send to the county, however it was not a unanimous vote as portrayed in
newspaper reports.  The Vet’s hall parking lot across the creek really cannot really be a
substitute lot as that lot is almost always full would also require people to walk on a narrow
bridge walk way to get to the hotel.

3. As detailed in the appeal, the project is just too large in terms of height and overall size for
the property, will not fit with the character of the town and will block  views of the ocean for
visitors and residents of the RV facility across the street.

4. If the project has to be moved further back it to meet erosion and sea level requirements  it
will have to be scaled back in size and/or parking reduced.

 
 
To sum it up, this project as proposed is too large in scale for the property in question, the property
is largely fill and will require extensive geotechnical analysis (maybe ground penetrating radar to
determine what the quality of the fill is?). As proposed, the project will tremendously aggravate an
already serious parking problem in town, which thanks to the pandemic and the town being
discovered now would appear to be a permanent problem.

mailto:CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov


 
If this property is going to be developed, in my opinion it should not be for a hotel with all of these
amenities’, rather perhaps a small condo development that would take up less physical space on the
property which would permit sufficient onsite parking complemented an additional few off-street
spaces.
 
Thank you for taking time to read my comments.
 
Sincerely,
 
John Curti
 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


From: Jonathan Wittwer
To: CentralCoast@Coastal
Subject: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Thursday 17b - Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel,

Cayucos).
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 5:54:51 PM

Honorable Commission - I write to support the Staff Recommendation that the Commission
find that Substantial Issue exists.  My wife and I were married on the beach in Cayucos in
January 1973 and have returned for three-week renewals almost every January since.  As we
arrive from the north and enter via North Ocean Avenue, time and time again we experienced
the special feelings generated by reconnecting with the view of Cayucos State Beach and
Morro Rock in the distance as we approached the bridge over Cayucos Creek.  And just ahead,
downtown Cayucos, exemplifying what it means to be a small coastside community with
unique character.     
 
The proposed hotel as sited and designed (and including an outdoor pool, restaurant, and spa)
would be completely incompatible with the features which make Cayucos the special coastal
community that it is.  This is contrary to the Coastal Act and the SLO County LCP.  I greatly
appreciate the Coastal Commissioners who filed this Appeal so that this Substantial Issue can
be adequately considered.
 
Furthermore, the Staff Report’s points regarding the coastal hazards of the site (with its
substrate of what appears to be fill material) related to the determination of setbacks in light
of coastal buff erosion rates, sea level rise, and creek fluvial flooding, clearly raise a Substantial
Issue.  
 
Thank you for your consideration of this comment.  
 
Jonathan Wittwer
1927 Smith Grade
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
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From: Judy Ellis
To: Donna.Brownsey@coastal.ca.gov
Cc: Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart,

Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal;
Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan,
Forest@Coastal

Subject: August 12 agenda Item TH17b - Cobb Hotel in Cayucos, CA
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 11:43:06 PM

Dear Coastal Commissioners,

The proposed Cobb Hotel to be located in Cayucos, CA is of great concern to me
and most of the residents of this classic small coastal beach town. Among our
issues with this project are the following:

1.  PARKING:  I understand that a waiver reduced the lawful number of parking
places required to a much lower one and the owner plans on using the Veterans'
Hall parking lot for his customers and employees.  This parking lot is normally full
seven days a week with Cayucos visitors, local beach goers and people who fish
from the pier.  In addition, within the next year, this parking lot will be used for
building supplies while the Veterans' Hall is remodeled, which will make parking for
local people even more difficult.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT;  Again, a lawful report was waived and no
environmental impact report was made.  Given this site is next to a creek and above
the beach, I feel this type of report is imperative to the health and well being of the
area.

RENTAL FEES:  I  understand that the cost of one night's stay at the Cobb Hotel
would run between $1,200 and $1,500.  This is extremely higher than visitors to
Cayucos now pay at the many established motels that have traditionally provided
comfortable and clean rooms.

CHARACTER OF CAYUCOS: I live in a small community-oriented town that
welcomes people who are looking for a quiet, restful place to spend time walking
the beach, exploring the area or just relaxing.  We local people support each other
during good times and bad times.  We welcome visitors; many of whom keep
returning because of the friendliness of the locals and the natural beauty.  I feel the
building of the Cobb Hotel will disrupt the tranquility with noise, litter and parking
congestion.

I urge you to carefully review the Cobb Hotel Project appeal and consider rejecting
your previous approval.  Thank you in advance for your time and effort in this
request.

If you have never had the opportunity to visit Cayucos, please give yourself a gift
and contact one of our moderate priced motels and spend a weekend here.  

Judy Ellis
Cayucos Resident 
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Judygems@yahoo.com



From: Kalani Jackson
Subject: Cobb Hotel Proposed Project - Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 10:43:39 AM

 
From:  KALANI JACKSON
Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov
 
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
 

•   There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to
this project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts
associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where
erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

 
•   The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that
currently exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier.
It is also inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

 
•   Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project
of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public
parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access
away from the public.

 
•   The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take
the existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.

 
•   Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many
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
 
 
Sincerely
 
KALANI JACKSON
 
Cayucos, CA 93430
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To:  California Coastal Commission 
 
Donne.Brownsey@coastal.ca.gov; 
Dayna.Bochco@coastal.ca.gov; 
Stephen.Padilla@coastal.ca.gov; 
Effie.Turnbull-Sanders@coastal.ca.gov; 
Sara.Aminzadeh@coastal.ca.gov; 
Caryl.Hart@coastal.ca.gov; 
mike.wilson@coastal.ca.gov; 
Katie.Rice@coastal.ca.gov; 
Linda.Escalante@coastal.ca.gov; 
Meagan.Harmon@coastal.ca.gov; 
Roberto.Uranga@coastal.ca.gov; 
Carole.Groom@coastal.ca.gov; 
Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; 
Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov; 
Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov; 
Kevin.Kahn@coastal.ca.gov; 
Forest.Donovan@coastal.ca.gov; 
CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov 
 
 
Subject:  Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos (APN 064-481-009) -  Appeal # A-3-slo-21-0039  
 
 
We strongly support the staff’s substantial issue determination (report: Th17b) and agree with all the 
staff’s recommendation summary points:  
 
San Luis Obispo County approved a CDP for a new three-story, 35-foot tall, 20,114- square-foot, 17-unit 
hotel on a vacant 1.1-acre blufftop and ocean fronting property in the unincorporated community of 
Cayucos in San Luis Obispo County. The project is seaward of North Ocean Avenue, and it includes a day 
spa/health center, restaurant, bar, outdoor swimming pool, blufftop pathway, a 21-space parking area, 
and related development.  
 
The appeal contends that the County-approved project raises questions of consistency with the San Luis 
Obispo County Local Coastal Program (LCP) and the public access policies of the Coastal Act because the 
approved project: (1) has potential creek and bluff setback issues related to coastal hazards (such as 
exposure to wave action, sea level rise, subsequent bluff erosion, and the potential need for shoreline 
armoring); (2) does not adequately address public recreational access issues, including in terms of 
parking and lower-cost overnight accommodations; and (3) raises issues in regards to protecting public 
views and community character 
 
There is also a dangerous precedent setting nature with this decision.  By granting waivers and 
modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the 
ocean), this will set a precedent in motion that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on 
future developments. We risk losing these precious protections for the community and public coastal 
access. 
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Lastly, this type of development runs counter to and will degrade the longstanding unique character, 
charm, and allure of Cayucos and the surrounding community. 
 
Commissioners, please support your staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that 
the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project. 
 
Sincerely, 
Kristy & Jeffrey Yuhas 
 



From: Lauren Wheeler
To: CentralCoast@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Carl,

Dan@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Harmon,
Meagan@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal;
Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal;
Brownsey, Donne@Coastal

Subject: A plea from a long time Cayucos resident
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 10:51:44 AM

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
Coastal Act. Please note:
There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to
this project. Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts
associated with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise? The project is located on fill, where
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
Inadequate Parking: A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project
of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public
parking lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal
access away from the public.
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
that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future development. We
risk losing these protections for the community and public coastal access.

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP
application for the proposed project.

Sincerely,
Lauren Wheeler
CAYUCOS CA 93430
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From: Lori Logan
Subject: CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 11:07:45 AM

To:  California Coastal Commission

Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos

As a full time resident of Cayucos for 36 years, I have concerns over the proposed Cobb Hotel project in
Cayucos.

I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsistencies with
the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal Act.   Please note:

There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this project.  Are
the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated with coastal hazards,
like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where erosion could happen at a quicker rate than on
other land types.

The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently exist from the
Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also inconsistent with the character
of downtown Cayucos.

Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of this scope (77
down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking lot north of the pier as part of
their parking requirement would take coastal access away from the public.

The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the existing
public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.

Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented waivers
and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the
ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will encourage and support these waivers to our LCP on future
development. We risk losing these protections for the community and public coastal access.

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that
the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project.

Sincerely,

Lori Logan
lorialogan@yahoo.com
(805)459-9704
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August 6, 2021 

 

 

 

Members of the Coastal Commission 

CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

COBB HOTEL PROJECT—Bad Idea 

Ocean Avenue, Cayucos, CA 

 

 

As a part time resident and frequent visitor to Cayucos, I am appalled at the possibility of a project proposed 

across the street from 350 N Ocean Avenue (Bella Vista by the Sea).  

 

As it was first presented, it would be a small one-story motel which was first approved by the Board.  Now, 

however, it has developed into a multiple story hotel with restaurants, day spa, and very little parking.   

 

As I understand it, the land is substantially land fill; and as experienced a couple of years ago, approximately 3 

feet of this property was lost due to erosion.  When visiting this property, you can see a fire pit that was 

originally several feet from the edge of the cliff.  It is now on the edge.  Is this property stable enough for any 

building? 

 

The lack of parking for this project is a major concern.  Seventy+ units, restaurant, spa, staff and 21 parking 

spots.  Where are customers going to park?  Lucerne is already designated parking for its residents, Bella 

Vista will not allow parking in or around its property, and the beach parking lot is for folks visiting the beach 

for the day and not staying in the hotel.  Is the hotel going to purchase more land to have as valet parking off 

site at an additional cost to the hotel customers?  We don’t want customers trying to illegally park and taking up 

the limited parking in town.   

 

Additional building on the coastline, I thought, was curtailed so that the remaining undeveloped coast can be 

preserved for future generations.  This project seems so contrary to California’s conservation efforts and 

contrary to the vision and charm that citizens of Cayucos hope to maintain for their community.   Has an 

Environmental Impact Study been completed?  Is it legal to build on the Coast? 

 

There are so many reasons this project is a bad idea.  The land is unstable.  The project is too large for the lot.  

There is not adequate parking.  Environmentally it is not in keeping with the charm that Cayucos has 

successfully maintained.   

 

I hope you seriously consider banning this project from continuing.   

 

 

 

 

Marion Hatland 

350 N Ocean Avenue, #33 

Cayucos, CA 93430 

mhatland@comcast.net 

510-364-2313 
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To:  California Coastal Commission 
 
From: Mark Sarrow 
 
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
ing these protections for the community and public coastal access 
 

• Roger Lyon, a giant among local conservationists, liked to say that Cayucos is one 
   of the last intact California beach towns that retains its individuality.  The others have         
been made over by suburban sprawl so that they are no longer recognizable.   
 
 
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
 
 
Mark Sarrow 

 

 



From: CentralCoast@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Thursday 17b - Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel,

Cayucos).
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 8:57:15 AM

From: Megan Tewell <megan.tewell@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 5, 2021 3:56 PM
To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Public Comment on August 2021 Agenda Item Thursday 17b - Appeal No. A-3-SLO-21-0039
(Cobb Hotel, Cayucos).
 
To Whom it May Concern, 

As a long time resident of Cayucos, California, I am writing in support of the appeal against
the Cobb Hotel proposal.

I support all of the arguments raised in the appeal and as a resident of Cayucos I am
particularly concerned with this project's lack of parking and degradation of coastal views and
access for the public. This seems to be a repeated issue with the County of San Luis Obispo
where coastal development projects get approved with no parking and no concern for the
impact to parking, traffic, water, and degradation of the character of Cayucos.

The lack of parking for the project (21 spaces, where 77 are required) that the county approved
is irresponsible. Parking is already at a premium in Cayucos (without the proposed resort).
Residents have to use cones or chains to block off their own driveways and protect blockage
of their mailboxes. On weekends or during holidays, cars have taken to parking on the
entrance and exit ramps and shoulders of highway 1 - which is both dangerous and illegal.
There is one public parking lot in Cayucos (~60-70 spots) that services public beach goers and
patrons and employees of Cayucos businesses. That lot is conveniently adjacent to the
proposed resort and I suppose the resort and the County assume the resort can just use the
public lot as overflow. But if the resort takes even half of those spots, the public and
neighboring businesses are left with just 30-35 spots. The impact to parking and traffic that
causes hurts the residents, the businesses, and the public beach goers.

On the other issue, the owner Jay Cobb says in his interview to the San Luis Obispo Tribune
that he wants to "create Paradise" on the "last piece of land in a popular beach town sitting
directly on top of the beach," by developing a project that "epitomizes entertainment and fun."
Cayucos is not a popular beach town in the way Pismo Beach is popular. It is not a party town.
Cayucos is popular because of its quiet, old school and vintage charm, and because its coastal
views are relatively undisturbed with much of the bluff areas preserved as public walking
trails. 

 My understanding is that one of the primary objectives of the Coastal Commission is to
"protect scenic and visual qualities of coastal areas ...as a resource of public importance." (Cal.
Coastal Act 30251), and that "permitted development shall be sited and designed to protect
views to and along the ocean and scenic coastal areas, to minimize the alteration of natural
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landforms, to be visually compatible with the character of surrounding areas, and, where
feasible, to restore and enhance visual quality in visually degraded areas..."  (id.) This
proposed 3 story resort will not only block the views of the ocean from the surrounding
properties (both residential and existing vacation rentals) and the public that hike and walk
the surrounding pathways, it blocks the coastal view of the rolling hills from the ocean and
beach.  The resort is shiny, new, luxury, a "paradise" playground for its owners - but it is not
visually compatible with the small town character for which Cayucos is adored. 

Thank you for your consideration of my comments. 

Best Regards, 

Megan Tewell



From: Morgan Leighton
To: Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal
Cc: Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn,

Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Comments on Appeal number A-3-SLO-21-0039
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 9:54:50 PM
Attachments: Comments on Appeal Hearing A-3-SLO-21-0039.docx

Re: Public Hearing of the Coastal Commission
Appeal number A-3-SLO-21-0039
Regarding local government permit number DRC2019-00297

Dear Commissioner Harmon and members of the Coastal Commission,

I am writing to express my concerns regarding the plans of Jay and Lisa Cobb to build a hotel,
restaurant, and bar on the bluff on North Ocean Avenue in Cayucos, CA. My biggest concern
is the modification of off-street parking standards requested by the applicants to build only 21
parking spaces instead of the required 77. I fear that building such a luxury resort but failing to
provide parking for guests at the hotel, restaurant and bar will overwhelm the available public
parking and make it even more difficult than it is already for locals and other visitors to access
the beautiful public beach and tidepools north of the Cayucos pier.

I am a California native, and my family has strong ties to Cayucos. My great-grandparents
built a home on 18th street and Cayucos has always been our family vacation and reunion
destination. My mother as well as several of my aunts, uncles and cousins have lived in and
around Cayucos for years. I grew up visiting Cayucos and have many fond memories of
exploring the tidepools, swimming at the beach by the pier, and enjoying 4th of July festivities
there. I look forward to bringing my own children there someday to share it with them!

I know that public parking both north and south of the pier to access the beach already fills up
quickly on pleasant days, especially in the summer when tourists visit. While I know that no
place can remain the same forever and do not begrudge those who wish to build
accommodations for new visitors to enjoy Cayucos, it seems obvious to me that the proposed
hotel, restaurant, and bar will attract far more than 21 guests at a time and will spill over into
much of the available public parking. I would hate to see Cayucos locals and familiar visitors
made to feel unwelcome in their own backyard by thoughtless planning and avoidable
congestion.

I urge you to consider the impact on the community that this project will have, and to impose
stricter requirements for off-street parking to ensure that the public retains access to the beach
and the Cayucos pier.

Sincerely,

Morgan Leighton, MD, MPH
Morganleighton89@gmail.com
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August 3, 2021



Attn: Commissioner Meagan Harmon & members of the Coastal Commission



Re: Public Hearing of the Coastal Commission

Appeal number A-3-SLO-21-0039
Regarding local government permit number DRC2019-00297



Dear Commissioner Harmon and members of the Coastal Commission,



I am writing to express my concerns regarding the plans of Jay and Lisa Cobb to build a hotel, restaurant, and bar on the bluff on North Ocean Avenue in Cayucos, CA. My biggest concern is the modification of off-street parking standards requested by the applicants to build only 21 parking spaces instead of the required 77. I fear that building such a luxury resort but failing to provide parking for guests at the hotel, restaurant and bar will overwhelm the available public parking and make it even more difficult than it is already for locals and other visitors to access the beautiful public beach and tidepools north of the Cayucos pier.



I am a California native, and my family has strong ties to Cayucos. My great-grandparents built a home on 18th street and Cayucos has always been our family vacation and reunion destination. My mother as well as several of my aunts, uncles and cousins have lived in and around Cayucos for years. I grew up visiting Cayucos and have many fond memories of exploring the tidepools, swimming at the beach by the pier, and enjoying 4th of July festivities there. I look forward to bringing my own children there someday to share it with them!



I know that public parking both north and south of the pier to access the beach already fills up quickly on pleasant days, especially in the summer when tourists visit. While I know that no place can remain the same forever and do not begrudge those who wish to build accommodations for new visitors to enjoy Cayucos, it seems obvious to me that the proposed hotel, restaurant, and bar will attract far more than 21 guests at a time and will spill over into much of the available public parking. I would hate to see Cayucos locals and familiar visitors made to feel unwelcome in their own backyard by thoughtless planning and avoidable congestion.



I urge you to consider the impact on the community that this project will have, and to impose stricter requirements for off-street parking to ensure that the public retains access to the beach and the Cayucos pier. Please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project.



Sincerely,



Morgan Leighton

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
 
 
 
 
 

 

CAYUCOS CA  93430 



From: Kathryn Madonna
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Cobb application
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 1:46:45 PM

August 1, 2021
I am writing in support of the Coastal Commission taking a closer look at all the
parameters involved in the possible approval of the Cobb application for a motel-
restaurant-bar-convenience store and more.
My husband was born in Cayucos and has lived his whole life here. His father was a
dairyman and rancher who used the Cayucos pier to ship his butter and cream to
markets. I joined him here in 1972 and we raised our family in Cayucos. There have
been many changes to the town since it began, some good, some not so good. But,
for the most part, Cayucos has stayed true to its small town roots while welcoming
seasonal visitors, summer hordes and friends who come to enjoy the peaceful
atmosphere.
PARKING!!! We have Northern California friends who have rented vacation houses
throughout the town since the 1970’s so we all appreciate that those rentals are
available to bring families here.  But parking!!  When these two couples, sometimes
three come to visit, they come in three cars for one rental. When the husbands come,
another three cars show up. And then when kids became teenagers, more cars came
along with them. We and other county friends come by often for day visits, dinner
parties and just hanging out—more cars.
Our friends rented along Pacific Street, Cayucos Drive and Lucerne as well as other
streets, and parking even back in the 1990’s was an issue. We tried to be careful to
stay out of locals parking areas but sometimes you park where you can.
The other issue raised is the Vets Hall parking—always full. When the Veterans Hall
gets funding to finally fix the major building problems, that parking lot will go away. 
To suggest that lot as an overflow parking area for a self-contained vacation getaway
is not for the people of Cayucos. That conceit is only for the owners of the getaway
and their paying guests.
My husband also remembers the area near the pier as always being full of water.  We
remember the high tides with winter storms that flooded Hardie Park—not that near
the beach but near a moving watercourse that feeds down into the ocean.
Please reconsider the 21 space parking designation and go back to the 77+ spaces
that will be needed when the motel is open.  We don’t even think 77 spaces is enough
considering how really small the parking areas are close to the beach.

Thanks

Paul and Kathy Madonna, Cayucos 

mailto:paulmadonna5@gmail.com
mailto:forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov


From: Pete Meslin
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Fwd: Th 17B on the 8/12 agenda
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 7:58:46 AM

Date: Tue, Aug 3, 2021 at 9:58 PM
Subject: Fwd: Th 17B on the 8/12 agenda

Dear Mr. Donovan,

I would like to add my voice to those who have / are appealing item Th17B on the Coastal
Commission agenda. A brief summary of my objections follows:

1. The variance is too substantial. That is, the property was initially supposed to be (zoned?)
for a 10 unit 2 story building. Instead the proposal is for a 17 unit, 3 story, plus additional
retail space.  This is not in keeping with what has been a small, quaint city. There are only two
3 story buildings in the entirety of Cayucos. On one of them the first floor is a parking garage.
On the second building the 3rd story provides a view of the ocean as the building is on the east
side of Ocean. I don't see any need for the 3rd floor and we don't want any more in Cayucos.

2. Traffic is already very difficult in the downtown area. To go to the bank this morning I had
to park my car in the residential area on D street past the post office. No parking was available
on N. Ocean or Ocean Front. This was a Tuesday morning when traffic is believed to be
minimal. Any further overflow traffic from the proposed development would have to be
absorbed in the Vet Hall which is already impacted during the summer.

3. It is unfair to subject the residents of Cayucos to "externalities" that we would have to bear
so that the owner can pursue additional profit. If the 10 units is not enough the owner can
pursue the purchase of additional property.

Sincerely,
Pete Meslin
29 Bakersfield Ave.
Cayucos, CA 93430
pete.meslin@gmail.com
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From: Randall Heyn-Lamb
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

Subject: Re item Th17b on 8/12 CCC agenda
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 11:03:22 PM

Dear Coastal Commissioners
I am writing as a frequent visitor to the Central Coast; as someone with long time friends living in Cayucos, and as
someone concerned about maintaining an increasingly delicate balance between protection and enjoyment of the
coastal lands and waters. 
As such, I am urging you to accept the  recommendation of your staff as contained in their report that a Substantial
Issue exists on the Cobb hotel property.
As I understand the situation, development of the property by the current raises practical concerns over insufficient
on-site parking. Using nearby public parking is not a tenable alternative since this is already heavily used by
visitors. 
The current plan also blocks one of the more iconic views of Cayucos as one looks south toward the Cayucos Pier
and Morro Rock. The development will also likely increase the growing problem of litter, noise and congestion in
Cayucos.
I was born and raised in Chicago. The best gift Burnham and the city planners did as the city rebuilt after the Great
Fire was to preserve the waterfront for the people to enjoy. I urge you to follow their lead in this example.
Perhaps more importantly, I understand that your staff havevrepoerws significant potential coastal hazards such
as soil instability and increased rates of erosion and run off into the neighboring stream. And though it is hard to
believe, I am told that no Environmental Impact Report has been susuited! Is this possible? Legal?
Finally, while this may be a factor beyond the Commission's ability to control, I find the hotel plan, with its rumored
room rates of over $1000 a night to be unaffordable and inconsistent with the character of Cayucos, which I have
come to appreciate for its family atmosphere. 
I hope we can count on you as Commissioners to uphold the findings of your staff.
Sincerely,
Randall Heyn-Lamb
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To: CCC Member 

Re: Proposed Cobb Hotel, Cayucos (Agenda Item Th17b) 

 

We retired in Cayucos nine years ago because of its small-town quaintness, 
friendly atmosphere, lack of “big box” stores and large commercial hotels. 

We are writing in opposition to the proposed Cobb Hotel Project in Cayucos for 
the following reasons: 

1) No longer will Cayucos have the character which attracted us to this 
seaside village to live out our retirement years 

2) Parking is already an issue and this hotel will negatively impact the 
parking, especially downtown 

3) We are not so sure that this piece of land is not considered Chumash 
Sacred Ground 

4) Lack of an EIR (which may answer the question re: Chumash Sacred 
Ground) 

5) This location would negatively impact the environment which the CCC is 
charged with preventing 

6) There are many motels in Cayucos from which to choose that fit the 
uniqueness of this village  

7) Finally, this hotel would block the views for many residents and would 
increase noise, litter and downtown congestion. 

 

Thank you in advance for hearing our concerns and, as a member of CCC, for 
continuing to act to benefit all citizens of California. 

 

Sincerely, 

Robert and Reba Perkins 

390 Saint Mary Ave. 

Cayucos, CA 93430 



From: CentralCoast@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Fw: A-3-SLO-21-0039 Cobb Hotel / DRC2019-00297
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:16:51 AM

From: Robert Timmerman <bktimmerman@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 11:13 AM
To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: A-3-SLO-21-0039 Cobb Hotel / DRC2019-00297
 
I am writing this e-mail to voice the concerns of the HOA for the Cayucos Beach Condo’s At 349 N.
Ocean Ave. Cayucos (immediately to the west of the proposed development).

Our concerns are as follows:
1. The proposed number of parking spaces is inadequate for the number of proposed units and staff.
2. The proposed parking will be located between the building and the street and will be visible along
Ocean Ave.
3. Street parking should not be allowed.
4.The proposed building height and its location to the bluff will block the views of the town and the
hills for a number of our condo’s
5.The proposed building design is not well thought out. The building is too tall and its solid mass
will act as a wall from the street preventing views of the ocean and pier.
6. The proposed building facade design is not appropriate for such a prominent  location.
7. Noise from the close proximity of the proposed building to the condo’s needs to be addressed. 
    Any noise causing building equipment must be located away from the condo side.
    Outdoor parties, events and other uses need to be limited to no later than 10:00pm and every effort
be made to reduce ambient noise.
8. Access for service vehicles must be located on the side opposite from the condo’s.

Thank you for your time and consideration,
Sincerely,
Robert Timmerman
President of the Homeowners Association 
Cayucos Beach Condo's
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From: Stephanie
To: Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson,

Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga,
Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal;
Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal

Subject: URGENT!!! The Cobb hotel is item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda August 12, 2021 - Deny this project
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 9:16:48 PM

>> Dear California Coastal Commission,

>> Regarding The Cobb hotel, item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda, I have lived in Cayucos for over 12
years and adamantly oppose this project for the following reasons:
>> - parking issues
>> - coastal hazards such as erosion
>> - history of the site and possible instability of    soil
>> - no Environmental Impact Report
>> - inconsistent with the character of Cayucos
>> - rental rates of $1,200 to $1,500 per night is prohibitive for most people (CCC emphasizes environmental justice
and access for everyone)
>> - blocks/destroys views
>> - increased noise
>> - increased litter
>> - increased congestion
>> - increased water usage
>> Overall, this project is way out of scale, an eyesore, blocks viewshed and public access.
>> We urge you - deny this project.

Respectfully,
Stephanie Allen
Cayucos home owner and full-time resident
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From: CentralCoast@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Public Hearing Notice for A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel)
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 12:13:35 PM
Attachments: Applicant Correspondence Highlighted Comments .pdf

From: Steve Rarig <banorarig@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 10:29 AM
To: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Public Hearing Notice for A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel)
 
Good morning staff. Thanks for this important notice. Previously I had written letters to San Luis
Obispo County Planning Commissioners (before their hearing) and to your Coastal Commission back
in July opposing this project for a number of reasons. Your staff report is well written and covers the
points that establish reason for the Commission to determine that a Substantial Issue has been
raised.
 
I have attached highlighted in yellow comments made by the applicant that are in the
Correspondence section of your staff report-comments which are either not true, or very misleading
to the public. The comment that the applicant makes at bottom of my attachment is highlighted for
your reference “Six of our rooms could be considered low cost accommodations based on how they
can accommodate six people of more in one room”. This comment from applicant is especially
disturbing related to parking which is my biggest concern as I live up the street from this property.
This project is way underparked period!
 
Staff, please pass this email on too all Commissioners for the upcoming hearing.
 
Thanks, Steve Rarig
 

From: CentralCoast@Coastal <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> 
Sent: Friday, July 30, 2021 2:37 PM
Subject: Public Hearing Notice for A-3-SLO-21-0039 (Cobb Hotel)
 
Please consider this Important Public Hearing Notice of the upcoming California
Coastal Commission Hearing. See attached notice for more details.
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From: Sue McDaniel
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

Cc: bgibson@co.slo.ca.us
Subject: Item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda for August 12
Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 11:18:43 AM

Reference:  Appeal Number A-3-SLO-21-0039

Dear California Coastal Commissioners,

I am writing as a concerned Cayucos resident to add my support to Appeal Number A-3-SLO-
21-0039, that there are substantial issues regarding the Cobb hotel proposal.

I wish to voice my opinion that there are many substantial issues regarding the proposed land
usage for the Cobb property in Cayucos, and that the Coastal Development Permit (CDP)
MUST be repealed.

San Luis Obispo County covers many varying land and community types, of which Cayucos is
a unique entity.  To allow a development as the one proposed by the Cobbs would set a
precedent of inappropriate building in a historic area known for its distinctive town flavor.
Cayucos is a quirky and special environment with beautiful views and strong community pride
that must be maintained by disallowing building projects that do not support these qualities. 
As the saying goes, once it's gone, it's gone.

In addition to the aesthetic concerns, there are substantial issues concerning parking, coastal
erosion, the lack of an Environmental Impact Study, increased congestion, and others.

Parking in Cayucos is already hard to come by and to think that a 17 unit hotel with all it's
employees and visitors will only require 21 parking spaces is ludicrous.  What of the ADA
requirements that will eliminate a portion of those 21 spaces, what of the delivery vehicles,
what of the additional congestion in an already congested area.  This is not acceptable.

The area proposed for this development is a sandy runoff area.  Need I say more?  There will
be a serious concern about runoff, ocean rise, and the resulting erosion.  We must protect the
land and our coastal waters.  It is vital that at the very least, an Environmental Impact Study be
completed prior to approval of this project.

 
I sincerely hope that the Commission will determine that the appeal raises a substantial issue,
and will take jurisdiction over the underlying coastal development permit (CDP) application.  I
hope that the Commission will allow for a review of the application at a future Commission
meeting, and invite all persons to testify. There are many substantial issues in this proposal
that have not been addressed and Cayucos deserves a formal say in its future.

Thank you,
Sue McDaniel
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225 Hacienda Dr
Cayucos, CA 93430



From: Susan Gerdsen
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders,

Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal;
Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal;
Carole.Groome@coastal.ca.gov; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn,
Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: CC reference #A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 4:57:24 PM

I support Staff's Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal
Act.  Please note:

There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this
project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated
with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?  The project is located on fill, where erosion could
happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently
exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier.  It is also
inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

Inadequate Parking: A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of
this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted.  Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking
lot north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access away from
the public.

-  The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take
the           existing public view sheds and existing public parking for private interests.

Precedent Setting Nature of this Decision:  Very importantly, granting so many unprecedented
waivers and modifications on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel
bordered by a creek and the ocean), will set a precedent in motion that will encourage and
support these waivers to our LCP on future development.  We risk losing these protections for
the community and public coastal access.

Commissioners, please support your Staff's finding of Substantial Issue and their
recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the
proposed project.

Sincerely,

Susan Gerdsen (Cayucos homeowner for the past 40 years)
3250 Shearer Avenue
Cayucos, CA  93430

email: cayucossue@gmail.com
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From: Susan Lyon
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Proposal, Cayucos
Date: Thursday, August 5, 2021 2:30:02 PM
Attachments: page100image54516224.png

page1image54282688.png
DRC2019-00297 Final MND.PDF
Cobb Hotel photos.docx

 

Dear Commissioners and Staff,

I have sent a previous email but thought I would follow up one more time in hopes that you all will join the brave 2 CCC appellants and the town of Cayucos.

I support the CCC Appeal and the Subsequent finding of Substantial Issue based on the following concerns:

         Insufficient parking:  Vet’s Hall parking lot can not  handle any additional parking from new projects and day  visitorsInappropriate Scale 

         Lack of geological testing of the imported fill on the parcel

Bluff retreat based erosion on aerial photos taken 1953 when bluff was established after 1964

This project needs a full EIR to determine the geological stability of this parcel.

          Lack of input from town  (SLO Planning Commission based much of their decision on the inaccurate  reporting ot the CCAC vote.   Stated  multiple times in their report as unanimous is inaccuratte.

         Inconsistent project description in documents

Precedent setting for large scale projects of this type throughout Cayucos 

Viewshed / above picture

         Project does not support the community and the community does not support the project

 Cayucos should have had and still should have a town hall meeting.

 Please review the materials we have been able to collect in the last week.  

The Cobb project has been best described as a "moving target.” So many different descriptions from the size to  scale to required parking,  From the 1 story to the 3 story in developers own reports. 77 parking to 21 spaces

Sitting next door to this project is an anomaly, approving a 3 story building and complex will be be precedent setting.

 I fully understand that this is considered building infill but the inconsistent scale and lack of sufficient parking makes this a burden to our community.  

All these years Cayucos has worked to Not become Southern California.  I believe this will start the unravel of our "last little beach town".

It is not hard to imagine the small motels or parcels with like zoning deciding to throw in the towel and conform to this new norm.

 

Attached file of photos of the parcel , videos of storm action on the bluff have been sent previously and the property description that has no consistency

 

Thank you for anything you can do and for your service to California,

Susan Lyon

1886 cottontail creek Rd

Cayucos, Ca 93430

805995-1787 

 

May 3, 2019 Biological Resources assessment 

 

https://ceqanet.opr.ca.gov/2021020154

KMA 0 North Ocean Avenue, Cayucos, CA Biological Resources Assessment

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Kevin Merk Associates, LLC (KMA) prepared this biological resources assessment for a proposed boutique hotel project to be developed at 0 North Ocean Avenue, Cayucos, San Luis Obispo County, California (Figures 1 and 2). The proposed project is located on a small portion of an approximately 1.82-acre property identified by Assessor’s Parcel Number 064-481-009. The site is located near the northern
end of the community of Cayucos, and is on the United States Geological Survey (USGS) Cayucos 7.5-minute topographic quadrangle (R10E, T28S). The property is located to the south of Ocean Avenue, and contains and a coastal bluff area composed of disturbed annual grassland on a terrace to the west of the Cayucos Creek mouth and beach interface. The mouth of Cayucos Creek and sandy beach area are
also included in the property, as well as a small section of rip rap associated with a parking lot near the Cayucos Pier.

This report was prepared at the request of Mr. Jay Cobb to support an application for a development permit from the County of San Luis Obispo (County). Since development is only proposed on the grassy terrace area,and would not extend onto the beach or within the creek corridor, a study area was developed to focus the analysis to areas of potential disturbance and immediate surrounding areas. This
report evaluates the potential for the project site to support special-status biological resources (plants, animals, sensitive natural communities, designated critical habitat and Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas [ESHA]) for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review to be conducted by the County for the project. This assessment evaluated the site’s existing natural conditions to determine
whether special-status biological resources may be present onsite and could be adversely affected by the proposed project. This investigation followed the County's (2016) Draft Guidelines for Biological Resources Assessments.

1.1 Project Description

The project proposes to construct a one-story, ten-room ocean view hotel (Appendix A) along North Ocean Avenue. It includes a parking lot with 26 spaces and other associated infrastructure. Between the hotel and the coastal bluff would
be a gazebo, building for amenities, hot tub and bocce ball field. All of these facilities would be located on the grassland terrace with a setback from the coastal bluff edge and no encroachment onto the beach or into Cayucos C 
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Scott M. Jalbert, Unit Chief

FIRE SAFETY PLAN

January 27, 2020

San Luis Obispo County
Department of Planning & Building
County Government Center
San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

Subject: DRC2019-00297 COBB (Amick)
Melina Smith,

CAL FIRE/San Luis Obispo County Fire Department has reviewed the New Project Referral
information and building plans provided for the proposed Conditional Use Permit, for
construction of a 3-story 15 room hotel offering active and passive outdoor recreational activities
available to the community and hotel guests. This project will be located at an open lot on
North Ocean Ave between Lucerne Street and Cayucos Creek, Cayucos, CA.

Special Concerns:

The effects of i and special event type programs within
areas such as this continue to place challenges upon CAL FIRE/County Fire's ability to provide
effective and efficient emergency services within rural areas.

The nearest CAL FIRE/County Fire station (#16-Estero Bay) is located at 201 Cayucos Drive,
Cayucos, CA. This station has an approximate .2-mile vehicular travel distance and a 2-minute
response time. At a minimum, 2 full-time firefighters are on duty at this station throughout the
entire year regardless of weather conditions.

This geographic location is within lands classified as Local Responsibility Area.




COASTAL BLUFF EVALUATION

soLuTIoONS

March 14,2019 | Dear Mr. and Mrs. Cobb:
SL11157-1
10 INTRODUCTION

Client:
Jay and Lisa Cobb | This report presents the results of a geologic evaluation of the coastal bluff for the
2264 Vermont Avenue | - proposed bed and breakfast to be located at Parcel 9 North Ocean Avenue, APN: 064-
Clovis, California | 481-009, Cayucos area, San Luis Obispo County, Califomia. See Figure 1: Area Location
93619 | Map for the general location of the project area, which was obtained from the computer
program Topo USA 8.0 (DeLorme, 2009). The purpose of this evaluation is to determine
Project name: | the geologic coastal bluff hazard for the property and determine the rate of biuif erosion
Parcel 9, North Ocean or retreat for a 100-year period. Included in this report are recommendations for reducing
Avenue | site erosion and bluff loss.

APN: 064-481-009
yucos Area | 14 Site Description

San Luis Obispo
County, California | parcel 9 North Ocean Avenue is

west longitude at a general
elevation of 18 feet above mean
sea level The property is
approximately square in shape and
located where North Ocean Avenue
intersects Luceme Street to the
west of the property. The project
property will hereatter be referred to
as the “Site See Figure 1: Area
Location Map for the general layout
of the project area.

The Site has a siight slope gradient
towards southeast. Surface
drainage follows the t

towards the southeast. Annual
grasses currently vegetate the Site.

12 Project Description
The size and layout of the proposed
development at the Site is currently

unknown. At the time of the
preparation of this report, the oo 4: Area Location Map

anticipated to be one or two stories in height and to be constructed using light wood
220 HignStreet | framing. It is anticipated that the proposed bed and breakfast wil utilize a slab-on-grade

San Luis Obispo CA 93401 | - ang/or raised wood lower floor system.

8055438539

1021 Tama Lane, Sute 105
Santa Maria, CA 83455
805.614.6333
21 S. Milpas Street, Suite 103
‘Santa Barbara, CA 83103
505.966.2200

info@geosolutions.net
sbinfo@geosolutions.net







 


   NEGATIVE DECLARATION & NOTICE OF DETERMINATION 


SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND BUILDING 


976 OSOS STREET ⬧ ROOM 200 ⬧ SAN LUIS OBISPO ⬧ CALIFORNIA 93408 ⬧ (805) 781-5600 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION NO. ED Number  ED20-220 DATE: February 4, 2021 


PROJECT/ENTITLEMENT:   Cobb Development Plan ED20-220 (DRC2019-00297) 


APPLICANT NAME:  Jay and Lisa Cobb Email: jay.cobb@hitechhome.net 


ADDRESS:  2565 Alluvial Avenue, Suite 122, Clovis, CA 93619 


CONTACT PERSON: Jay Cobb Telephone:  (805) 801-0453


PROPOSED USES/INTENT: A request by Jay and Lisa Cobb for a Development Plan/Coastal Development 


Permit to allow for the construction of a three-story, 17-unit hotel with onsite public amenities for passive and 


active recreational activities. San Luis Obispo County Code Section 23.04.166 states 21 parking spaces are 


required. The request includes a modification to Section 23.04.166 to modify the parking design standards. 


The project would result in disturbance of approximately 0.7 acres of a 1.1-acre property.  


LOCATION: The proposed project is within the Recreation land use category and is located on the south side 


of North Ocean Ave, west of and adjacent to Cayucos Creek, approximately 225 feet east of Lucerne Rd, in the 


community of Cayucos. The project site is in the Estero Planning Area. 


LEAD AGENCY:   County of San Luis Obispo 


   Dept of Planning & Building 
976 Osos Street, Rm. 200  


San Luis Obispo, CA  93408-2040  


Website: http://www.sloplanning.org 


STATE CLEARINGHOUSE REVIEW:   YES  NO  


OTHER POTENTIAL PERMITTING AGENCIES:             


ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  Additional information pertaining to this Environmental Determination may 


be obtained by contacting the above Lead Agency address or (805)781-5600. 


COUNTY “REQUEST FOR REVIEW” PERIOD ENDS AT  ............................... 4:30 p.m. (2 wks from above DATE) 


30-DAY PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD begins at the time of public notification  


Notice of Determination State Clearinghouse No.        


This is to advise that the San Luis Obispo County as   Lead Agency   Responsible Agency approved / denied the above 


described project by Planning Commission, and has made the following determinations regarding the above described 


project: 


The project will not have a significant effect on the environment. A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project 


pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. Mitigation measures and monitoring were made a condition of approval of the 


project. A Statement of Overriding Considerations was not adopted for this project. Findings were made pursuant to 


the provisions of CEQA. 


This is to certify that the Negative Declaration with comments and responses and record of project approval is available 


to the General Public at the ‘Lead Agency’ address above. 


 


 


 


                                                         Emi Sugiyama                                                                                  County of San Luis Obispo 


   
Signature  Name  Date  Public Agency 
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Project Title & No. Cobb Development Plan ED20-220 (DRC2019-00297)  


ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED: The proposed project could have a "Potentially 


Significant Impact" for environmental factors checked below. Please refer to the attached pages for 


discussion on mitigation measures or project revisions to either reduce these impacts to less than 


significant levels or require further study. 


 Aesthetics 


 Agriculture & Forestry 


Resources 


 Air Quality 


 Biological Resources 


 Cultural Resources 


 Energy 


 Geology & Soils 


 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 


 Hazards & Hazardous Materials 


 Hydrology & Water Quality 


 Land Use & Planning 


 Mineral Resources 


 Noise 


 Population & Housing 


 Public Services 


 Recreation 


 Transportation 


 Tribal Cultural Resources 


 Utilities & Service Systems 


 Wildfire 


 Mandatory Findings of 


Significance 


DETERMINATION: 


On the basis of this initial evaluation, the Environmental Coordinator finds that: 


 The proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE 


DECLARATION will be prepared. 


 Although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there will not be a 


significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or agreed to by the 


project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 


 The proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL 


IMPACT REPORT is required. 


 The proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially significant unless 


mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an 


earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation 


measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL 


IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 


 Although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, because all 


potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE 


DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant 


to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation measures that are 


imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 


 


 


Emi Sugiyama 
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Project Environmental Analysis 


 The County's environmental review process incorporates all of the requirements for completing the 


Initial Study as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA Guidelines.  The 


Initial Study includes staff's on-site inspection of the project site and surroundings and a detailed review of 


the information in the file for the project.  In addition, available background information is reviewed for 


each project.  Relevant information regarding soil types and characteristics, geologic information, significant 


vegetation and/or wildlife resources, water availability, wastewater disposal services, existing land uses and 


surrounding land use categories and other information relevant to the environmental review process are 


evaluated for each project.  Exhibit A includes the references used, as well as the agencies or groups that 


were contacted as a part of the Initial Study.  The County Planning Department uses the checklist to 


summarize the results of the research accomplished during the initial environmental review of the project. 


 Persons, agencies or organizations interested in obtaining more information regarding the 


environmental review process for a project should contact the County of San Luis Obispo Planning 


Department, 976 Osos Street, Rm. 200, San Luis Obispo, CA, 93408-2040 or call (805) 781-5600. 


A. Project 


DESCRIPTION:  


A request by Jay and Lisa Cobb for a Development Plan/Coastal Development Permit to allow for the 


construction of a three-story, 17-unit hotel with onsite public amenities for passive and active recreational 


activities. San Luis Obispo County Code Section 23.04.166 states 21 parking spaces are required. The request 


includes a modification to Section 23.04.166 to modify the parking design standards. The project would result 


in disturbance of approximately 0.7 acres of a 1.1-acre property. The proposed project is within the Recreation 


land use category and is located on the south side of North Ocean Ave, west of and adjacent to Cayucos Creek, 


approximately 225 feet east of Lucerne Rd, in the community of Cayucos. The project site is in the Estero 


Planning Area. 


ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER(S): 064-481-009 


Latitude:  35º 26' 58" N Longitude: 120º 54' 28" W SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT # 2 


B. Existing Setting 


Plan Area:  Estero Sub: None Comm: Cayucos 


Land Use Category: Recreation 


Combining Designation: Archaeologically Sensitive Area 


Coastal Zone Creek or Stream 


Wetland 


Flood Hazard Area 


GSA Geologic Hazard Area 


Parcel Size: 1.82 acres (Site Area: 0.74 acres) 


Topography: Mostly flat 


Vegetation: Non-native vegetation, annual grassland 


Existing Uses: Undeveloped 



mailto:planning@co.slo.ca.us
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Surrounding Land Use Categories and Uses: 


North: Residential Multi-Family; Creek / Mobile Homes East: Recreation; Parking lot / Cayucos Pier 


South: Recreation; Beach West: Residential Multi-Family; Residences 


C. Environmental Analysis 


The Initital Study Checklist provides detailed information about the environmental impacts of the proposed 


project and mitigation measures to lessen the impacts. 
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I. AESTHETICS 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project: 


(a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a 


scenic vista? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 


including, but not limited to, trees, rock 


outcroppings, and historic buildings 


within a state scenic highway? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially 


degrade the existing visual character or 


quality of public views of the site and its 


surroundings? (public views are those 


that are experienced from publicly 


accessible vantage point). If the project 


is in an urbanized area, would the 


project conflict with applicable zoning 


and other regulations governing scenic 


quality? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(d) Create a new source of substantial light 


or glare which would adversely affect 


day or nighttime views in the area? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


CEQA establishes that it is the policy of the state to take all action necessary to provide people of the state 


“with… enjoyment of aesthetic, natural, scenic and historic environmental qualities” (Public Resources Code 


Section 21001(b)).  


A scenic vista is generally defined as a high-quality view displaying good aesthetic and compositional values 


that can be seen from public viewpoints. Some scenic vistas are officially or informally designated by public 


agencies or other organizations. A substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista would occur if the project would 


significantly degrade the scenic landscape as viewed from public roads or other public areas. A proposed 


project’s potential effect on a scenic vista is largely dependent upon the degree to which it would complement 


or contrast with the natural setting, the degree to which it would be noticeable in the existing environment, 


and whether it detracts from or complements the scenic vista.  


California’s Scenic Highway Program was created by the State Legislature in 1963 with the intention of 


protecting and enhancing the natural scenic beauty of California highways and adjacent corridors. There are 


several officially designated state scenic highways and several eligible state scenic highways within the county. 


State Route 1 is an Officially Designated State Scenic Highway and All-American Road from the City of San Luis 


Obispo to the northern San Luis Obispo County boundary. A portion of Nacimiento Lake Drive is an Officially 
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Designated County Scenic Highway. Portions of Highway 101, Highway 46, Highway 41, Highway 166, and 


Highway 33 are also classified as Eligible State Scenic Highways – Not Officially Designated.  


The County of San Luis Obispo Coastal Zone Land Use Ordinance (CZLUO) establishes regulations for exterior 


lighting (CZLUO 23.04.320), height limitations for each land use category (CZLUO 23.04.124), scenic highway 


corridor standards (CZLUO 23.04.210), and other visual resource protection policies. These regulations are 


intended to help the County achieve its Strategic Growth Principles of preserving scenic natural beauty and 


fostering distinctive, attractive communities with a strong sense of place as set forth in the County Land Use 


Element.  


The County of San Luis Obispo CZLUO defines a Sensitive Resource Area (SRA) combining designation that 


applies to areas having high environmental quality and special ecological or educational significance. These 


designated areas are considered visual resources by the County and the CZLUO establishes specific standards 


for projects located within these areas. These standards include but are not limited to set back distances from 


public viewpoints, prohibition of development that silhouettes against the sky, grading slope limitations, set 


back distances from significant rock outcrops, design standards including height limitations and color palette, 


and landscaping plan requirements. 


The Cayucos Urban Area standards, found in the Estero Area Plan, contain additional guidelines regarding 


light and glare, setbacks, and general design consistency. 


In addition to policies set forth in the CZLUO, the County Conservation and Open Space Element (COSE) 


provides guidelines for the appropriate placement of development so that the natural landscape continues 


to be the dominant view in rural parts of the county and to ensure the visual character contributes to a robust 


sense of place in urban areas. The COSE provides a number of goals and policies to protect the visual 


character and identify of the county while protecting private property rights, such as the identification and 


protection of community separators (rural-appearing land located between separate, identifiable 


communities and towns), designation of scenic corridors along public roads and highways throughout the 


county, retaining existing access to scenic vista points, and setting the standard that new development in 


urban and village areas shall be consistent with the local character, identify, and sense of place.  


The proposed project is located on an undeveloped parcel within a small community setting. The surrounding 


visual character consists of low to medium density residential and commercial developments nestled between 


rolling hills and the beaches and bluffs along the Pacific Ocean. Surrounding parcels are similarly sized and 


contain multi-family residences to the northeast, a mobile home park to the north, a three-story condominium 


to the west, commercial buildings to the east, and a public recreational beach to the south. The Pacific Ocean 


lays beyond the beach to the south and Cayucos Creek borders the eastern edge of the parcel. The 


topography of the project site and surrounding area consists of gentle to moderate slopes. The project site is 


currently undeveloped and featureless. The project site would be accessed off of North Ocean Ave, a public 


roadway. The nearest Scenic Highway is Highway 1. The project would not be visible from Highway 1 due to 


intervening topography and existing development. 


Discussion 


(a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 


The project is located on the edge of the Cayucos urban area, just outside of the community’s central 


business district. Surrounding parcels are developed with residences and public amenities, including 


the Cayucos Pier. The currently undeveloped parcel permits views of the Pacific Ocean as well as the 


Pier as seen from North Ocean Avenue, a County maintained, arterial road. 
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Proposed development would be located on the western half of the parcel. The proposed building 


would block views of the Pacific Ocean, as seen from Ocean Avenue.  


To maintain consistency with County standards and to avoid significant impacts to visual resources, 


the project has been designed to be consistent with the general architectural style of the surrounding 


area and has been limited to a height of 35 feet above natural grade. The proposed use is a visitor 


serving use and is consistent with the intent for the site outlined in the Cayucos Urban Area Standards 


of the Estero Area Plan. These standards restrict the use of this specific property to visitor serving 


priority uses. The Estero Area Plan anticipated development of this parcel and outlined limited 


allowable uses which included hotels and noted that development design is require to “incorporate 


public access to and along the bluff top for a scenic vista.” 


While the construction of the hotel would block views as seen from North Ocean Avenue, the project, 


as required by the Cayucos Urban Area Standards, incorporates public access to and along the bluff 


top for a scenic vista. The project also includes additional recreational features adjacent to this bluff 


pathway for public use. The project is consistent with the type of development allowed and expected 


on this parcel and has been designed to be consistent with surrounding development. 


The project would not be inconsistent with existing surrounding development and would fit with the 


character / scale of the surrounding area, and through the construction and maintenance of a public 


access way along the bluff top which creates a new, publicly accessible scenic vista, the project’s 


impacts to existing views would be seen as less than significant. 


(b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic 


buildings within a state scenic highway? 


Due to the topography and road configuration surrounding nearby Highway 1, the project would not 


be visible from a state scenic highway. Therefore, the project would have no impact on scenic 


resources within a state scenic highway. 


(c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the 


site and its surroundings? (public views are those that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage 


point). If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other 


regulations governing scenic quality? 


The project is within the urbanized community of Cayucos, just outside of the Cayucos central 


business district. As a project within the community of Cayucos, the proposed hotel is required to 


meet the design standards of the Estero Area Plan. The project would be consistent with applicable 


plans and polices related to visual resources and aesthetic quality, including those included in the 


Estero Area Plan. Therefore, no impacts would occur. 


(d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the 


area? 


The project does not propose the use or installation of highly reflective materials that would create a 


substantial source of glare. The project would generally be consistent with the level of existing 


development in the project vicinity and does not propose the installation or use of outdoor lighting 


that would differ substantially from other proximate development. Therefore, the project would not 


create a new source of substantial light or glare that would adversely affect day or nighttime views in 


the area and potential impacts would be less than significant. 
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Conclusion 


Through the incorporation of the required scenic vista pathway along the bluff top and the various design 


standards outlined in the Estero Area Plan, the project would not result in a substantial change to scenic 


resources in the area. The project would be consistent with existing policies and standards in the County 


CZLUO and COSE related to the protection of scenic resources. Potential impacts to aesthetic resources would 


be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to 


the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Dept. of 


Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether 


impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to 


information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest 


land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon 


measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board. Would the project: 


(a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 


Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 


Importance (Farmland), as shown on the 


maps prepared pursuant to the 


Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 


Program of the California Resources 


Agency, to non-agricultural use? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Conflict with existing zoning for 


agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 


contract? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or 


cause rezoning of, forest land (as 


defined in Public Resources Code 


section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined 


by Public Resources Code section 4526), 


or timberland zoned Timberland 


Production (as defined by Government 


Code section 51104(g))? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(d) Result in the loss of forest land or 


conversion of forest land to non-forest 


use? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(e) Involve other changes in the existing 


environment which, due to their location 


or nature, could result in conversion of 


Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 


conversion of forest land to non-forest 


use? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


The County of San Luis Obispo supports a unique, diverse, and valuable agricultural industry that can be 


attributed to its Mediterranean climate, fertile soils, and sufficient water supply. Wine grapes are regularly the 


top agricultural crop in the county. Top value agricultural products in the county also include fruit and nuts, 


vegetables, field crops, nursery products, and animals. The County of San Luis Obispo Agriculture Element 
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includes policies, goals, objectives, and other requirements that apply to lands designated in the Agriculture 


land use category. In addition to the Agriculture Element, in accordance with Sections 2272 and 2279 of the 


California Food and Agriculture Code, the County Agricultural Commissioner releases an annual report on the 


condition, acreage, production, pest management, and value of agricultural products within the county. The 


most recent annual crop report can be found here: https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Agriculture-


Weights-and-Measures/All-Forms-Documents/Information/Crop-Report.aspx.  


The California Department of Conservation’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (FMMP) produces 


maps and statistical data used for analyzing impacts on California’s agricultural resources. Agricultural land is 


rated according to soil quality and current land use. For environmental review purposes under CEQA, the 


FMMP categories of Prime Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance, Unique Farmland, Farmland of Local 


Importance, and Grazing Land are considered ‘agricultural land’. Other non-agricultural designations include 


Urban and Built-up Land, Other Land, and Water.  


Based on the FMMP, soils at the project site are within the following FMMP designation(s):  


Prime Farmland if Irrigated 


Onsite soils include:  


Cropley clay, 2 to 9 percent slopes, MLRA 14 


The Land Conservation Act of 1965, commonly referred to as the Williamson Act, enables local governments 


to enter into contracts with private landowners for the purpose of restricting specific parcels of land to 


agriculture or related open space use. In return, landowners receive property tax assessments which are 


much lower than normal because they are based upon farming and open space uses as opposed to full 


market value. The project site is not within the Agriculture land use designation and is not within lands subject 


to a Williamson Act contract. 


According to Public Resources Code Section 12220(g), forest land is defined as land that can support 10-


percent native tree cover of any species, including hardwoods, under natural conditions, and that allows for 


management of one or more forest resources, including timber, aesthetics, fish and wildlife, biodiversity, 


water quality, recreation, and other public benefits. Timberland is defined as land, other than land owned by 


the federal government and land designated by the board as experimental forest land, which is available for, 


and capable of, growing a crop of trees of a commercial species used to produce lumber and other forest 


products, including Christmas trees. The project site is not within an area that supports forest or timberland. 


Discussion 


(a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on 


the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources 


Agency, to non-agricultural use? 


The project is located on soils designated as Prime Farmland, if Irrigated. The parcel is zoned for 


recreational land uses and is not in an area which supports farming operations. Use of this land for 


farming operations is seen as unlikely. The proposed use, while non-agricultural, would be consistent 


with the general development of the surrounding area and therefore, impacts to Farmland would be 


less than significant.  
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(b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 


The project site does not include land within the Agriculture land use designation or land subject to a 


Williamson Act contract. Therefore, the project would not result in a conflict with existing zoning for 


agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract and no impacts would occur. 


(c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code 


section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 


Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code section 51104(g))? 


The project site does not include land use designations or zoning for forest land or timberland; no 


impacts would occur. 


(d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 


The project site does not support forest land or timberland and would not result in the loss or 


conversion of these lands to non-forest use; no impacts would occur. 


(e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in 


conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 


The project is not located in close proximity to Farmland or forest land and the nature of the project 


would not conflict with existing agricultural uses. The project would not increase demand on 


agricultural water supplies or facilities and would not affect proximate agricultural support facilities. 


Therefore, the project would not result in changes in the existing environment that could result in the 


conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural uses or forest land to non-forest uses. No impacts would 


occur. 


Conclusion 


The project would not directly or indirectly result in the conversion of farmland, forest land, or timber land to 


non-agricultural uses or non-forest uses and would not conflict with agricultural zoning or otherwise adversely 


affect agricultural resources or uses. Potential impacts to agricultural resources would be less than significant 


and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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III. AIR QUALITY 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management district or air pollution 


control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would the project: 


(a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation 


of the applicable air quality plan? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 


increase of any criteria pollutant for 


which the project region is non-


attainment under an applicable federal 


or state ambient air quality standard?  


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 


pollutant concentrations? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Result in other emissions (such as those 


leading to odors) adversely affecting a 


substantial number of people? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


Regulatory Agencies and Standards 


San Luis Obispo County is part of the South Central Coast Air Basin, (SCCAB) which also includes Santa Barbara 


and Ventura Counties. Air quality within the SCCAB is regulated by several jurisdictions including the U.S. 


Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), California Air Resources Board (ARB), and the San Luis Obispo County 


Air Pollution Control District (SLOAPCD). Each of these jurisdictions develops rules, regulations, and policies 


to attain the goals or directives imposed upon them through legislation. The California ARB is the agency 


responsible for coordination and oversight of state and local air pollution control programs in California and 


for implementing the California Clean Air Act (CCAA) of 1988. The State Department of Public Health 


established California Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAQS) in 1962 to define the maximum amount of a 


pollutant (averaged over a specified period of time) that can be present without any harmful effects on people 


or the environment. The California ARB adopted the CAAQS developed by the Department of Public Health in 


1969, which had established CAAQS for 10 criteria pollutants: particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), ozone 


(O3), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), sulfate, carbon monoxide (CO), sulfur dioxide (SO2), visibility reducing particles, 


lead (Pb), hydrogen sulfide (H2S), and vinyl chloride.  


The Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) later required the U.S. EPA to establish National Ambient Air Quality 


Standards (NAAQS) for pollutants considered harmful to public health and the environment, and also set 


deadlines for their attainment. The U.S. EPA has established NAAQS for six criteria pollutants (all of which are 


also regulated by CAAQS): CO, lead, NO2, ozone, PM10 and PM2.5, and SO2. 


California law continues to mandate compliance with CAAQS, which are often more stringent than national 


standards. However, California law does not require that CAAQS be met by specified dates as is the case with 


NAAQS. Rather, it requires incremental progress toward attainment. The SLOAPCD is the agency primarily 
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responsible for ensuring that NAAQS and CAAQS are not exceeded and that air quality conditions within the 


county are maintained. 


SLOAPCD Thresholds 


The SLOAPCD has developed and updated their CEQA Air Quality Handbook (most recently updated with a 


November 2017 Clarification Memorandum) to help local agencies evaluate project specific impacts and 


determine if air quality mitigation measures are needed, or if potentially significant impacts could result.  


The APCD has established thresholds for both short-term construction emissions and long-term operational 


emissions. Use of heavy equipment and earth moving operations during project construction can generate 


fugitive dust and engine combustion emissions that may have substantial temporary impacts on local air 


quality and climate change. Combustion emissions, such as nitrogen oxides (NOx), reactive organic gases 


(ROG), greenhouse gases (GHG) and diesel particulate matter (DPM), are most significant when using large, 


diesel-fueled scrapers, loaders, bulldozers, haul trucks, compressors, generators and other heavy equipment. 


SLOAPCD has established thresholds of significance for each of these contaminants.  


The total area of grading or removal of groundcover is expected to be approximately 0.74 acres. The project 


is expected to have 250 cubic yards of cut and 500 cubic yards of fill. 


Operational impacts are focused primarily on the indirect emissions (i.e., motor vehicles) associated with 


residential, commercial and industrial development. Certain types of project can also include components 


that generate direct emissions, such as power plants, gasoline stations, dry cleaners, and refineries (source 


emissions).  


General screening criteria is used by the SLOAPCD to determine the type and scope of air quality assessment 


required for a particular project (Table 1-1 in the APCD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbood). These criteria are based 


on project size in an urban setting and are designed to identify those projects with the potential to exceed the 


APCD’s significance thresholds. A more refined analysis of air quality impacts specific to a given project is 


necessary for projects that exceed the screening criteria below or are within ten percent (10%) of exceeding 


the screening criteria. 


Air Quality Monitoring 


The county’s air quality is measured by a total of 10 ambient air quality monitoring stations, and pollutant 


levels are measured continuously and averaged each hour, 24 hours a day. The significance of a given 


pollutant can be evaluated by comparing its atmospheric concentration to state and federal air quality 


standards. These standards represent allowable atmospheric containment concentrations at which the public 


health and welfare are protected, and include a factor of safety. The SLOAPCD prepares an Annual Air Quality 


Report detailing information on air quality monitoring and pollutant trends in the county. The most recent 


Annual Air Quality Report can be found here: https://storage.googleapis.com/slocleanair-


org/images/cms/upload/files/2017aqrt-FINAL2.pdf.  


In the county of San Luis Obispo, ozone and fine particulates (particulate matter of 10 microns in diameter or 


smaller; PM10) are the pollutants of main concern, since exceedances of state health-based standards for 


these pollutants are experienced in some areas of the county. Under federal standards, the county has non-


attainment status for ozone in eastern San Luis Obispo County.  


San Luis Obispo County Clean Air Plan 


The SLOAPCD’s San Luis Obispo County 2001 Clean Air Plan (CAP) is a comprehensive planning document 


intended to evaluate long-term emissions and cumulative effects and provide guidance to the SLOAPCD and 
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other local agencies on how to attain and maintain the state standards for ozone and PM10. The CAP presents 


a detailed description of the sources and pollutants which impact the jurisdiction’s attainment of state 


standards, future air quality impacts to be expected under current growth trends, and an appropriate control 


strategy for reducing ozone precursor emissions, thereby improving air quality.  


Naturally Occurring Asbestos 


Naturally Occurring Asbestos (NOA) is identified as a toxic air contaminant by the California Air Resources 


Board (CARB). Serpentine and other ultramafic rocks are fairly common throughout the county and may 


contain NOA. If these areas are disturbed during construction, NOA-containing particles can be released into 


the air and have an adverse impact on local air quality and human health.  


The project is located in an area known to contain Naturally Occurring Asbestos.  


Sensitive Receptors 


Sensitive receptors are people that have an increased sensitivity to air pollution or environmental 


contaminants, such as the elderly, children, people with asthma or other respiratory illnesses, and others who 


are at a heightened risk of negative health outcomes due to exposure to air pollution. Some land uses are 


considered more sensitive to changes in air quality than others, due to the population that occupies the uses 


and the activities involved. Sensitive receptor locations include schools, parks and playgrounds, day care 


centers, nursing homes, hospitals, and residences.  


The nearest sensitive receptors are the condominiums immediately adjacent to the west of the project parcel 


and the mobile home park located on the other side of North Ocean Ave, approximately 200 feet north of the 


project site.  


Discussion 


(a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 


The project is not expected to generate a substantial increase in population or employment 


opportunities. The project is estimated to generate a total of 142 new daily trips, eight new AM peak 


hour trips and 10 new PM peak hour trips. The proposed hotel, having only 16 units, is within the 


thresholds outlined in SLOAPCD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook. The proposed project would not 


contribute to the generation of significant levels of any air contaminants and would not conflict with 


or obstruct the implementation of the San Luis Obispo County Clean Air Plan or other applicable 


regional and local planning documents. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 


(b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 


non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard? 


The County is currently designated as non-attainment for ozone and PM10 under state ambient air 


quality standards. Construction of the project would result in emissions of ozone precursors including 


reactive organic gasses (ROG) and nitrous oxides (NOX) and fugitive dust emissions (PM10). 


Construction Impacts 


The SLOAPCD CEQA Air Quality Handbook provides thresholds of significance for construction related 


emissions. Table 1 lists SLOAPCD’s general thresholds for determining whether a potentially 


significant impact could occur as a result of a project’s construction activities.   


Table 1. SLOAPCD Thresholds of Significance for Construction Activities 
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Pollutant 


Threshold (1) 


Daily 
Quarterly Tier 


1 


Quarterly Tier 


2 


Diesel Particulate Matter (DPM) 7 lbs 0.13 tons 0.32 tons 


Reactive Organic Gases (ROG)  


+ Oxides of Nitrogen (NOX) 
137 lbs 2.5 6.3 tons 


Fugitive Particulate Matter 


(PM10), Dust (2) 


 
2.5 tons (2) 


 


1. Daily and quarterly emission thresholds are based on the California Health and Safety 


Code and the CARB Carl Moyer Guidelines. 


2. Any project with a grading area greater than 4.0 acres of worked area can exceed the 2.5-


ton PM10 quarterly threshold.  


The SLOAPCD CEQA Air Quality Handbook also provides preliminary screening construction emission 


rates based on the proposed volume of soil to be moved and the anticipated area of disturbance. 


Table 2 lists the SLOAPCD’s screening emission rates that would be generated based on the amount 


of material to be moved. The APCD’s CEQA Handbook also clarifies that any project that would require 


grading of 4.0 acres or more can exceed the 2.5-ton PM10 quarterly threshold listed above.  


Table 2. Screening Emission Rates for Construction Activities 


Pollutant 
Grams/Cubic Yard 


of Material Moved 


Lbs/Cubic Yard of 


Material Moved 


Diesel Particulate Matter (DPM) 2.2 0.0049 


Reactive Organic Gases (ROG)  9.2 0.0203 


Oxides of Nitrogen (NOX) 42.4 0.0935 


Fugitive Particulate Matter (PM10) 


0.75 tons/acre/month of construction 


activity (assuming 22 days of construction 


per month) 


Based on estimated cut and fill estimates and the construction emission rates shown in Table 2, 


construction-related emissions that would result from the project were calculated and are shown in 


Table 3 below.  


Table 3. Proposed Project Estimated Construction Emissions. 
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Pollutant 
Total Estimated 


Emissions 


SLOAPCD Threshold 
Threshold 


Exceeded? Daily 
Quarterly (Tier 


1) 


ROG + NOX 


(combined) 
85.36 lbs 137 pounds 2.5 tons No 


Diesel Particulate 


Matter (DPM) 
3.68 lbs 7 pounds 0.13 tons No 


Fugitive 


Particulate Matter 


(PM10) 


1.67 tons  2.5 tons No 


 


For projects involving construction and/or grading activities, the CZLUO requires that all surfaces and 


materials shall be managed to ensure that fugitive dust emissions are adequately controlled to below 


the 20% opacity limit and to ensure dust is not emitted offsite. The CZLUO includes a list of primary 


fugitive dust control measures required for all projects involving grading or site disturbance. The 


CZLUO also includes an expanded list of fugitive dust control measures for projects requiring site 


disturbance of greater than four acres or which are located within 1,000 feet of any sensitive receptor 


location. All applicable fugitive dust control measures are required to be shown on grading and 


building plans and monitored by a designated monitor to minimize dust complaints, reduce visible 


emissions below the 20% opacity limit, and to prevent transport of dust offsite (CZLUO 23.05.050).  


The California Code of Regulations (Section 2485 of Title 13) also prohibits idling in excess of 5 minutes 


from any diesel-fueled commercial motor vehicles with gross vehicular weight ratings of 10,000 


pounds or more or that must be licensed for operation on highways.   


Based on the volume of proposed grading, area of project site disturbance, estimated duration of the 


construction period, and the APCD’s screening construction emission rates identified above, the 


project would not result in the emission of criteria pollutants that would exceed construction-related 


thresholds established by the SLOAPCD. Therefore, the project would not result in a cumulatively 


considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the region is non-attainment, and impacts 


would be less than significant. 


Operational Impacts 


The SLOAPCD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook provides operational screening criteria to identify projects 


with the potential to exceed APCD operational significance thresholds (refer to Table 1-1 of the CEQA 


Handbook). Based on Table 1-1 of the CEQA Handbook, the project does not propose a use that would 


have the potential to result in operational emissions that would exceed APCD thresholds. The project 


would not generate substantial new long-term traffic trips or vehicle emissions and does not propose 


construction of new direct (source) emissions. Therefore, potential operational emissions would be 


less than significant.  
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(c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 


As described above in response to (b), the project would not generate significant construction-related 


or operational emissions and would, therefore, not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 


concentrations. Operational emissions would not substantially increase and implementation of 


standard CZLUO standards for dust control and compliance with existing regulations that prohibit 


excessive idling by diesel vehicles would reduce potential construction related emissions. Therefore, 


the project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations and impacts 


would be less than significant. 


(d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of 


people? 


Construction could generate odors from heavy diesel machinery, equipment, and/or materials. The 


generation of odors during the construction period would be temporary, would be consistent with 


odors commonly associated with construction, and would dissipate within a short distance from the 


active work area. No long-term operational odors would be generated by the project. Therefore, 


potential odor-related impacts would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would be consistent with the SLOAPCD’s Clean Air Plan and thresholds for construction-related 


and operational emissions. The project would not result in cumulatively considerable emissions of any criteria 


pollutant for which the County is in non-attainment and would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial 


pollutant concentrations or result in other emissions adversely affecting a substantial number of people. 


Therefore, potential impacts to air quality would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are 


necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 


directly or through habitat 


modifications, on any species identified 


as a candidate, sensitive, or special 


status species in local or regional plans, 


policies, or regulations, or by the 


California Department of Fish and Game 


or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 


riparian habitat or other sensitive 


natural community identified in local or 


regional plans, policies, regulations or by 


the California Department of Fish and 


Game or US Fish and Wildlife Service? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Have a substantial adverse effect on 


state or federally protected wetlands 


(including, but not limited to, marsh, 


vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 


removal, filling, hydrological 


interruption, or other means? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Interfere substantially with the 


movement of any native resident or 


migratory fish or wildlife species or with 


established native resident or migratory 


wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 


native wildlife nursery sites? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(e) Conflict with any local policies or 


ordinances protecting biological 


resources, such as a tree preservation 


policy or ordinance? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(f) Conflict with the provisions of an 


adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, 


Natural Community Conservation Plan, 


or other approved local, regional, or 


state habitat conservation plan? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


Sensitive Resource Area Designations  
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The County of San Luis Obispo Coastal Zone Land Use Ordinance (CZLUO) Sensitive Resource Area (SRA) 


combining designation applies to areas of the county with special environmental qualities, or areas containing 


unique or sensitive endangered vegetation or habitat resources. The combining designation standards 


established in the CZLUO require that proposed uses be designed with consideration of the identified 


sensitive resources and the need for their protection.  


Federal and State Endangered Species Acts 


The Federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 (FESA) provides legislation to protect federally listed plant and 


animal species. The California Endangered Species Act of 1984 (CESA) ensures legal protection for plants listed 


as rare or endangered, and wildlife species formally listed as endangered or threatened, and also maintains 


a list of California Species of Special Concern (SSC). SSC status is assigned to species that have limited 


distribution, declining populations, diminishing habitat, or unusual scientific, recreational, or educational 


value. Under state law, the CDFW has the authority to review projects for their potential to impact special-


status species and their habitats.  


Migratory Bird Treaty Act 


The Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) protects all migratory birds, including their eggs, nests, and feathers. 


The MBTA was originally drafted to put an end to the commercial trade in bird feathers, popular in the latter 


part of the 1800s. The MBTA is enforced by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), and potential impacts 


to species protected under the MBTA are evaluated by the USFWS in consultation with other federal agencies 


and are required to be evaluated under CEQA.  


Coastal Tree Removal Standards 


The purpose of these standards is to protect existing trees and other coastal vegetation from indiscriminate 


or unnecessary removal consistent with Local Coastal Plan policies and pursuant to Section 30251 of the 


Coastal Act which requires protection of scenic and visual qualities of coastal areas. Tree removal means the 


destruction or displacement of a tree by cutting, bulldozing, or other mechanical or chemical methods, which 


results in physical transportation of the tree from its site and/or death of the tree. No tree removal is proposed 


as part of this project. 


Clean Water Act and State Porter Cologne Water Quality Control Act 


The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) regulates discharges of dredged or fill material into waters of the 


United States. These waters include wetland and non-wetland water bodies that meet specific criteria. USACE 


jurisdiction regulates almost all work in, over, and under waters listed as “navigable waters of the U.S.” that 


results in a discharge of dredged or fill material within USACE regulatory jurisdiction, pursuant to Section 404 


of the Clean Water Act (CWA). Under Section 404, USACE regulates traditional navigable waters, wetlands 


adjacent to traditional navigable waters, relatively permanent non-navigable tributaries that have a 


continuous flow at least seasonally (typically 3 months), and wetlands that directly abut relatively permanent 


tributaries.  


The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCBs) 


regulate discharges of fill and dredged material in California, under Section 401 of the CWA and the State 


Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, through the State Water Quality Certification Program. State Water 


Quality Certification is necessary for all projects that require a USACE permit, or fall under other federal 


jurisdiction, and have the potential to impact waters of the State. Based on the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 


National Wetlands Inventory, the project site does not support wetlands, riparian or deep-water habitats 


(USFWS 2019). 



mailto:planning@co.slo.ca.us

http://www.sloplanning.org/





DRC2019-00297 Cobb Conditional Use Permit  
PLN-2039 


04/2019 


Initial Study – Environmental Checklist 


 


 


976 OSOS STREET, ROOM 300 | SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93408 |(805) 781-5600 | TTY/TRS 7-1-1 PAGE 19 OF 79 


planning@co.slo.ca.us  |  www.sloplanning.org 


Conservation and Open Space Element 


The intent of the goals, policies, and implementation strategies in the COSE is to identify and protect biological 


resources that are a critical component of the county’s environmental, social, and economic well-being. 


Biological resources include major ecosystems; threatened, rare, and endangered species and their habitats; 


native trees and vegetation; creeks and riparian areas; wetlands; fisheries; and marine resources. Individual 


species, habitat areas, ecosystems and migration patterns must be considered together in order to sustain 


biological resources. The COSE identifies Critical Habitat areas for sensitive species including California 


condor, California red legged frog, vernal pool fairy shrimp, La Graciosa thistle, Morro Bay kangaroo rat, Morro 


shoulderband snail, tiger salamander, and western snowy plover. The COSE also identifies features of 


particular importance to wildlife for movement corridors such as riparian corridors, shorelines of the coast 


and bay, and ridgelines.  


The project site is located within the northwest portion of the community of Cayucos between North Ocean 


Avenue and the Pacific Ocean. The site is surrounded by developments to the north, east, and west, and a 


sandy beach borders the site to the south. The project site is located on a flat terrace containing disturbed 


annual grassland and no existing paving or structures. Cayucos Creek and its mouth run through the eastern 


edge of the project parcel and drains into the Pacific Ocean; no other wetland habitats or hydrologic features 


are present on the project parcel. A Biological Resources Assessment was prepared for the project by Kevin 


Merk Associates, LLC in May 2019. 


Discussion 


(a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified 


as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by 


the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 


According to the project’s Biological Resources Assessment, six rare plant species and 21 special-


status animal species are known in the general site vicinity. Frequent mowing of the grassland area 


has led to an increased percentage of non-native plant species and has prevented a natural grassland 


community from occurring. The project, as proposed, would be set back far enough away from the 


bluff, sandy beach, and Cayucos Creek wetland areas to avoid potentially significant impacts. The 


project has a proposed 38-foot bluff setback and a 25-foot setback from observed wetland areas 


located along the toe of the bluff. No rare plants were present within the proposed project area during 


the botanical surveys. 


Designated critical habitat for one animal species, the south-central California coast steelhead DPS, is 


found on the property, however it does not occur within the proposed project area. Nesting birds and 


raptors could potentially occur near the proposed project area. Mitigation measures BIO-1 would 


reduce potential project-related impacts to special-status wildlife species to less than significant levels. 


Through the incorporation of mitigation measures BIO-1 through BIO-5 potential impacts to plant and 


animal species and their habitats would be reduced less than significant levels. 


(b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in 


local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Game or US Fish 


and Wildlife Service? 


According to the project’s Biological Resources Assessment, no riparian habitat was present within the 


project area. All instances of the noted Northern Coastal Salt Marsh are located outside of the area 


proposed for disturbance. There would be no indirect effects from the project on this habitat because 
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it is located at the bottom of the bluff and far enough away from proposed project activities. 


Therefore, impacts to riparian habitats or sensitive natural communities would be less than significant. 


(c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, 


marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 


According to the project’s Biological Resources Assessment, the Cayucos Creek lagoon is a Estuarine 


and Marine Deepwater or Wetland habitat and the Northern Coastal Salt Marsh present on the project 


parcel is considered a federally protected wetland. All areas of the Cayucos Creek channel and the 


Sandy Beach habitat are under the jurisdiction of CDFW, RWQCB, USACE, and the California Coastal 


Commission. 


No project construction is proposed within these jurisdictional areas and no permits from CDFW, 


RWQCB, or USACE for streambed alteration are required. Therefore, impacts to state or federally 


protected wetlands would be less than significant. 


(d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with 


established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 


According to the project’s Biological Resources Assessment, the proposed project would not affect the 


movement of native fish because all site work will be conducted outside of the stream channel. The 


movement of wildlife or use of wildlife corridors would not be affected by project construction. Species 


using Sandy Beach or stream habitats for movement will be unimpeded and linkage to adjacent areas 


will remain. No wildlife nursery sites would occur in the project impact area as it is a frequently 


disturbed patch of non-native grassland. Therefore, impacts to the movement of native fish or wildlife, 


wildlife corridors, or wildlife nursery sites would be less than significant. 


(e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation 


policy or ordinance? 


According to the project’s Biological Resources Assessment, the areas defined by the Estero Area Plan 


as being Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHA) would not be affected by the project. The 


project is required to adhere to the standard 25-foot setback from Cayucos Creek and, through the 


preparation of the Biological Resources Assessment, has been consistent with the standards for 


projects within ESHA. The project has been designed to minimize or avoid effect to the extent feasible 


and mitigation included in the provided Biological Resources Assessment would reduce impacts to a 


level below significance. Therefore, the project would not result in a conflict with local policies or 


ordinances protecting biological resources and no impacts would occur. 


(f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation 


Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 


No conservation plans have been prepared for this area and therefore, the project would not conflict 


with any local, regional, or state conservation plan. 


Conclusion 


The Biological Resources Assessment, which was completed for the project in May of 2019 by Kevin Merk 


Associates indicates the project has the potential to impact special-status plant and animal species. The 


mitigation measures identified in BIO-1 through BIO-12 apply to the proposed project only; should the project 


change, the mitigation obligation may also change, and a reevaluation of the mitigation measures would be 


required.  
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The project will not conflict with any existing policies or standards meant to protect biological resources. The 


implementation of the below measures will mitigate biological impacts on potentially impacted species and 


habitats to a level of insignificance. 


Mitigation 


BIO-1  Prior to permit issuance and initiation of any ground disturbing activities, the applicant 


shall provide construction timelines to the County Department of Planning and Building in 


order to minimize impacts to nesting birds and bats. Construction and grading activities 


should take place outside the bird nesting season, which is September 1 and January 31. If 


construction and grading activities occur during nesting bird season, provide evidence that a 


County approved qualified biologist has been obtained to conduct a clearance survey within 


one week prior to the initiation of ground disturbance to identify nests and burrows. Visual 


surveys for bats should be conducted in the vicinity of all trees that have cavities, broken limbs, 


resulting in hanging woody debris, and large patches of loose bark.  


 


a. If Active nest sites of bird species protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and/ or 


California Fish and Game Code Section 3503 are observed within the project area, the 


particular construction activity should be modified and /or delayed as necessary to avoid 


direct impacts of the identified nests, eggs, and/or young. Potential project modifications 


may include establishing appropriate “no activity” buffers around the nest site. 


Construction activities should not occur in the buffer until a biologist has determined that 


the nesting activity has ceased.  


b. A qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction survey for nesting birds within 250 


feet of the project impact area. The pre-construction survey shall be conducted within 


seven days of initiation of construction activities in any given area of the project site and 


repeated prior to the start of construction in a new area of the site. During this survey, the 


biologist shall inspect all potential nest substrates in the impact and buffer areas, and any 


nests identified will be monitored to determine if they are active. Survey results shall be 


provided to the County for review prior to initiation of construction activities. 


c. If no active nests are found, construction may proceed. If an active nest is found within 50 


feet (250 feet for raptors and possibly more for snowy plover) of the construction area, 


the biologist, in consultation with California Department Fish and Wildlife, shall determine 


the extent of a buffer to be established around the nest. The buffer will be delineated with 


flagging, and no work shall take place within the buffered area until the young have left 


the nest, as determined by the qualified biologist. 


BIO-2  Prior to initiation of construction activities, a qualified biologist shall prepare a Worker 


Environmental Awareness Program to be presented to all construction personnel and 


employees. The program shall detail the measures undertaken during project implementation 


to avoid and minimize impacts on biological resources. It shall include a description of special-


status species that have the potential to occur on site and their natural history; the status of 


the species and their protection under the FESA, CESA, Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, 


MBTA, and California Fish and Game Code; and the penalties for take. All attendees of the 


Worker Environmental Awareness Program shall sign an attendance form which shall be 


provided to the County along with the documents used to conduct the Worker Environmental 


Awareness Program. 


 



mailto:planning@co.slo.ca.us

http://www.sloplanning.org/





DRC2019-00297 Cobb Conditional Use Permit  
PLN-2039 


04/2019 


Initial Study – Environmental Checklist 


 


 


976 OSOS STREET, ROOM 300 | SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93408 |(805) 781-5600 | TTY/TRS 7-1-1 PAGE 22 OF 79 


planning@co.slo.ca.us  |  www.sloplanning.org 


BIO-3  Prior to the start of construction, the limits of disturbance shall be clearly delineated by 


stakes, construction fencing, flags, or another clearly identifiable system. 


 


BIO-4  During project construction, all pipes, metal tubing, or similar materials stored or stacked 


on the site for one or more overnight periods shall be either securely capped before storage 


or thoroughly inspected for wildlife before the materials are moved, buried, capped, or 


otherwise used.  


In addition, materials such as lumber, plywood, and rolls of silt fencing stored on site shall be 


thoroughly inspected before use. Materials that could provide shelter / nesting habitat for 


birds shall be covered with netting or other exclusion methods during the nesting season to 


precent birds from building nests. If encountered, wildlife shall be allowed to escape 


unimpeded, or relocated by a qualified biologist to a designated appropriate habitat area 


away from construction activities. Any wildlife relocations shall be authorized as necessary by 


CDFW and / or USFWS. 


 


BIO-5  During project construction, to prevent entrapment of wildlife, all excavations (e.g. steep-


walled holes or trenches) more than 6 inches deep shall be covered with plywood or similar 


materials when not in use or contain escape ramps constructed of dirt fill, wooden planks, or 


other material that wildlife could ascend. The amount of time trenches or other excavations 


are left open shall be minimized.  


All excavations more than 6 inches deep shall be inspected daily prior to the start of 


construction and immediately before being covered or filled. Any wildlife discovered shall be 


allowed to escape unimpeded before construction activities resume or shall be relocated by a 


qualified biologist in accordance with CDFW and / or USFWS regulations. 


 


BIO-6  Prior to issuance of building permits, Best Management Practices for dust abatement shall 


be included on the project’s construction documents. 


 


BIO-7 Dust suppression shall occur during construction activities when necessary to meet air 


quality standards and protect biological resources.  


 


BIO-8  During project construction, to minimize disturbance, all vehicle traffic shall be restricted to 


established roads, construction roads, and other designated areas. 


 


BIO-9 During project construction, no vehicles or equipment shall be refueled within 100 feet of 


wetlands or streams (including offsite areas) unless a bermed and lined refueling area is 


constructed. No vehicles or construction equipment shall be stored overnight within 100 feet 


of these areas unless drip pans or ground covers are used. Spill kits shall be maintained on 


site and a spill response plan shall be in place.  


 


BIO-10 During project construction, no concrete washout shall be conducted on the site outside of 


an appropriate containment system. 


 


BIO-11 During project construction, the use of chemicals, fuels, lubricants, or biocides shall be in 


compliance with all local, state, and federal regulations. All uses of such compounds shall 
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observe label and other restrictions mandated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 


California Department of Food and Agriculture, and other state and federal legislation.  


 


BIO-11 During project construction, all food-related trash items (e.g. wrappers, cans, bottles, food 


scraps), small construction debris (e.g. nails, bits of metal and plastic), and other human 


generated debris (e.g. cigarette butts) shall be stored in animal-proof containers and / or 


removed from the site on a weekly basis. No deliberate feeding of wildlife shall be allowed. 


 


BIO-12  Erosion Control and Revegetation  


During project construction, all areas where temporary construction-related impacts have 


taken place shall have appropriate erosion controls and other stormwater protection BMP’s 


installed to prevent erosion potential.  


Prior to issuance of construction permits, a Sediment and Erosion Control Plan shall be 


prepared by a qualified individual that specifically seeks to protect Cayucos Creek, the beach, 


and wetland habitat adjacent to the construction area. Silt fencing, straw bales, sand bags, 


fiber rolls and / or other types of materials shall be prescribed in the plan to prevent erosion 


and sedimentation. Biotechnical approaches using native vegetation shall be considered and 


used when feasible. 


Prior to final inspection, areas with disturbed soils shall be restored under the direction of 


a qualified environmental consultant. Methods may include recontouring graded areas to 


blend in with existing natural contours, covering the areas with salvaged topsoil containing 


native seedbank from the site, and / or applying the native seed mix described in Table 1 of 


the provided Biological Resources Assessment to the graded areas through either direct hand 


seeding or hydroseeding methods. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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V. CULTURAL RESOURCES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Cause a substantial adverse change in 


the significance of a historical resource 


pursuant to § 15064.5? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(b) Cause a substantial adverse change in 


the significance of an archaeological 


resource pursuant to § 15064.5? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Disturb any human remains, including 


those interred outside of dedicated 


cemeteries? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


San Luis Obispo County possesses a rich and diverse cultural heritage and therefore has a wealth of historic 


and prehistoric resources, including sites and buildings associated with Native American inhabitation, Spanish 


missionaries, and immigrant settlers.  


As defined by CEQA, a historical resource includes: 


1. A resource listed in or determined to be eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical 


Resources (CRHR).   


2. Any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or manuscript which a lead agency determines 


to be historically significant or significant. The architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, 


agricultural, educational, social, political, military, or cultural records of California may be considered 


to be a historical resource, provided the lead agency’s determination is supported by substantial 


evidence.  


The County of San Luis Obispo CZLUO Historic Site (H) combining designation is applied to areas of the county 


to recognize the importance of archeological and historic sites and/or structures important to local, state, or 


national history. Standards are included regarding minimum parcel size and permit processing requirements 


for parcels with an established structure and Historic Site combining designation. For example, all new 


structures and uses within an H combining designation require Minor Use Permit approval, and applications 


for such projects are required to include a description of measures proposed to protect the historic resource 


identified by the Land Use Element (CZLUO 23.07.100).  


San Luis Obispo County was historically occupied by two Native American tribes: the northernmost 


subdivision of the Chumash, the Obispeño (after Mission San Luis Obispo de Tolosa), and the Salinan. 


However, the precise location of the boundary between the Chumashan-speaking Obispeño Chumash and 


their northern neighbors, the Hokan-speaking Playanos Salinan, is not known, as those boundaries may have 


changed over time. 
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The COSE identifies and maps anticipated culturally sensitive areas and historic resources within the county 


and establishes goals, policies, and implementation strategies to identify and protect areas, sites, and 


buildings having architectural, historical, Native American, or cultural significance.  


Based on the COSE, the project is located in a designated Archaeological Sensitive Area. An extended Phase 1 


subsurface archaeological testing effort was prepared by Applied Earthworks, Inc in June 2019 in addition to 


a Phase 1 survey and records search previously prepared by Joslin (2019). 


Discussion 


(a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to § 15064.5? 


The project site does not contain any historic resources identified in the National Register of Historic 


Places or California Register of Historic Resources. The project site does not contain a site under the 


Historic Site (H) combining designation and does not contain other structures of historic age (50 years 


or older) that could be potentially significant as a historical resource. Therefore, the project would not 


result in an adverse change in the significance of a historical resources and no impacts would occur. 


(b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to § 


15064.5? 


An extended Phase 1 subsurface archaeological testing report was prepared by Applied Earthworks, 


Inc in June 2019. The report concluded that no further archaeological treatment was necessary as 


the majority of existing on-site fill was a result of the construction of the adjacent mobile home park 


and it was unlikely that intact cultural deposits would be present on site. As such, project impacts to 


an archaeological resource would be seen as less than significant. 


In the unlikely event that resources are uncovered during grading activities, implementation of 


CZLUO 23.05.140 (Archaeological Resources Discovery) would be required. This section requires that 


in the event archaeological resources are encountered during project construction, construction 


activities shall cease, and the County Planning and Building Department must be notified of the 


discovery so that the extent and location of discovered materials may be recorded by a qualified 


archaeologist, and the disposition of artifacts may be accomplished in accordance with state and 


federal law. 


(c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries? 


Based on existing conditions and results of the archaeological surface survey conducted onsite, buried 


human remains are not expected to be present in the site area. In the unlikely event that resources 


are uncovered during grading activities, implementation of CZLUO 23.05.140 (Archaeological 


Resources) would be required. This section requires that in the event archaeological resources are 


encountered during project construction, construction activities shall cease, and the County Planning 


and Building Department must be notified of the discovery so that the extent and location of 


discovered materials may be recorded by a qualified archaeologist, and the disposition of artifacts 


may be accomplished in accordance with state and federal law. This protocol would ensure full 


compliance with California State Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 as well as CDFA requirements 


regarding accidental discovery of cultural resources. Therefore, impacts related to a substantial 


adverse change in the significance of archaeological resources would be less than significant. 
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Conclusion 


No archaeological or historical resources are known or expected to occur within or adjacent to the project 


site. In the event unanticipated archaeological resources or human remains are discovered during project 


construction activities, adherence with County CZLUO standards and State Health and Safety Code 


procedures would reduce potential impacts to less than significant; therefore, potential impacts to cultural 


resources would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None required. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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VI. ENERGY 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Result in a potentially significant 


environmental impact due to wasteful, 


inefficient, or unnecessary consumption 


of energy resources, during project 


construction or operation? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local 


plan for renewable energy or energy 


efficiency? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) is the primary electricity provider for urban and rural communities 


within the County of San Luis Obispo. Approximately 33% of electricity provided by PG&E is sourced from 


renewable resources and an additional 45% is sourced from greenhouse gas-free resources (PG&E 2017).  


The County COSE establishes goals and policies that aim to reduce vehicle miles traveled, conserve water, 


increase energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The COSE 


provides the basis and direction for the development of the County’s EnergyWise Plan (EWP), which outlines 


in greater detail the County’s strategy to reduce government and community-wide greenhouse gas emissions 


through a number of goals, measures, and actions, including energy efficiency and development and use of 


renewable energy resources.  


In 2010, the EWP established a goal to reduce community-wide greenhouse gas emissions to 15% below 2006 


baseline levels by 2020. Two of the six community-wide goals identified to accomplish this were to “[a]ddress 


future energy needs through increased conservation and efficiency in all sectors” and “[i]ncrease the 


production of renewable energy from small-scale and commercial-scale renewable energy installations to 


account for 10% of local energy use by 2020.” In addition, the County has published an EnergyWise Plan 2016 


Update to summarize progress toward implementing measures established in the EWP and outline overall 


trends in energy use and emissions since the baseline year of the EWP inventory (2006).  


The California Building Code (CBC) contains standards that regulate the method of use, properties, 


performance, or types of materials used in the construction, alteration, improvement, repair, or rehabilitation 


of a building or other improvement to real property. The CBC includes mandatory green building standards 


for residential and nonresidential structures, the most recent version of which are referred to as the 2019 


Building Energy Efficiency Standards. These standards focus on four key areas: smart residential photovoltaic 


systems, updated thermal envelope standards (preventing heat transfer from the interior to the exterior and 


vice versa), residential and nonresidential ventilation requirements, and non-residential lighting 


requirements. 
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Discussion 


(a) Result in a potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary 


consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation? 


Project implementation would require minimal consumption of energy resources. During 


construction, fossil fuels, electricity, and natural gas would be used by construction vehicles and 


equipment. The energy consumed during construction would be temporary and would not represent 


a significant or wasteful demand on available resources. Energy demands during project operation 


would be provided through existing infrastructure and would not substantially increase over existing 


demands. Operational energy use would be consistent with that of similar facilities and would not be 


wasteful or inefficient. There are no unique project characteristics that would result in a significant 


increase in energy usage, or an inefficient, wasteful use, or unnecessary consumption of energy 


resources. Potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency? 


Implementation of the project would not result in a significant new energy demand and there are no 


project components or operations that would conflict with the EWP or any other state or local plan 


for renewable energy or energy efficiency. Compliance with State laws and regulations, including the 


most recent Building Code requirements, will ensure the project continues to reduce energy demands 


and greenhouse gas emissions, through, for example, increasing state-wide requirements that energy 


be sourced from renewable resources. Therefore, no impact would occur. 


Conclusion 


The project would not result in a significant energy demand during short-term construction or long-term 


operations and would not conflict with state or local renewable energy or energy efficiency plans. Therefore, 


potential impacts related to energy would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary.  


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Directly or indirectly cause potential 


substantial adverse effects, including the 


risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(i) Rupture of a known earthquake 


fault, as delineated on the most 


recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 


Fault Zoning Map issued by the 


State Geologist for the area or 


based on other substantial 


evidence of a known fault? Refer 


to Division of Mines and Geology 


Special Publication 42. 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 


including liquefaction? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the 


loss of topsoil? 
☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that 


is unstable, or that would become 


unstable as a result of the project, and 


potentially result in on- or off-site 


landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 


liquefaction or collapse? 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined 


in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 


Code (1994), creating substantial direct 


or indirect risks to life or property? 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(e) Have soils incapable of adequately 


supporting the use of septic tanks or 


alternative waste water disposal systems 


where sewers are not available for the 


disposal of waste water? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
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Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 


paleontological resource or site or 


unique geologic feature? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act (Act) is a California state law that was developed to regulate 


development near active faults and mitigate the surface fault rupture potential and other hazards. The Act 


identifies active earthquake fault zones and restricts the construction of habitable structures over known 


active or potentially active faults. San Luis Obispo County is located in a geologically complex and seismically 


active region. The Safety Element of the County of San Luis Obispo General Plan identifies three active faults 


that traverse through the County and that are currently zoned under the State of California Alquist-Priolo 


Fault Zoning Act: the San Andreas, the Hosgri-San Simeon, and the Los Osos. The San Andreas Fault zone is 


located along the eastern border of San Luis Obispo County and has a length of over 600 miles. The Hosgri-


San Simeon fault system generally consists of two fault zones: the Hosgri fault zone that is mapped off of the 


San Luis Obispo County coast; and the San Simeon fault zone, which appears to be associated with the Hosgri, 


and comes onshore near the pier at San Simeon Point, Lastly, the Los Osos Fault zone has been mapped 


generally in an east/west orientation along the northern flank of the Irish Hills.  


The County’s Safety Element also identifies 17 other faults that are considered potentially active or have 


uncertain fault activity in the County. The Safety Element establishes policies that require new development 


to be located away from active and potentially active faults. The element also requires that the County enforce 


applicable building codes relating to seismic design of structures and require design professionals to evaluate 


the potential for liquefaction or seismic settlement to impact structures in accordance with the Uniform 


Building Code.  


Groundshaking refers to the motion that occurs in response to local and regional earthquakes. 


Groundshaking can endanger life and safety due to damage or collapse of structures or lifeline facilities. The 


California Building Code (CBC) currently requires structures to be designed to resist a minimum seismic force 


resulting from ground motion.  


Liquefaction is the sudden loss of soil strength due to a rapid increase in soil pore water pressures resulting 


from groundshaking during an earthquake. Liquefaction potential increases with earthquake magnitude and 


groundshaking duration. Low-lying areas adjacent to creeks, rivers, beaches, and estuaries underlain by 


unconsolidated alluvial soil are most likely to be vulnerable to liquefaction. The CBC requires the assessment 


of liquefaction in the design of all structures. The project is located in an area with moderate potential for 


liquefaction, according to the County's Safety Element.  


Landslides and slope instability can occur as a result of wet weather, weak soils, improper grading, improper 


drainage, steep slopes, adverse geologic structure, earthquakes, or a combination of these factors. Despite 


current codes and policies that discourage development in areas of known landslide activity or high risk of 


landslide, there is a considerable amount of development that is being impacted by landslide activity in the 


County each year. The County Safety Element identifies several policies to reduce risk from landslides and 


slope instability. These policies include the requirement for slope stability evaluations for development in 


areas of moderate or high landslide risk, and restrictions on new development in areas of known landslide 
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activity unless development plans indicate that the hazard can be reduced to a less than significant level prior 


to beginning development. The project is located in an area with low potential for landslides.  


Shrink/swell potential is the extent to which the soil shrinks as it dries out or swells when it gets wet. Extent 


of shrinking and swelling is influenced by the amount and kind of clay in the soil. Shrinking and swelling of 


soils can cause damage to building foundations, roads and other structures. A high shrink/swell potential 


indicates a hazard to maintenance of structures built in, on, or with material having this rating. Moderate and 


low ratings lessen the hazard accordingly.   


The County CZLUO identifies a Geologic Study Area (GSA) combining designation for areas where geologic 


and soil conditions could present new developments and their users with potential hazards to life and 


property. All land use permit applicants located within a GSA are required to include a report prepared by a 


certified engineering geologist and/or registered civil/soils engineer as appropriate. This report is then 


required to be evaluated by a geologist retained by the County. In addition, all uses within a GSA are subject 


to special standards regarding grading and distance from an active fault trace within an Earthquake Fault 


Zone (CZLUO 23.07.080). The proposed project is located within a GSA combining designation. 


The County Conservation and Open Space Element (COSE) identifies a policy for the protection of 


paleontological resources from the effects of development by avoiding disturbance where feasible. 


Paleontological sensitivity is defined as the potential for a geologic unit to produce scientifically significant 


fossils. 


The project site is gently sloping and the soils on the site have a moderate shrink-swell (expansive) potential. 


According to the County’s Land Use View, the project site is within the County’s Geologic Study Area, and it 


has a low landslide risk and moderate liquefaction potential. There are no potentially active faults within a 


mile of the project site, and there are no notable geologic features on the project site, including serpentine or 


ultramafic rock/soils.  


A Soils Engineering Report and a Coastal Bluff Evaluation were prepared for the project by Geo Solutions, Inc. 


in March of 2019. A Coastal Bluff Evaluation update was prepared by Geo Solutions, Inc. in June of 2020 to 


address comments made by the County’s geologist. These reports contain recommendations to ensure 


geologic stability and safe design of the project. Primary geotechnical concerns outlined in the Soils 


Engineering Report include: 


1. The presence of loose undocumented fill materials and debris. 


2. The presence of potentially expansive material. Influx of water from irrigation, leakage from the 


building, infiltration from LID improvements, or natural seepage could cause expansive soil 


problems. Foundations supported by expansive soils should be designed by a Structural Engineer 


in accordance with the 2016 California Building Code. 


3. The potential for differential settlement occurring between foundations supported on two soil 


materials having different settlement characteristics, such as native soil or loose alluvial deposits 


and engineered fill. Therefore, it is important that all of the foundations are founded in equally 


competent uniform material in accordance with the report. 
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Discussion 


(a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death 


involving: 


(a-i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthqake 


Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence 


of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42. 


The project site is not located within an Alquist-Priolo Fault Hazard Zone, and no potentially 


capable fault lines are located within two miles of the project site based on the County Land 


Use View mapping tool. All proposed structures would follow the regulations set forth in the 


CBC and thereby would be compliant with applicable seismic standards. Therefore, potential 


impacts related to the rupture of a known earthquake fault would be less than significant. 


(a-ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? 


Groundshaking refers to the motion that occurs in response to local and regional earthquakes. 


Seismic groundshaking is influenced by the proximity of the site to an earthquake fault, the 


intensity of the seismic event, and the underlying soil composition. The project would be 


required to comply with the CBC and other applicable standards to ensure the effects of a 


potential seismic event would be minimized through compliance with current engineering 


practices and techniques. The project does not include unique components that would be 


particularly sensitive to seismic ground shaking or result in an increased risk of injury or 


damage as a result of ground shaking. Implementation of the project would not expose people 


or structures to significant increased risks associated with seismic ground shaking; therefore, 


impacts would be less than significant. 


(a-iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 


Based on the Safety Element Liquefaction Hazards Map, the project site is located in an area 


with moderate potential for liquefaction. The provided Soils Engineering Report found that 


on-site soils had a low potential for liquefaction. In addition, the project would be required to 


comply with CBC seismic requirements to address the site’s potential for seismic-related 


ground failure including liquefaction; therefore, the potential impacts would be less than 


significant. 


(a-iv) Landslides? 


The project site has gently sloping topography and, based on the Safety Element Landslide 


Hazards Map, proposed components are located in an area with low potential for landslide 


risk. During site mapping and review of aerial photography, landslides were not observed at 


the site. There appears to be a low potential for landslide to affect the proposed development; 


therefore, the potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 


The project would result in approximately 0.74 acres of site disturbance and, during grading activities, 


there would be a potential for erosion to occur. Preparation and approval of an Erosion and 


Sedimentation Control Plan is required for all construction and grading projects to minimize potential 
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impacts related to erosion, sedimentation, and siltation. The plan would be prepared by a civil 


engineer to address both temporary and long-term sedimentation and erosion impacts.  


Additionally, the project is located on a coastal bluff which is experiencing and is expected to continue 


to experience natural erosion and bluff retreat. The project has provided a Coastal Bluff Evaluation 


and an overview of the expected sea level rise impacts on the proposed project. A recommended 38-


foot blufftop setback has been incorporated into project design. 


The project’s Coastal Bluff Evaluation and Soils Engineering Report outline recommendations which 


would limit soil erosion. Compliance with existing regulations and the recommendations outlined in 


the provided reports would reduce potential impacts related to soil erosion and loss of topsoil to less 


than significant with mitigation.  


(c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, 


and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 


Based on the Safety Element Landslide Hazards Map, the project site is located in an area with low 


landslide risk. Based on the Safety Element and U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) data, the project is not 


located in an area of historical or current land subsidence (USGS 2019) and is located in an area with 


low potential for liquefaction risk. Due to the distance to the nearest active fault zone and topography 


of the project site, lateral spreading is not likely to occur on-site.  


According to the Soils Engineering Report prepared for the project site, no landslides were mapped in 


the vicinity of the property. During site mapping and review of aerial photography, landslides were 


not observed at the site. There appears to be a low potential for landslide to affect the proposed 


development. However, the project is located on non-native fill and settlement as well as expansion 


are concerns outlined in the provided Soils Engineering Report.  


The project would be required to comply with the recommendations of these geotechnical evaluations 


as well as CBC standards designed to significantly reduce potential risks associated with unstable 


earth conditions. Therefore, impacts related to on- or off-site landslides, lateral spreading, subsidence, 


liquefaction, or collapse would be less than significant, with implementation of Mitigation Measures 


GEO-1 through GEO-3. 


(d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating 


substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property? 


Project soils are discussed in Section III. Agricultural Resources. In addition, a Soils Engineering Report 


was prepared for the project site (GeoSolutions, 2019). According to that study, the potential for 


expansive soil exists at the project site. All new construction will be required to comply with applicable 


CBC standards designed to reduce potential risks associated with expansive soils. Additionally, the 


recommendations provided in the Soils Engineering Report have been included as mitigation 


measures to reduce possible impacts from expansive soils. Therefore, potential impacts associated 


with expansive soil would be reduced to levels of less than significant with mitigation. 


(e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative waste water disposal 


systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of waste water? 


The proposed project does not propose the installation of new septic tanks or other on-site 


wastewater disposal systems; therefore, no impacts would occur. 
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(f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature? 


No known paleontological resources are known to exist in the project area and the project site does 


not contain any unique geologic features. The project does not include substantial grading or 


earthwork that would disturb the underlying geologic formation in which paleontological resources 


may occur. Therefore, potential impacts on paleontological resources would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would not directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of 


loss, injury, or death involving issues related to geologic hazards. The site is considered suitable for this type 


of development and the proposed project is not expected to result in erosion, loss of topsoil, substantial direct 


or indirect risks to life or property. Any issues associated with the project's geology and soils as it relates to 


construction and soils engineering should be mitigated to less than significant levels through the mitigation 


provided below. 


Mitigation 


GEO-1  Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall demonstrate compliance on 


the grading plans with all recommendations of the Soils Engineering Report (GeoSolutions, 


2019) for the project. During project construction and prior to final inspection, the applicant 


shall implement and comply with all recommendations of the Soils Engineering Report 


(GeoSolutions, 2019) for the project. 


 


GEO-2  Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall demonstrate compliance on 


the grading plans with all recommendations of the Coastal Bluff Evaluation (GeoSolutions, 


2019) and Coastal Bluff Evaluation update (GeoSolutions, 2020) for the project. During project 


construction and prior to final inspection, the applicant shall implement and comply with all 


recommendations of the Coastal Bluff Evaluation (GeoSolutions, 2019) and Coastal Bluff 


Evaluation update (GeoSolutions, 2020) for the project. 


 


GEO-3   Prior to issuance of building / grading permits, the project engineering geologist shall 


review the project improvement plans and prepare a written review letter. The review letter 


must verify conformance with the recommendations of the project coastal bluff evaluation 


report update and shall be provided to the County for review and approval by the County’s 


geologist. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, 


either directly or indirectly, that may 


have a significant impact on the 


environment? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 


regulation adopted for the purpose of 


reducing the emissions of greenhouse 


gases? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


Greenhouse gases (GHG) are any gases that absorb infrared radiation in the atmosphere, and are different 


from the criteria pollutants discussed in Section III, Air Quality, above. The primary GHGs that are emitted into 


the atmosphere as a result of human activities are carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide (N2O), 


and fluorinated gases. These are most commonly emitted through the burning of fossil fuels (oil, natural gas, 


and coal), agricultural practices, decay of organic waste in landfills, and a variety of other chemical reactions 


and industrial processes (e.g., the manufacturing of cement). 


Carbon dioxide is the most abundant GHG and is estimated to represent approximately 80-90% of the 


principal GHGs that are currently affecting the earth’s climate. According to the ARB, transportation (vehicle 


exhaust) and electricity generation are the main sources of GHGs in the state. 


In March 2012, the SLOAPCD approved thresholds for Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission impacts, and these 


thresholds have been incorporated into the CEQA Air Quality Handbook. The Bright-Line Threshold of 1,150 


Metric Tons CO2/year (MT CO2e/yr) is the most applicable GHG threshold for most projects. Table 1-1 in the 


APCD CEQA Air Quality Handbook provides a list of general land uses and the estimated sizes or capacity of 


those uses expected to exceed the GHG Bight Line Threshold of 1,150 Metric Tons of carbon dioxide per year 


(MT CO2/yr). Projects that exceed the criteria or are within ten percent of exceeding the criteria presented in 


Table 1-1 are required to conduct a more detailed analysis of air quality impacts.  


Under CEQA, an individual project’s GHG emissions will generally not result in direct significant impacts. This 


is because the climate change issue is global in nature. However, an individual project could be found to 


contribute to a potentially significant cumulative impact. Projects that have GHG emissions above the noted 


thresholds may be considered cumulatively considerable and require mitigation. 


In October 2008, ARB published its Climate Change Proposed Scoping Plan, which is the State’s plan to achieve 


GHG reductions in California required by Assembly Bill (AB) 32. This initial Scoping Plan contained the main 


strategies to be implemented in order to achieve the target emission levels identified in AB 32. The Scoping 


Plan included ARB-recommended GHG reductions for each emissions sector of the state’s GHG inventory. The 


largest proposed GHG reduction recommendations were associated with improving emissions standards for 


light-duty vehicles, implementing the Low Carbon Fuel Standard program, implementation of energy 
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efficiency measures in buildings and appliances, the widespread development of combined heat and power 


systems, and developing a renewable portfolio standard for electricity production.  


Senate Bill (SB) 32 and Executive Order (EO) S-3-05 extended the State’s GHG reduction goals and require ARB 


to regulate sources of GHGs to meet a state goal of reducing GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, 40 percent 


below 1990 levels by 2030, and 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. The initial Scoping Plan was first 


approved by ARB on December 11, 2008 and is updated every five years. The first update of the Scoping Plan 


was approved by the ARB on May 22, 2014, which looked past 2020 to set mid-term goals (2030-2035) toward 


reaching the 2050 goals. The most recent update released by ARB is the 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan, 


which was released in November 2017. The 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan incorporates strategies for 


achieving the 2030 GHG-reduction target established in SB 32 and EO S-3-05. 


The County Energy Wise Plan (EWP; 2011) identifies ways in which the community and County government 


can reduce greenhouse gas emissions from their various sources. Looking at the four key sectors of energy, 


waste, transportation, and land use, the EWP incorporates best practices to provide a blueprint for achieving 


greenhouse gas emissions reductions in the unincorporated towns and rural areas of San Luis Obispo County 


by 15% below the baseline year of 2006 by the year 2020. The EWP includes an Implementation Program that 


provides a strategy for actions with specific measures and steps to achieve the identified GHG reduction 


targets including, but not limited to, the following: 


• Encourage new development to exceed minimum Cal Green requirements; 


• Require a minimum of 75% of nonhazardous construction and demolition debris generated on site to 


be recycled or salvaged; 


• Continue to implement strategic growth strategies that direct the county’s future growth into existing 


communities and to provide complete services to meet local needs; 


• Continue to increase the amount of affordable housing in the County, allowing lower-income families 


to live closer to jobs and activity centers, and providing residents with greater access to transit and 


alternative modes of transportation; 


• Reduce potable water use by 20% in all newly constructed buildings by using the performance 


methods provided in the California Green Building Code; 


• Require use of energy-efficient equipment in all new development; 


• Minimize the use of dark materials on roofs by requiring roofs to achieve a minimum solar reflectivity 


index of 10 for high-slope roofs and 68 for low-slope roofs; and 


• Use light-colored aggregate in new road construction and repaving projects adjacent to existing cities. 


In 2016 the County published the EnergyWise Plan 2016 Update, which describes the progress made toward 


implementing measures in the 2011 EWP, overall trends in energy use and emissions since the baseline year 


of the inventory (2006), and the addition of implementation measures intended to provide a greater 


understanding of the County’s emissions status.  


Discussion 


(a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the 


environment? 


Based on the nature of the proposed project and Table 1-1 of the SLOAPCD CEQA Air Quality 


Handbook, the project would generate less than the SLOAPCD Numerical Threshold of 1,150 metric 
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tons of GHG emissions. The project’s construction-related and operational GHG emissions and energy 


demands would be minimal. Therefore, the project’s potential direct and cumulative GHG emissions 


would be less than significant and less than a cumulatively considerable contribution to regional GHG 


emissions.  


Projects that generate less than the above-mentioned thresholds will also participate in emission 


reductions because air emissions, including GHGs, are under the purview of the ARB (or other 


regulatory agencies) and will be regulated by standards implemented by the ARB, the federal 


government, or other regulatory agencies. For example, new vehicles will be subject to increased fuel 


economy standards and emission reductions, large and small appliances will be subject to more strict 


emissions standards, and energy delivered to consumers will increasingly come from renewable 


sources. As a result, even the emissions that result from projects that produce fewer emissions than 


the threshold will be subject to emission reductions. Therefore, potential impacts associated with the 


generation of greenhouse gas emissions would be less than significant.  


(b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of 


greenhouse gases? 


The proposed project would be required to comply with existing state regulations, which include 


increased energy conservation measures, reduced potable water use, increased waste diversion, and 


other actions adopted to achieve the overall GHG emissions reduction goals identified in SB 32 and 


EO S-3-05. The project would not conflict with the control measures identified in the CAP, EWP, or 


other state and local regulations related to GHG emissions and renewable energy. The project would 


be generally consistent with the property’s existing land use and would be designed to comply with 


the California Green Building Code standards. Therefore, the project would be consistent with 


applicable plans and programs designed to reduce GHG emissions and potential impacts would be 


less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would not generate significant GHG emissions above existing levels and would not exceed any 


applicable GHG thresholds, contribute considerably to cumulatively significant GHG emissions, or conflict with 


plans adopted to reduce GHG emissions. Therefore, potential impacts related to greenhouse gas emissions 


would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Create a significant hazard to the public 


or the environment through the routine 


transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 


materials? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(b) Create a significant hazard to the public 


or the environment through reasonably 


foreseeable upset and accident 


conditions involving the release of 


hazardous materials into the 


environment? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 


hazardous or acutely hazardous 


materials, substances, or waste within 


one-quarter mile of an existing or 


proposed school? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Be located on a site which is included on 


a list of hazardous materials sites 


compiled pursuant to Government Code 


Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it 


create a significant hazard to the public 


or the environment? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(e) For a project located within an airport 


land use plan or, where such a plan has 


not been adopted, within two miles of a 


public airport or public use airport, 


would the project result in a safety 


hazard or excessive noise for people 


residing or working in the project area? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(f) Impair implementation of or physically 


interfere with an adopted emergency 


response plan or emergency evacuation 


plan? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(g) Expose people or structures, either 


directly or indirectly, to a significant risk 


of loss, injury or death involving wildland 


fires? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 
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Setting 


The Hazardous Waste and Substances Site (Cortese) List is a planning document used by the State, local 


agencies, and developers to comply with CEQA requirements related to the disclosure of information about 


the location of hazardous materials release sites. Government Code section 65962.5 requires the California 


EPA to develop at least annually an updated Cortese List. Various state and local government agencies are 


required to track and document hazardous material release information for the Cortese List. The California 


Department of Toxic Substance Control’s (DTSC’s) EnviroStor database tracks DTSC cleanup, permitting, 


enforcement, and investigation efforts at hazardous waste facilities and sites with known contamination, such 


as federal superfund sites, state response sites, voluntary cleanup sites, school cleanup sites, school 


investigation sites, and military evaluation sites. The State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB’s) 


GeoTracker database contains records for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water in 


California, such as Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) sites, Department of Defense sites, and Cleanup 


Program Sites. The remaining data regarding facilities or sites identified as meeting the “Cortese List” 


requirements can be located on the CalEPA website: https://calepa.ca.gov/sitecleanup/corteselist/.  


The project site is not located within close proximity to any site included on the Cortese List, EnviroStor 


database, or GeoTracker database. 


The California Health and Safety Code provides regulations pertaining to the abatement of fire related hazards 


and requires that local jurisdictions enforce the California Building Code, which provides standards for fire 


resistive building and roofing materials, and other fire-related construction methods. The County Safety 


Element provides a Fire Hazard Zones Map that indicates unincorporated areas in the County within 


moderate, high, and very high fire hazard severity zones. 


The project is not located within a high fire hazard severity zone and, based on the County’s response time 


map, it will take approximately 0-5 minutes to respond to a call regarding fire or life safety.  For more 


information about fire-related hazards and risk assessment, see Section XX. Wildfire. 


The County also has adopted general emergency plans for multiple potential natural disasters, including the 


Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, County Emergency Operations Plan, Earthquake Plan, Dam and Levee Failure 


Plan, Hazardous Materials Response Plan, County Recovery Plan, and the Tsunami Response Plan.  


Discussion 


(a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal 


of hazardous materials? 


The project does not propose the routine transport, use or disposal of hazardous substances. Any 


commonly-used hazardous substances within the project site (e.g., cleaners, solvents, oils, paints, etc.) 


would be transported, stored, and used according to regulatory requirements and existing 


procedures for the handling of hazardous materials. No impacts associated with the routine transport 


of hazardous materials would occur. 


(b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and 


accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment? 


The project does not propose the handling or use of hazardous materials or volatile substances that 


would result in a significant risk of upset or accidental release conditions. Construction of the 


proposed project is anticipated to require use of limited quantities of hazardous substances, including 


gasoline, diesel fuel, hydraulic fluid, solvents, oils, paints, etc. Construction contractors would be 


required to comply with applicable federal and state environmental and workplace safety laws for the 
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handling of hazardous materials, including response and clean-up requirements for any minor spills. 


Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within 


one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 


The project is located within one-quarter mile of Cayucos Elementary School, however, the project 


does not propose activities which would result in the hazardous emissions or the handling of 


hazardous or acutely hazardous material, substances, or waste. Therefore, impacts are seen as less 


than significant. 


(d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to 


Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the 


environment? 


Based on a search of the California Department of Toxic Substance Control’s EnviroStar database, the 


State Water Resources Control Board’s Geotracker database, and CalEPA’s Cortese List website, there 


are no hazardous waste cleanup sites within the project site. Therefore, no impacts would occur. 


(e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 


two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive 


noise for people residing or working in the project area? 


The project site is not located within an airport land use plan or within 2 miles of a public airport or 


private airstrip; therefore, no impacts would occur. 


(f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 


evacuation plan? 


Implementation of the proposed project would not result in a significant temporary or permanent 


impact on any adopted emergency response plans or emergency evacuation plans. No breaks in utility 


service or road closures would occur as a result of project implementation. Any construction-related 


detours would include proper signage and notification and would be short-term and limited in nature 


and duration. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant.  


(g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving 


wildland fires? 


The project is not located within or adjacent to a wildland area. Based on the County Safety Element, 


the project is not located within a high or very high fire hazard severity zone. The project would be 


required to comply with all applicable fire safety rules and regulations including the California Fire 


Code and Public Resources Code prior to issuance of building permits; therefore, potential impacts 


would be less than significant.  
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Conclusion 


The project does not propose the routine transport, use, handling, or disposal of hazardous substances. It is 


not located within proximity to any known contaminated sites and does not propose activities which would 


upset or release hazardous substances within close proximity to populations that could be substantially 


affected. Project implementation would not subject people or structures to substantial risks associated with 


wildland fires and would not impair implementation or interfere with any adopted emergency response or 


evacuation plan. Therefore, potential impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials would be less than 


significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Violate any water quality standards or 


waste discharge requirements or 


otherwise substantially degrade surface 


or ground water quality? 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(b) Substantially decrease groundwater 


supplies or interfere substantially with 


groundwater recharge such that the 


project may impede sustainable 


groundwater management of the basin? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 


pattern of the site or area, including 


through the alteration of the course of a 


stream or river or through the addition 


of impervious surfaces, in a manner 


which would: 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(i) Result in substantial erosion or 


siltation on- or off-site; 
☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(ii) Substantially increase the rate or 


amount of surface runoff in a 


manner which would result in 


flooding on- or off-site; 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(iii) Create or contribute runoff water 


which would exceed the capacity 


of existing or planned stormwater 


drainage systems or provide 


substantial additional sources of 


polluted runoff; or 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(iv) Impede or redirect flood flows? ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche 


zones, risk release of pollutants due to 


project inundation? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation 


of a water quality control plan or 


sustainable groundwater management 


plan? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
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Setting 


The Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) has established Total Maximum Daily Load 


(TMDL) thresholds for waterbodies within the County. A TMDL establishes the allowable amount of a 


particular pollutant a waterbody can receive on a regular basis and still remain at levels that protect beneficial 


uses designated for that waterbody. A TMDL also establishes proportional responsibility for controlling the 


pollutant, numeric indicators of water quality, and measures to achieve the allowable amount of pollutant 


loading. Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act (CWA) requires states to maintain a list of bodies of water that 


are designated as “impaired”. A body of water is considered impaired when a particular water quality objective 


or standard is not being met.  


The RWQCB’s Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Coast Basin (Basin Plan; 2017) describes how the 


quality of surface water and groundwater in the Central Coast Region should be managed to provide the 


highest water quality reasonably possible. The Basin Plan outlines the beneficial uses of streams, lakes, and 


other water bodies for humans and other life. There are 24 categories of beneficial uses, including, but not 


limited to, municipal water supply, water contact recreation, non-water contact recreation, and cold 


freshwater habitat. Water quality objectives are then established to protect the beneficial uses of those water 


resources. The Regional Board implements the Basin Plan by issuing and enforcing waste discharge 


requirements to individuals, communities, or businesses whose discharges can affect water quality.  


The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), through Section 404 of the CWA, regulates the discharge of 


dredged or fill material into waters of the U.S., including wetlands. Waters of the U.S. are typically identified 


by the presence of an ordinary high water mark (OHWM) and connectivity to traditional navigable waters or 


other jurisdictional features. The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and nine RWQCBs regulate 


discharges of fill and dredged material in California, under Section 401 of the CWA and the State Porter-


Cologne Water Quality Control Act, through the State Water Quality Certification Program. State Water Quality 


Certification is necessary for all projects that require a USACE permit, or fall under other federal jurisdiction, 


or have the potential to impact waters of the State. Waters of the State are defined by the Porter-Cologne Act 


as any surface water or groundwater, including saline waters, within the boundaries of the state.  


The project is located in the Old Valley Groundwater Basin and proposes to obtain its water needs from a 


community water system. The project is subject to the County’s Plumbing Code (Chapter 7 of the Building and 


Construction Ordinance [Title 19]), and/or the “Water Quality Control Plan, Central Coast Basin” for its 


wastewater requirements, where wastewater impacts to the groundwater basin will be less than significant. 


The County CZLUO dictates which projects are required to prepare a drainage plan, including any project that 


would, for example, change the runoff volume or velocity leaving any point of the site, result in an impervious 


surface of more than 20,000 square feet, or involve hillside development on slopes steeper than 10 percent. 


Preparation of a drainage plan is not required where grading is exclusively for an exempt agricultural 


structure, crop production, or grazing.  


The County CZLUO also dictates that an erosion and sedimentation control plan is required year-round for all 


construction and grading permit projects and site disturbance activities of one-half acre or more in 


geologically unstable areas, on slopes steeper than 30 percent, on highly erodible soils, or within 100 feet of 


any watercourse.  


Per the County’s Stormwater Program, the Public Works Department is responsible for ensuring that new 


construction sites implement best management practices during construction, and that site plans incorporate 


appropriate post-construction stormwater runoff controls. Construction sites that disturb 1.0 acre or more 


must obtain coverage under the SWRCB’s Construction General Permit. The Construction General Permit 
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requires the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to minimize on-site 


sedimentation and erosion. There are several types of projects that are exempt from preparing a SWPPP, 


including routine maintenance to existing developments, emergency construction activities, and projects 


exempted by the SWRCB or RWQCB. Projects that disturb less than 1.0 acre must implement all required 


elements within the site’s erosion and sediment control plan as required by the San Luis Obispo County 


CZLUO.  


For planning purposes, the flood event most often used to delineate areas subject to flooding is the 100-year 


flood. The County Safety Element establishes policies to reduce flood hazards and reduce flood damage, 


including but not limited to prohibition of development in areas of high flood hazard potential, 


discouragement of single road access into remote areas that could be closed during floods, and review of 


plans for construction in low-lying areas. All development located in a 100-year flood zone is subject to Federal 


Emergency Management Act (FEMA) regulations. The County Land Use Ordinance designates a Flood Hazard 


(FH) combining designation for areas of the County that could be subject to inundation by a 100-year flood or 


within coastal high hazard areas. Development projects within this combining designation are subject to FH 


permit and processing requirements, including, but not limited to, the preparation of a drainage plan, 


implementation of additional construction standards, and additional materials storage and processing 


requirements for substances that could be injurious to human, animal or plant life in the event of flooding. 


The project site is located within a Flood Hazard combining designation. 


The topography of the project is gently sloping. On-site soils are classified as Hydrologic Soils Group “C”, 


therefore, runoff is expected to be moderate to high. The project parcel is within the Old Valley groundwater 


basin. The closest creek from the proposed development is Little Cayucos Creek which runs through the 


project parcel and empties into the Pacific Ocean. The project site is located within a 100-year flood zone. 


For areas where drainage is identified as a potential issue, the Land Use Ordinance (CZLUO Sec. 23.07.060) 


includes a provision to prepare a drainage plan to minimize potential drainage impacts.  When required, this 


plan would need to address measures such as:  constructing on-site retention or detention basins or installing 


surface water flow dissipaters. This plan would also need to show that the increased surface runoff would 


have no more impacts than that caused by historic flows. 


Soil type, area of disturbance, and slopes are key aspects to analyzing potential sedimentation and erosion 


issues.  The project’s soil types and descriptions are listed in the previous Agriculture section under “Setting”.  


A sedimentation and erosion control plan is required for all construction and grading projects (CZLUO Sec. 


23.05.042) to minimize these impacts.  When required, the plan is prepared by a civil engineer to address both 


temporary and long-term sedimentation and erosion impacts. To avoid certain impacts to biological 


resources, the project has also been required to provide a sedimentation and erosion control plan (Mitigation 


Measure BIO-4). Projects involving more than one acre of disturbance are subject to the preparation of a 


Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which focuses on controlling storm water runoff.  The 


Regional Water Quality Control Board is the local extension who monitors this program. When work is done 


in the rainy season, the County’s Land Use Ordinance requires that temporary erosion and sedimentation 


measures to be installed. A Stormwater Control Plan was prepared for the project (Civil Design Studio, March 


2020) and reviewed by the County’s Stormwater Program Manager. 
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Discussion 


(a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade 


surface or ground water quality? 


The project site is located adjacent to mouth of Cayucos Creek and project construction and operation 


could adversely affect the creek’s surface water quality. The runoff to the creek would go almost 


directly into the Pacific Ocean. The site features gentle slopes (average slope 7%) and soils classified 


as Hydrologic Soils Group “C”. Therefore, runoff is expected to be moderate to high. Through design, 


the project has minimized the potential for a substantial change to the volume or velocity of runoff 


leaving any point of the site. 


Through use of permeable surfaces where feasible, the introduction of a significant increase in 


impervious surface area has been avoided. A Stormwater Control Plan was prepared for the project 


(Civil Design Studio, March 2020) and reviewed by the County’s Stormwater Program Manager. 


Through the use of the provided Stormwater Control Plan and the incorporation of recommendations 


included in the County Stormwater Program Manager’s review letter, the project’s impacts to surface 


water or groundwater quality would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated. 


(b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that 


the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin? 


The project is not located within a groundwater basin designated as Level of Severity III per the 


County’s Resource Management System or in severe decline by the Sustainable Groundwater 


Management Act (SGMA). The project proposes use of the community water system and an Intent to 


Serve letter was issued by Cayucos Sanitary District on February 10, 2020. The project has been 


designed to incorporate permeable surfaces where feasible which would assist in groundwater 


recharge. The project would not substantially increase water demand, deplete groundwater supplies, 


or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge; therefore, the project would not interfere with 


sustainable management of the groundwater basin. Potential impacts associated with groundwater 


supplies would be less than significant. 


(c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the 


course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would: 


(c-i) Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 


As discussed in Section VII. Geology and Soils, the project has the potential to result in erosion. 


A Stormwater Control Plan was prepared for the project (Civil Design Studio, March 2020) and 


reviewed by the County’s Stormwater Program Manager and recommendations included in 


the County Stormwater Program Manager’s review letter have been added as project 


mitigation (HYDRO-1 and HYDRO-2). Additionally, to avoid certain impacts to biological 


resources, the project has also been required to provide a sedimentation and erosion control 


plan (Mitigation Measure BIO-4). Finally, the project’s Coastal Bluff Evaluation (Geo Solutions, 


March 2019) has made recommendations to avoid substantial drainage impacts and have 


been included as Mitigation Measure GEO-2. Therefore, the project’s impacts to erosion or 


siltation would be considered less than significant with mitigation. 
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(c-ii) Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in 


flooding on- or off-site? 


A Stormwater Control Plan was prepared for the project (Civil Design Studio, March 2020) and 


reviewed by the County’s Stormwater Program Manager and recommendations included in 


the County Stormwater Program Manager’s review letter have been added as project 


mitigation (HYDRO-1). Project design for on-site water retention was informed by the project’s 


Stormwater Control Plan and a drainage plan is required by ordinance. Therefore, the project’s 


impacts from surface runoff would be considered less than significant with mitigation. 


(c-iii) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 


stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 


A Stormwater Control Plan was prepared for the project (Civil Design Studio, March 2020) and 


reviewed by the County’s Stormwater Program Manager and recommendations included in 


the County Stormwater Program Manager’s review letter have been added as project 


mitigation (HYDRO-1).  The project would be required to submit additional documentation for 


the proposed private stormwater system at the time of construction permits. Project design 


for on-site water retention was informed by the project’s Stormwater Control Plan and a 


drainage plan is required by ordinance. Therefore, the project’s impacts to stormwater 


drainage systems would be considered less than significant with mitigation. 


(c-iv) Impede or redirect flood flows? 


Based on the County Flood Hazard Map, the project parcel is located within a 100-year flood 


zone, however the project has been designed to avoid placing structures within the estimated 


FEMA 100-year flood zone. Project design for on-site water retention was informed by the 


project’s Stormwater Control Plan and a drainage plan is required by ordinance. Based on the 


project’s siting, previously incorporated mitigation measures, and County ordinance 


standards, project impacts to flood flows are expected to be less than significant. 


(d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation? 


The project parcel is located within a 100-year flood zone. Based on the San Luis Obispo County 


Tsunami Inundation Maps, the project site is not located in an area with potential for inundation by a 


tsunami (DOC 2019). The project is located along a coastal bluff which currently experiences erosion 


from events like wave attack and weathering. The project has been designed to be constructed outside 


of the estimated FEMA 100-year flood zone and is required by ordinance to provide a drainage plan 


for County review and approval. Therefore, the project site is not expected to release pollutants due 


to project inundation and impacts would be less than significant.  


(e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater 


management plan? 


The project is not located within a groundwater basin designated as Level of Severity III per the 


County’s Resource Management System or in severe decline by SGMA. The project would not 


substantially increase water demand, deplete groundwater supplies, or interfere substantially with 


groundwater recharge. The project would not conflict with the Central Coastal Basin Plan, SGMA, or 


other local or regional plans or policies intended to manage water quality or groundwater supplies; 


therefore, no impacts would occur. 
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Conclusion 


Based on the proposed amount of water to be used and the water source, no significant impacts from water 


use are anticipated. The proposed project would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge 


requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or ground water quality. It would not substantially 


decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge.  


Through compliance with County Code standards, the requirements of the project’s Biological Resources 


Assessment, and incorporation of the required mitigation measures, the project would not substantially alter 


the existing drainage pattern of the site or area in a manner which would result in substantial erosion, 


siltation, surface runoff, or impede or redirect flood flows. The project would not risk release of pollutants 


due to project inundation or conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or 


sustainable groundwater management plan. 


Mitigation 


HYDRO-1 At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit additional 


documents required for private stormwater system operation and maintenance plan. The 


project is located within the County of San Luis Obispo Municipal Stormwater Management 


Area (MS4 Coverage Area) and compliance with the Central Coast Post-Construction 


Requirements (Resolution R3-2013-00032) is required. Based on the submitted Stormwater 


Control Plan, dated October 10, 2019, the project will qualify to meet Performance 


Requirement #3.  


 


HYDRO-2 At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall review the Standard 


Industrial Classification (SIC) Code to determine if the proposed project and proposed 


operation is a regulated industry. The proposed project and proposed operation may meet 


the criteria to require enrollment in the Industrial Stormwater General Permit (IGP) for 


Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities (Order 2014-0057-DWQ). Prior to issuance of 


any construction permit, if the proposed project or proposed operation is a regulated 


industry, the applicant shall provide verification of enrollment in the IGP by providing a Waste 


Discharge Identification Number to the County. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING 
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Less Than 


Significant 
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Would the project: 


(a) Physically divide an established 


community? 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
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Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(b) Cause a significant environmental 


impact due to a conflict with any land 


use plan, policy, or regulation adopted 


for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating 


an environmental effect? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


The CZLUO was established to guide and manage the future growth in the County in accordance with the 


General Plan, to regulate land use in a manner that will encourage and support orderly development and 


beneficial use of lands, to minimize adverse effects on the public resulting from inappropriate creation, 


location, use or design of buildings or land uses, and to protect and enhance significant natural, historic, 


archeological, and scenic resources within the county. The CZLUO is the primary tool used by the County to 


carry out the goals, objectives, and policies of the County General Plan.  


The County Land Use Element (LUE) provides policies and standards for the management of growth and 


development in each unincorporated community and rural areas of the county and serves as a reference 


point and guide for future land use planning studies throughout the county. The LUE identifies strategic 


growth principles to define and focus the county’s pro-active planning approach and balance environmental, 


economic, and social equity concerns. Each strategic growth principle correlates with a set of policies and 


implementation strategies that define how land will be used and resources protected. The LUE also defines 


each of the 14 land use designations and identifies standards for land uses based on the designation they are 


located within.  


The project is within the Recreation land use category and is surrounded by parcels in the Recreation or 


Residential Multi-Family land use categories. The project is located in the Coastal Zone, in the Estero Planning 


Area, and in the unincorporated community of Cayucos. 


Discussion 


(a) Physically divide an established community? 


The project does not propose project elements or components that would physically divide the site 


from surrounding areas and uses. The project would be consistent with the general level of 


development within the project vicinity and would not create, close, or impede any existing public or 


private roads, or create any other barriers to movement or accessibility within the community. 


Therefore, the proposed project would not physically divide an established community and no impacts 


would occur.  


(b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation 


adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect? 


The project would be consistent with the property’s land use designation and the guidelines and 


policies for development within the applicable area plan, CZLUO, and the COSE. The project is 


designed to be consistent with existing surrounding developments and does not impact sensitive on-


site resources; therefore, the project would not conflict with policies or regulations adopted for the 
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purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental effects. The project would be consistent with existing 


land uses and designations for the proposed site and, therefore, would not conflict with any applicable 


land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating environmental 


effects. Impacts would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would be consistent with local and regional land use designations, plans, and policies and would 


not divide an established community. Therefore, potential impacts related to land use and planning would be 


less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XII. MINERAL RESOURCES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Result in the loss of availability of a 


known mineral resource that would be 


of value to the region and the residents 


of the state? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


(b) Result in the loss of availability of a 


locally- important mineral resource 


recovery site delineated on a local 


general plan, specific plan or other land 


use plan? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


The California Surface Mining and Reclamation Act of 1975 (SMARA) requires that the State Geologist classify 


land into mineral resource zones (MRZ) according to the known or inferred mineral potential of the land 


(Public Resources Code Sections 2710–2796).   


The three MRZs used in the SMARA classification-designation process in the San Luis Obispo-Santa Barbara 


Production-Consumption Region are defined below (California Geological Survey 2011a): 


• MRZ-1: Areas where available geologic information indicates that little likelihood exists for the 


presence of significant mineral resources. 


• MRZ-2: Areas where adequate information indicates that significant mineral deposits are present, or 


where it is judged that a high likelihood for their presence exists.  This zone shall be applied to known 
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mineral deposits or where well-developed lines of reasoning, based upon economic-geologic 


principles and adequate data, demonstrate that the likelihood for occurrence of significant mineral 


deposits is high.  


• MRZ-3: Areas containing known or inferred aggregate resources of undetermined significance. 


The County CZLUO provides regulations for development in delineated Energy and Extractive Resource Areas 


(EX).  The EX combining designation is used to identify areas of the county where: 


1. Mineral or petroleum extraction occurs or is proposed to occur; 


2. The state geologist has designated a mineral resource area of statewide or regional significance 


pursuant to PRC Sections 2710 et seq. (SMARA); and, 


3. Major public utility electric generation facilities exist or are proposed. 


The purpose of this combining designation is to protect significant resource extraction and energy production 


areas identified by the County LUE from encroachment by incompatible land uses that could hinder resource 


extraction or energy production operations, or land uses that would be adversely affected by extraction or 


energy production. 


Discussion 


(a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the 


residents of the state? 


The project is not located within a designated mineral resource zone or within an Extractive Resource 


Area combining designation. There are no known mineral resources in the project area; therefore, no 


impacts would occur.  


(b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally- important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local 


general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 


There are no known or mapped mineral resources in the project area and the likelihood of future 


mining of important resources within the project area is very low. Therefore no impacts would occur.  


Conclusion 


No impacts to mineral resources would occur and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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XIII. NOISE 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project result in: 


(a) Generation of a substantial temporary 


or permanent increase in ambient noise 


levels in the vicinity of the project in 


excess of standards established in the 


local general plan or noise ordinance, or 


applicable standards of other agencies? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Generation of excessive groundborne 


vibration or groundborne noise levels? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) For a project located within the vicinity 


of a private airstrip or an airport land 


use plan or, where such a plan has not 


been adopted, within two miles of a 


public airport or public use airport, 


would the project expose people 


residing or working in the project area to 


excessive noise levels? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


The San Luis Obispo County Noise Element of the General Plan provides a policy framework for addressing 


potential noise impacts in the planning process. The purpose of the Noise Element is to minimize future noise 


conflicts. The Noise Element identifies the major noise sources in the county (highways and freeways, primary 


arterial roadways and major local streets, railroad operations, aircraft and airport operations, local industrial 


facilities, and other stationary sources) and includes goals, policies, and implementation programs to reduce 


future noise impacts. Among the most significant polices of the Noise Element are numerical noise standards 


that limit noise exposure within noise-sensitive land uses, and performance standards for new commercial 


and industrial uses that might adversely impact noise-sensitive land uses. 


Noise sensitive uses that have been identified by the County include the following: 


• Residential development, except temporary dwellings 


• Schools – preschool to secondary, college and university, specialized education and training 


• Health care services (e.g., hospitals, clinics, etc.) 


• Nursing and personal care 


• Churches 


• Public assembly and entertainment 


• Libraries and museums 


• Hotels and motels 
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• Bed and breakfast facilities 


• Outdoor sports and recreation 


• Offices  


All sound levels referred to in the Noise Element are expressed in A-weighted decibels (dB).  A-weighting de-


emphasizes the very low and very high frequencies of sound in a manner similar to the human ear.  


The existing ambient noise environment of the project site is characterized by light traffic on North Ocean 


Avenue. The nearest existing off-site noise-sensitive land uses are residential condominiums westwardly 


adjacent of the project site and the mobile home park located just north of the project site, across North 


Ocean Avenue. Additional residences as well as Cayucos Elementary School exist within one mile of the 


project site. Additionally, the properties south and east of the project site are used for outdoor recreation 


and beach access. The project site is not located within an Airport Review Area. 


Discussion 


(a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the 


project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 


standards of other agencies? 


The County of San Luis Obispo CZLUO establishes acceptable standards for exterior and interior noise 


levels and describe how noise shall be measured. Exterior noise level standards are applicable when 


a land use affected by noise is one of the sensitive uses listed in the Noise Element. Exterior noise 


levels are measured from the property line of the affected noise-sensitive land use. 


Table 3. Maximum allowable exterior noise level standards(1) 


Sound Levels 
Daytime  


7 a.m. to 10 p.m. 
Nighttime (2) 


Hourly Equivalent 


Sound Level (Leq, dB) 
50 45 


Maximum level, dB 70 65 


(1) When the receiving noise-sensitive land use is outdoor sports and recreation, the noise level 


standards are increased by 10 db. 


(2) Applies only to uses that operate or are occupied during nighttime hours 


The County CZLUO noise standards are subject to a range of exceptions, including noise sources 


associated with construction, provided such activities do not take place before 7 a.m. or after 9 p.m. 


on weekdays, or before 8 a.m. or after 5 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday. Noise associated with 


agricultural land uses (as listed in Section 23.06.040), traffic on public roadways, railroad line 


operations, and aircraft in flight are also exempt. 


Project construction would result in a temporary increase in noise levels associated with construction 


activities, equipment, and vehicle trips. Construction noise would be variable, temporary, and limited 


in nature and duration. The County CZLUO requires that construction activities be conducted during 


daytime hours to be able to utilize County construction noise exception standards and that 


construction equipment be equipped with appropriate mufflers recommended by the manufacturer. 
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Compliance with these standards would ensure short-term construction noise would be less than 


significant. 


The project does not propose any uses or features that would generate a significant permanent 


source of mobile or stationary noise sources. No events are proposed as part of the project. Ambient 


noise levels at the project site and in surrounding areas after project implementation would not be 


significantly different than existing levels. Therefore, potential operational noise impacts would be 


less than significant.  


Based on the limited nature of construction activities, and the consistency of the proposed use with 


existing and surrounding uses, impacts associated with the generation of a substantial temporary or 


permanent increase in ambient noise levels would be less than significant.  


(b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? 


The project does not propose substantial grading/earthmoving activities, pile driving, or other high 


impact activities that would generate substantial groundborne noise or groundborne vibration during 


construction. Construction equipment has the potential to generate minor groundborne noise and/or 


vibration, but these activities would be limited in duration and are not likely to be perceptible from 


adjacent areas. The project does not propose a use that would generate long-term operational 


groundborne noise or vibration. Therefore, impacts related to exposure of persons to or generation 


of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels would be less than significant. 


(c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a 


plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project 


expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 


The project site is not located within or adjacent to an airport land use plan or within 2 miles of a 


public airport or private airstrip; therefore, no impact would occur. 


Conclusion 


Short-term construction activities would be limited in nature and duration and conducted during daytime 


periods per County CZLUO standards. No long-term operational noise or ground vibration would occur as a 


result of the project. Therefore, potential impacts related to noise would be less than significant and no 


mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Induce substantial unplanned 


population growth in an area, either 


directly (for example, by proposing new 


homes and businesses) or indirectly (for 


example, through extension of roads or 


other infrastructure)? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 


people or housing, necessitating the 


construction of replacement housing 


elsewhere? 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 


Setting 


The County of San Luis Obispo General Plan Housing Element recognizes the difficulty for residents to find 


suitable and affordable housing within San Luis Obispo County. The Housing Element includes an analysis of 


vacant and underutilized land located in urban areas that is suitable for residential development and 


considers zoning provisions and development standards to encourage development of these areas. 


Consistent with State housing element laws, these areas are categorized into potential sites for very low- and 


low-income households, moderate-income households, and above moderate-income households.  


The County’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance requires the provision of new affordable housing in conjunction 


with both residential and nonresidential development and subdivisions. In its efforts to provide for affordable 


housing, the County currently administers the Home Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program and the 


Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, which provides limited financing to projects relating 


to affordable housing throughout the county. 


The area surrounding the project site to the north, northeast, and west is primarily developed with residences. 


Discussion 


(a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new 


homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 


The project does not include the construction of new homes or businesses or the extension or 


establishment of roads, utilities, or other infrastructure that would induce development and 


population growth in new areas. The project is for a small boutique hotel with only 16 rooms available 


and would not generate a substantial number of new employment opportunities that would 


encourage population growth in the area. Therefore, the project would not directly or indirectly induce 


substantial growth and impacts would be less than significant.  
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(b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement 


housing elsewhere? 


The project would not displace existing housing or necessitate the construction of replacement 


housing elsewhere; therefore, no impacts would occur 


Conclusion 


No impacts to population and housing would occur and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XV. PUBLIC SERVICES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(a) Would the project result in substantial 


adverse physical impacts associated 


with the provision of new or physically 


altered governmental facilities, need for 


new or physically altered governmental 


facilities, the construction of which could 


cause significant environmental impacts, 


in order to maintain acceptable service 


ratios, response times or other 


performance objectives for any of the 


public services: 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Schools? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Parks? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


Fire protection services in unincorporated San Luis Obispo County are provided by the California Department 


of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE), which has been under contract with the County of San Luis Obispo 


to provide full-service fire protection since 1930. Approximately 180 full-time state employees operate the 
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County Fire Department, supplemented by as many as 100 state seasonal fire fighters, 300 County paid-call 


and reserve fire fighters, and 120 state inmate fire fighters. CAL FIRE responds to emergencies and other 


requests for assistance, plans for and takes action to prevent emergencies and to reduce their impact, 


coordinates regional emergency response efforts, and provides public education and training in local 


communities. CAL FIRE has 24 fire stations located throughout the county.  


The project would be served by County Fire Station #16 – Estero Bay, located approximately 0.2 miles to the 


northeast of the project site. Based on the County’s response time map, it will take approximately 0-5 minutes 


to respond to a call regarding fire or life safety. 


Police protection and emergency services in the unincorporated portions of the county are provided by the 


San Luis Obispo County Sheriff’s Office. The Sheriff’s Office Patrol Division responds to calls for service, 


conducts proactive law enforcement activities, and performs initial investigations of crimes. Patrol personnel 


are deployed from three stations throughout the county, the Coast Station in Los Osos, the North Station in 


Templeton, and the South Station in Oceano.  


The nearest sheriff station is the Los Osos substation, located approximately 10.2 miles to the south of the 


project site. 


San Luis Obispo County has a total of 12 school districts that currently enroll approximately 34,000 students 


in over 75 schools. The project is within the Cayucos School District, which includes one elementary school. 


Within the County’s unincorporated areas, there are currently 23 parks, three golf courses, four trails/staging 


areas, and eight Special Areas that include natural areas, coastal access, and historic facilities currently 


operated and maintained by the County.  


The project is located within the Community of Cayucos which supports several parks and recreational areas. 


Public facilities fees, Quimby fees, and developer conditions are several ways the County currently funds 


public services. A public facility fee program (i.e., development impact fee program) has been adopted to 


address impacts related to public facilities (county) and schools (State Government Code 65995 et seq.). The 


fee amounts are assessed annually by the County based on the type of proposed development and the 


development’s proportional impact and are collected at the time of building permit issuance. Public facility 


fees are used as needed to finance the construction of and/or improvements to public facilities required to 


the serve new development, including fire protection, law enforcement, schools, parks, and roads. 


Discussion 


(a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or 


physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the 


construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 


service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 


Fire protection? 


The project would be required to comply with all fire safety rules and regulations including the 


California Fire Code and Public Resources Code prior to issuance of building permits. Based on the 


limited nature of development proposed, the project would not result in a significant increase in 


demand for fire protection services. The project would be served by existing fire protection services 


and would not result in the need for new or altered fire protection services or facilities. In addition, 


the project would be subject to development impact fees to offset the project’s contribution to 


demand for fire protection services. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 
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Police protection? 


The project does not propose a new use or activity that would require additional police services above 


what is normally provided for similar surrounding land uses. The project would not result in a 


significant increase in demand for police protection services and would not result in the need for new 


or altered police protection services or facilities. In addition, the project would be subject to 


development impact fees to offset the project’s contribution to demand on law enforcement services. 


Therefore, impacts related to police services would be less than significant. 


Schools? 


As discussed in Section XIV. Population and Housing, the project would not induce a substantial 


increase in population growth and would not result in the need for additional school services or 


facilities to serve new student populations. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant.  


Parks? 


As discussed in Section XIV. Population and Housing, the project would not induce a substantial 


increase in population growth and would not result in the need for additional parks or recreational 


services or facilities to serve new populations. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than 


significant.  


Other public facilities? 


As discussed above, the proposed project would be subject to applicable fees to offset negligible 


increased demands on public facilities; therefore, impacts related to other public facilities would be 


less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project does not propose development that would substantially increase demands on public services and 


would not induce population growth that would substantially increase demands on public services. The 


project would be subject to payment of development impact fees to reduce the project’s negligible 


contribution to increased demands on public services and facilities. Therefore, potential impacts related to 


public services would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary.  


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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XVI. RECREATION 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(a) Would the project increase the use of 


existing neighborhood and regional 


parks or other recreational facilities such 


that substantial physical deterioration of 


the facility would occur or be 


accelerated? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Does the project include recreational 


facilities or require the construction or 


expansion of recreational facilities which 


might have an adverse physical effect on 


the environment? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


The County of San Luis Obispo Parks and Recreation Element (Recreation Element) establishes goals, policies, 


and implementation measures for the management, renovation, and expansion of existing, and the 


development of new, parks and recreation facilities in order to meet existing and projected needs and to 


assure an equitable distribution of parks throughout the county. According to the Recreation Element, the 


project site is located within the Hardie Park proposed trail corridor. 


Public facilities fees, Quimby fees, and developer conditions are several ways the County currently funds 


public parks and recreational facilities. Public facility fees are collected upon construction of new residential 


units and currently provide funding for new community-serving recreation facilities. Quimby Fees are 


collected when new residential lots are created and can be used to expand, acquire, rehabilitate, or develop 


community-serving parks. Finally, a discretionary permit issued by the County may condition a project to 


provide land, amenities, or facilities consistent with the Recreation Element.  


The County Bikeways Plan identifies and prioritizes bikeway facilities throughout the unincorporated area of 


the county, including bikeways, parking, connections with public transportation, educational programs, and 


funding. The Bikeways Plan is updated every 5 years and was last updated in 2016. The plan identifies goals, 


policies, and procedures geared towards realizing significant bicycle use as a key component of the 


transportation options for San Luis Obispo County residents. The plan also includes descriptions of bikeway 


design and improvement standards, an inventory of the current bicycle circulation network, and a list of 


current and future bikeway projects within the county.  


Discussion 


(a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational 


facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 


The project would not result in a substantial growth within the area and would not substantially 


increase demand on any proximate existing neighborhood or regional park or other recreational 


facilities. Payment of standard development impact fees would ensure any incremental increase in 


use of existing parks and recreational facilities would be reduced to less than significant.  
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(b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational 


facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 


The project includes the construction of a public coastal access way as well as sidewalk and bike lane 


improvements along North Ocean Avenue. The project is for a small boutique hotel with only 16 


rooms available and would not generate a substantial number of new visitors to the area. Installation 


of project improvements would not result in a substantial increase in demand or use of parks and 


recreational facilities. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would not result in the significant increase in use, construction, or expansion of parks or 


recreational facilities. Therefore, potential impacts related to recreation would be less than significant and no 


mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XVII. TRANSPORTATION 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance 


or policy addressing the circulation 


system, including transit, roadway, 


bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Would the project conflict or be 


inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines 


section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Substantially increase hazards due to a 


geometric design feature (e.g., sharp 


curves or dangerous intersections) or 


incompatible uses (e.g., farm 


equipment)? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


The County Department of Public Works maintains updated traffic count data for all County-maintained 


roadways. In addition, Traffic Circulation Studies have been conducted within several community areas using 
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traffic models to reasonably simulate current traffic flow patterns and forecast future travel demands and 


traffic flow patterns. These community Traffic Circulation Studies include the South County Circulation Study, 


Los Osos Circulation Study, Templeton Circulation Study, San Miguel Circulation Study, Avila Circulation Study, 


and North Coast Circulation Study. The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) maintains annual 


traffic data on state highways and interchanges within the county.  


The project site would be accessed off North Ocean Avenue a County maintained two lane road. 


In 2013, Senate Bill 743 was signed into law with the intent to “more appropriately balance the needs of 


congestion management with statewide goals related to infill development, promotion of public health 


through active transportation, and reduction of greenhouse gas emissions” and required the Governor’s 


Office of Planning and Research (OPR) to identify new metrics for identifying and mitigating transportation 


impacts within CEQA. As a result, in December 2018, the California Natural Resources Agency certified and 


adopted updates to the State CEQA Guidelines. The revisions included new requirements related to the 


implementation of Senate Bill 743 and identified vehicle miles traveled (VMT) per capita, VMT per employee, 


and net VMT as new metrics for transportation analysis under CEQA (as detailed in Section 15064.3 [b]). 


Beginning July 1, 2020, the newly adopted VMT criteria for determining significance of transportation impacts 


must be implemented statewide.  


The San Luis Obispo Council of Governments (SLOCOG) holds several key roles in transportation planning 


within the county. As the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA), SLOCOG is responsible for 


conducting a comprehensive, coordinated transportation program, preparation of a Regional Transportation 


Plan (RTP), programming of state funds for transportation projects, and the administration and allocation of 


transportation development act funds required by state statutes. As the Metropolitan Planning Organization 


(MPO), SLOCOG is also responsible for all transportation planning and programming activities required under 


federal law. This includes development of long-range transportation plans and funding programs, and the 


approval of transportation projects using federal funds. 


The 2019 RTP, adopted June 5, 2019, is a long-term blueprint of San Luis Obispo County’s transportation 


system. The plan identifies and analyzes transportation needs of the region and creates a framework for 


project priorities. SLOCOG represents and works with the County of San Luis Obispo as well as the Cities 


within the county in facilitating the development of the RTP. 


The County Department of Public Works establishes bicycle paths and lanes in coordination with the RTP, 


which outlines how the region can establish an extensive bikeway network. County bikeway facilities are 


funded by state grants, local general funds, and developer contributions. The RTP also establishes goals and 


recommendations to develop, promote, and invest in the public transit systems, rail systems, air services, 


harbor improvements, and commodity movements within the county in order to meet the needs of transit-


dependent individuals and encourage the increasing use of alternative modes by all travelers that choose 


public transportation. Local transit systems are presently in operation in the cities of Morro Bay and San Luis 


Obispo, and South County services are offered to Grover Beach, Arroyo Grande, Pismo Beach, and Oceano. 


Dial-a-ride systems provide intra-community transit in Morro Bay, Atascadero, and Los Osos. Inter-urban 


systems operate between the City of San Luis Obispo and South County, Los Osos, and the North Coast.  


The existing road network in the area including the project’s access street—North Ocean Ave—are operating 


at acceptable levels. Based on existing road speeds and configuration (vertical and horizontal road curves), 


sight distance is considered acceptable. The proposed project is not located within a quarter mile buffer of a 


railroad crossing. 
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A Trip Generation Memorandum as well as an Updated Trip Generation Memorandum were prepared for the 


project by Central Coast Transportation Consulting in March of 2019 and , March of 2020 respectively. These 


memorandums outline the estimated number of trips to be generated by the project and propose 


recommendations for site access based on known site distance constraints. 


Discussion 


(a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, 


roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 


Per standards outlined in the Estero Area Plan, the project is required to construct or maintain a Class 


II bike lane and a pedestrian walkway adjacent to Ocean Avenue. The project does not propose the 


substantial temporary or long-term alteration of any proximate transportation facilities. Marginal 


increases in traffic can be accommodated by existing local streets and the project would not result in 


any long-term changes in traffic or circulation. The project does not propose uses that would interfere 


or conflict with applicable policies related to circulation, transit, roadway, bicycle, or pedestrian 


systems or facilities. The project would be consistent with the County Framework for Planning 


(Coastal) and consistent with the projected level of growth and development identified in the 2019 


RTP. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(b) Would the project conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 


The County of San Luis Obispo has developed a model for determining potential increases in vehicle 


miles traveled (VMT) for proposed projects. The County model makes use of the suggested screening 


thresholds outlined by the Office of Planning and Research (“OPR”) in their Technical Advisory on 


Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA from December of 2018. These include screening 


thresholds for small projects, office and residential projects, projects near transit stations, and 


affordable residential development projects. The project was unable to be screened out using these 


thresholds, including the threshold for small projects which states that projects that generate or 


attract fewer than 110 trips per day generally may be assumed to cause a less-than significant 


transportation impact.  


The project’s potential VMT impacts have been calculated using the County’s Thresholds of 


Significance and Sketch VMT tool – an estimation tool designed to calculate potential changes in VMT 


from a proposed development, based on the SLOCOG Regional Travel Demand Model. The Threshold 


of Significance for retail and other projects is no net increase in VMT. The Sketch tool calculated a total 


change in VMT of negative 0.02%, indicating that the project would be expected to net decrease. This 


reduction in VMT is likely due the location of the project in an existing community and close to the 


community’s central business district. The hotel is a visitor-serving use that would accommodate 


existing demand in the area.  


The project falls below the County’s Threshold of Significance; therefore, impacts would be less than 


significant. 


(c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 


intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 


The project would result in minimal alterations to the portion of North Ocean Avenue which lines the 


site and does not include geometric design features that would create new hazards or an incompatible 


use. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 
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(d) Result in inadequate emergency access? 


The project would not result in road closures during short-term construction activities or long-term 


operations. Individual access to adjacent properties would be maintained during construction 


activities and throughout the project area. Project implementation would not affect long-term access 


through the project area and sufficient alternative access exists to accommodate regional trips. 


Therefore, the project would not adversely affect existing emergency access and impacts would be 


less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would make minor alterations to existing transportation infrastructure and would result in the 


generation of additional trips or vehicle miles traveled. Incorporation of pedestrian and bicycle 


improvements, a manager’s unit to minimize employee trips generated, and the project’s location adjacent to 


the Cayucos central business district would reduce impacts related to an increase in trip generation to less 


than significant levels. Payment of standard development fees and compliance with existing regulations 


would ensure potential impacts were reduced to less than significant. Therefore, potential impacts related to 


transportation would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are necessary.  


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(a) Would the project cause a substantial 


adverse change in the significance of a 


tribal cultural resource, defined in Public 


Resources Code section 21074 as either 


a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 


that is geographically defined in terms of 


the size and scope of the landscape, 


sacred place, or object with cultural 


value to a California Native American 


tribe, and that is: 


    


(i) Listed or eligible for listing in the 


California Register of Historical 


Resources, or in a local register of 


historical resources as defined in 


Public Resources Code section 


5020.1(k), or 


☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
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Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(ii) A resource determined by the lead 


agency, in its discretion and 


supported by substantial evidence, 


to be significant pursuant to 


criteria set forth in subdivision (c) 


of Public Resources Code Section 


5024.1. In applying the criteria set 


forth in subdivision (c) of Public 


Resource Code Section 5024.1, the 


lead agency shall consider the 


significance of the resource to a 


California Native American tribe. 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


Approved in 2014, Assembly Bill 52 (AB 52) added tribal cultural resources to the categories of resources 


that must be evaluated under CEQA. Tribal cultural resources are defined as either of the following: 


Sites, features, cultural landscapes, sacred places, and objects with cultural value to a California Native 


American tribe that are either of the following: 


• Included or determined to be eligible for inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources; 


or  


• Included in a local register of historical resources as defined in subdivision (k) of California Public 


Resources Code Section 5020.1. 


A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be 


significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of California Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. 


In applying these criteria for the purposes of this paragraph, the lead agency shall consider the significance 


of the resource to a California Native American Tribe. 


AB 52 consultation letters were sent on January 13, 2020 to four tribes: Northern Chumash Tribal Council, 


Salinan Tribe of San Luis Obispo and Monterey Counties, Xolon Salinan Tribe, and yak tityu tityu yak tiłhini. 


On January 21, 2020 Fred Collins replied on behalf of the Northern Chumash Tribal Council, indicating no 


comments. 
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Discussion 


(a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, 


defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is 


geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with 


cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 


(a-i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of 


historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)? 


The proposed project does not contain any known tribal cultural resources that have been 


listed or are eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 


register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k). 


Therefore, no impacts to listed or eligible tribal cultural resources would occur. 


(a-ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, 


to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 


5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, 


the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American 


tribe. 


In the unlikely event resources are uncovered during grading activities, CZLUO Section 


23.05.140 (Archaeological Resources) requires that, in the event archaeological resources are 


encountered during project construction, construction activities cease, and the County 


Planning Department be notified of the discovery. If human remains are exposed during 


construction, construction shall halt around the discovery of human remains, the area shall 


be protected, and consultation and treatment shall occur as prescribed by State law. The 


County’s Coroner and Sheriff Department shall be notified immediately to comply with State 


Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, which states that no further disturbance shall occur 


until the County Coroner has been notified and can make the necessary findings as to origin 


and disposition of the remains. If the remains are determined to be Native American, the 


Coroner will notify the NAHC and the remains will be treated in accordance with Public 


Resources Code Section 5097.98. Adherence to CZLUO Section 23.05.140, the State Health and 


Safety Code Section 7050.5 and Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, potential impacts to 


tribal cultural resources would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


No tribal cultural resources are known or expected to occur within or adjacent to the project site. In the event 


unanticipated sensitive resources are discovered during project activities, adherence with County CZLUO 


standards and State Health and Safety Code procedures would reduce potential impacts to less than 


significant; therefore, potential impacts to tribal cultural resources would be less than significant and no 


mitigation measures are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


Would the project: 


(a) Require or result in the relocation or 


construction of new or expanded water, 


wastewater treatment or storm water 


drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 


telecommunications facilities, the 


construction or relocation of which 


could cause significant environmental 


effects? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Have sufficient water supplies available 


to serve the project and reasonably 


foreseeable future development during 


normal, dry and multiple dry years? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Result in a determination by the 


wastewater treatment provider which 


serves or may serve the project that it 


has adequate capacity to serve the 


project’s projected demand in addition 


to the provider’s existing commitments? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Generate solid waste in excess of State 


or local standards, or in excess of the 


capacity of local infrastructure, or 


otherwise impair the attainment of solid 


waste reduction goals? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(e) Comply with federal, state, and local 


management and reduction statutes 


and regulations related to solid waste? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


The County Public Works Department provides water and wastewater services for specific County Service 


Areas (CSAs) that are managed through issuance of water/wastewater “will serve” letters. The Department of 


Public Works currently maintains CSAs for the communities of Nipomo, Oak Shores, Cayucos, Avila Beach, 


Shandon, the San Luis Obispo County Club, and Santa Margarita. Other unincorporated areas in the County 


rely on on-site wells and individual wastewater systems. Regulatory standards and design criteria for onsite 


wastewater treatment systems are provided by the Water Quality Control Policy for Siting, Design, Operation, 


and Maintenance of Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems (California OWTS Policy).  
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Per the County’s Stormwater Program, the Public Works Department is responsible for ensuring that new 


construction sites implement best management practices during construction, and that site plans incorporate 


appropriate post-construction stormwater runoff controls. Construction sites that disturb 1.0 acre or more 


must obtain coverage under the SWRCB’s Construction General Permit. Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) 


is the primary electricity provider and both PG&E and Southern California Gas Company provide natural gas 


services for urban and rural communities within the County of San Luis Obispo. The project would get its 


water from a community water system. Cayucos Beach Mutual Water Company has provided a letter 


indicating their willingness to provide the project with an official Will-Serve letter upon payment of applicable 


fees. The project’s solid waste needs would be served by Cayucos Sanitary District. 


Discussion 


(a) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of existing 


facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 


The project would not result in a substantial increase in demand on water, wastewater, or stormwater 


collection, treatment, or disposal facilities and would not require the construction of new or expanded 


water, wastewater, or stormwater facilities. The project would not result in a substantial increase in 


energy demand, natural gas, or telecommunications; no new or expanded facilities would be required.  


No utility relocations are proposed. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.   


(b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development 


during normal, dry and multiple dry years? 


The project would be consistent with existing and planned levels and types of development in the 


project area and Cayucos Beach Mutual Water Company has provided a letter indicating their 


willingness to provide the project with an official Will-Serve letter upon payment of applicable fees. 


Short-term construction activities would require minimal amounts of water, which would be met 


through available existing supplies or small amounts of transported water. Operational water 


demands would not be more than those capable of being met by the project’s water purveyor. 


Therefore, potential impacts on water supplies would be less than significant.  


(c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that 


it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the provider’s existing 


commitments? 


The project would not substantially increase demands on existing wastewater collection, treatment, 


and disposal facilities. The project received an Intent to Serve letter from the Cayucos Sanitary district 


stating their intention to serve the property. Additional conditions for service will be included in the 


District’s Conditional Sewer Will-Serve letter, to be issued prior to the issuance of construction permits. 


The project will be required to meet these conditions prior to issuance of construction permit and, 


therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 


(d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, 


or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals? 


Construction activities would result in the generation of minimal solid waste materials; no significant 


long-term increase in solid waste would occur. Local landfills have adequate permit capacity to serve 


the project and the project does not propose to generate solid waste in excess of State or local 
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standards or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals. Therefore, potential 


impacts would be less than significant. 


(e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid 


waste? 


The project would not result in a substantial increase in waste generation during project construction 


or operation. Construction waste disposal would comply with federal, state, and local management 


and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste. Therefore, potential impacts would be 


less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would not result in significant increased demands on water, wastewater, or stormwater 


infrastructure and facilities. No substantial increase in solid waste generation would occur. Therefore, 


potential impacts to utilities and service systems would be less than significant and no mitigation measures 


are necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 


 


XX. WILDFIRE 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project: 


(a) Substantially impair an adopted 


emergency response plan or emergency 


evacuation plan? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and 


other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, 


and thereby expose project occupants 


to, pollutant concentrations from a 


wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a 


wildfire? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 
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Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(c) Require the installation or maintenance 


of associated infrastructure (such as 


roads, fuel breaks, emergency water 


sources, power lines or other utilities) 


that may exacerbate fire risk or that may 


result in temporary or ongoing impacts 


to the environment? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(d) Expose people or structures to 


significant risks, including downslope or 


downstream flooding or landslides, as a 


result of runoff, post-fire slope 


instability, or drainage changes? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Setting 


In central California, the fire season usually extends from roughly May through October, however, recent 


events indicate that wildfire behavior, frequency, and duration of the fire season are changing in California. 


Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ) are defined by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 


(CALFIRE) based on the presence of fire-prone vegetation, climate, topography, assets at risk (e.g., high 


population centers), and a fire protection agency’s ability to provide service to the area (CAL FIRE 2007). FHSZs 


throughout the County have been designated as “Very High,” “High,” or “Moderate.” In San Luis Obispo County, 


most of the area that has been designated as a “Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone” is located in the Santa 


Lucia Mountains, which extend parallel to the coast along the entire length of San Luis Obispo County. The 


Moderate Hazard designation does not mean the area cannot experience a damaging fire; rather, it indicates 


that the probability is reduced, generally because the number of days a year that the area has “fire weather” 


is less than in high or very high fire severity zones. The project is not located within a high fire hazard severity 


zone, and, based on the County’s response time map, it will take approximately 0-5 minutes to respond to a 


call regarding fire or life safety. 


The County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) addresses several overall policy and coordination functions 


related to emergency management.  The EOP includes the following components: 


• Identifies the departments and agencies designated to perform response and recovery activities and 


specifies tasks they must accomplish; 


• Outlines the integration of assistance that is available to local jurisdictions during disaster situations 


that generate emergency response and recovery needs beyond what the local jurisdiction can satisfy; 


• Specifies the direction, control, and communications procedures and systems that will be relied upon 


to alert, notify, recall, and dispatch emergency response personnel, alert the public, protect residents 


and property, and request aid/support from other jurisdictions and/or the federal government; 


• Identifies key continuity of government operations; and 


• Describes the overall logistical support process for planned operations. 
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Topography influences wildland fire to such an extent that slope conditions can often become a critical 


wildland fire factor. Conditions such as speed and direction of dominant wind patterns, the length and 


steepness of slopes, direction of exposure, and/or overall ruggedness of terrain influence the potential 


intensity and behavior of wildland fires and/or the rates at which they may spread (Barros et al. 2013).  


The County of San Luis Obispo Safety Element establishes goals, policies, and programs to reduce the threat 


to life, structures, and the environment caused by fire. Policy S-13 identifies that new development should be 


carefully located, with special attention given to fuel management in higher fire risk areas, and that new 


development in fire hazard areas should be configured to minimize the potential for added danger. 


Implementation strategies for this policy include identifying high risk areas, the development and 


implementation of mitigation efforts to reduce the threat of fire, requiring fire resistant material to be used 


for building construction in fire hazard areas, and encouraging applicants applying for subdivisions in fire 


hazard areas to cluster development to allow for a wildfire protection zone.  


The California Fire Code provides minimum standards for many aspects of fire prevention and suppression 


activities. These standards include provisions for emergency vehicle access, water supply, fire protection 


systems, and the use of fire resistant building materials.  


The County has prepared an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) to outline the emergency measures that are 


essential for protecting the public health and safety. These measures include, but are not limited to, public 


alert and notifications, emergency public information, and protective actions. The EOP also addresses policy 


and coordination related to emergency management.  


Discussion 


(a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 


Implementation of the proposed project would not have a permanent impact on any adopted 


emergency response plans or emergency evacuation plans. Temporary construction activities and 


staging would not substantially alter existing circulation patterns or trips. Access to adjacent areas 


would be maintained throughout the duration of the project. There are adequate alternative routes 


available to accommodate any rerouted trips through the project area for the short-term construction 


period. Therefore, the project would not substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan 


or emergency evacuation plan. Potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project 


occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 


The project site is generally flat and does not contain substantial vegetation. Proposed uses would not 


significantly increase or exacerbate potential fire risks and the project does not propose any design 


elements that would exacerbate risks and expose project occupants to pollutant concentrations from 


a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of wildfire. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than 


significant.  


(c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency 


water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary 


or ongoing impacts to the environment? 


The project would not require the installation or maintenance of utility or wildfire protection 


infrastructure and would not exacerbate fire risk or result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the 
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environment as a result of the development of wildfire prevention, protection, and/or management 


techniques. Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant. 


(d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, 


as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes? 


The project site is generally flat and would not be located near a hillslope or in an area subject to 


downstream flooding or landslides. The project site is not in a high or very high wildfire risk area and 


does not include any design elements that would expose people or structures to significant risks, 


including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 


instability, or drainage changes. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant. 


Conclusion 


The project would not expose people or structures to new or exacerbated wildfire risks and would not require 


the development of new or expanded infrastructure or maintenance to reduce wildfire risks. Therefore, 


potential impacts associated with wildfire would be less than significant and no mitigation measures are 


necessary. 


Mitigation 


None necessary. 


Sources 


See Exhibit A. 
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XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 


 


Potentially 


Significant 


Impact 


Less Than 


Significant 


with 


Mitigation 


Incorporated 


Less Than 


Significant 


Impact No Impact 


(a) Does the project have the potential to 


substantially degrade the quality of the 


environment, substantially reduce the 


habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause 


a fish or wildlife population to drop 


below self-sustaining levels, threaten to 


eliminate a plant or animal community, 


substantially reduce the number or 


restrict the range of a rare or 


endangered plant or animal or eliminate 


important examples of the major 


periods of California history or 


prehistory? 


☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 


(b) Does the project have impacts that are 


individually limited, but cumulatively 


considerable? (“Cumulatively 


considerable” means that the 


incremental effects of a project are 


considerable when viewed in connection 


with the effects of past projects, the 


effects of other current projects, and the 


effects of probable future projects)? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


(c) Does the project have environmental 


effects which will cause substantial 


adverse effects on human beings, either 


directly or indirectly? 


☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 


Discussion 


(a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially 


reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-


sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or 


restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major 


periods of California history or prehistory? 


Mitigation Measures BIO-1 through BIO-12 address potential project impacts relating to rare or 


endangered species and biological resources known to exist on site. Therefore, the project would not 


result in significant impacts to biological resources and would not substantially reduce the habitat of 


a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, 


threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare 


or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California 


history or prehistory.  
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(b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? (“Cumulatively 


considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection 


with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future 


projects)? 


The project has the potential to impact Biological Resources, Geology and Soils, and Hydrology and 


Water Quality. Mitigation measures have been placed within each of these sections to address 


potential impacts and their implementation would reduce impacts to less than significant levels. The 


project is not expected to result in cumulatively considerable impacts. Therefore, potential cumulative 


impacts would be less than significant.  


(c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, 


either directly or indirectly? 


Based on the nature and scale of the project, the project would not result in a substantial adverse 


direct or indirect effect on human beings.
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Exhibit A - Initial Study References and Agency Contacts 


The County Planning Department has contacted various agencies for their comments on the proposed 


project. With respect to the subject application, the following have been contacted (marked with an ) and 


when a response was made, it is either attached or in the application file: 


Contacted Agency Response 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


County Public Works Department 


County Environmental Health Services 


County Agricultural Commissioner's Office 


County Airport Manager 


Airport Land Use Commission 


Air Pollution Control District 


County Sheriff's Department 


Regional Water Quality Control Board 


CA Coastal Commission 


CA Department of Fish and Wildlife 


CA Department of Forestry (Cal Fire) 


CA Department of Transportation 


    Community Services District 


Other US Fish and Wildlife 


Other CA State Parks Department 


Attached      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


None      


None      


None      


Attached      


Not Applicable      


Not Applicable      


None      


None      


** “No comment” or “No concerns”-type responses are usually not attached 


The following checked (“ ”) reference materials have been used in the environmental review for the 


proposed project and are hereby incorporated by reference into the Initial Study.  The following information 


is available at the County Planning and Building Department.  


 


 


 


 


 


Project File for the Subject Application 


County Documents 


Coastal Plan Policies 


Framework for Planning (Coastal) 


General Plan (Coastal), includes all maps/elements; 


more pertinent elements:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


       Design Plan 


       Specific Plan 


Annual Resource Summary Report 


      Circulation Study 


Other Documents 


Clean Air Plan/APCD Handbook 


Regional Transportation Plan 


Uniform Fire Code 


Water Quality Control Plan (Central Coast Basin – 


Region 3) 


Archaeological Resources Map 


Area of Critical Concerns Map 


Special Biological Importance Map 


CA Natural Species Diversity Database 


Fire Hazard Severity Map 


Flood Hazard Maps 


Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey 


for SLO County 


GIS mapping layers (e.g., habitat, streams, 


contours, etc.) 


Other       


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agriculture Element 


Conservation & Open Space Element 


Economic Element 


Housing Element 


Noise Element 


Parks & Recreation Element/Project List 


Safety Element  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Land Use Ordinance (Coastal) 


Building and Construction Ordinance 


Public Facilities Fee Ordinance 


Real Property Division Ordinance 


Affordable Housing Fund 


      Airport Land Use Plan 


Energy Wise Plan 


Estero Area Plan       
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In addition, the following project-specific information and/or reference materials have been considered as a 


part of the Initial Study: 


Applied Earthworks. 2019. Extended Phase 1 Subsurface Survey for 0 North Ocean Avenue (APN 064-481-009). 


July 17, 2019. 


California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 2019. EnviroStor. Available at: 


<https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/>  


California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2008. Scenic Highway Guidelines. October 2008.  


California Public Utilities Commission. 2018. Delivery, Consumption & Prices for Utility Service within 


California. January 18, 2018. 


California State Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. 2018. Technical Advisory on Evaluating 


Transportation Impacts in CEQA. December 2018. 


Central Coast Transportation Consulting. 2020. 0 Ocean Avenue – Updated Trip Generation and Site Distance 


Memo. March 24, 2020. 


Civil Design Studio, Inc. 2020. Boutique Hotel North Ocean Avenue Stormwater Control Plan (Revised). March 


18, 2020. 


County of San Luis Obispo Department of Planning and Building. 2018. Onsite Wastewater Treatment System 


Local Agency Management Program. January 18th, 2018.  


Department of Conservation (DOC). 2019. San Luis Obispo County Tsunami Inundation Maps. Available at: < 


https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/tsunami/maps/San-Luis-Obispo>. 


Geo Solutions. 2019. Coastal Bluff Evaluation (SL11157-1). October 9, 2019. 


Geo Solutions. 2019. Soils Engineering Report (SL11157-1). March 14, 2019. 


Kevin Merk Associates, LLC. 2019. North Ocean Avenue, Cayucos, California Biological Resources Assessment. 


May 3, 2019. 


Natural Resources Conservation Service. Web Soil Survey National Cooperative Soil Survey. Accessed 


December, 24 2020. 


Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E). 2019. Delivering Low-Emission Energy. Available at: 


<https://www.pge.com/en_US/about-pge/environment/what-we-are-doing/clean-energy-


solutions/clean-energy-solutions.page>. 


San Luis Obispo Council of Governments (SLOCOG). 2019. Responsibilities. Available at: 


<https://slocog.org/about/responsibilities>. 


San Luis Obispo County Air Pollution Control District (APCD). 2001. Clean Air Plan – San Luis Obispo County. 


December 2001. 


United States Geological Survey (USGS). 2019. Areas of Land Subsidence in California. Available at: 


<https://ca.water.usgs.gov/land_subsidence/california-subsidence-areas.html> 
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U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2019. National Wetlands Inventory Surface Waters and Wetlands. May 


5, 2019. Available at: <https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/data/Mapper.html> 


_____. 2016. 2015/2016 County Bikeways Plan. July 6th, 2016.  


_____. 2016. Emergency Operation Plan. December 2016. 
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Exhibit B - Mitigation Summary 


The applicant has agreed to incorporate the following measures into the project. These measures become a 


part of the project description and therefore become a part of the record of action upon which the 


environmental determination is based. All development activity must occur in strict compliance with the 


following mitigation measures. These measures shall be perpetual and run with the land. These measures 


are binding on all successors in interest of the subject property. 


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


 


Geology and Soils 


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


 


Hydrology and Water Quality 


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
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DEVELOPER'S STATEMENT FOR 


COBB DEVELOPMENT PLAN / DRC2019-00297 


 


The applicant agrees to incorporate the following measures into the project. These measures become 


a part of the project description and therefore become a part of the record of action upon which the 


environmental determination is based. All development activity must occur in strict compliance with 


the following mitigation measures. These measures shall be perpetual and run with the land.  These 


measures are binding on all successors in interest of the subject property. 


Per Public Resources Code Section 21081.6 the following measures also constitute the mitigation 


monitoring and/or reporting program that will reduce potentially significant impacts to less than 


significant levels. These measures will become conditions of approval (COAs) should the project be 


approved. The Lead Agency (County) or other Responsible Agencies, as specified in the following 


measures, is responsible to verify compliance with these COAs.  


 


Project Description: A request by Jay and Lisa Cobb for a Development Plan/Coastal Development 


Permit to allow for the construction of a three-story hotel with onsite public amenities for passive and 


active recreational activities. The proposed development would be 35 feet from the average natural 


grade, have a bluff setback of 38 feet, and have a creek setback of 25 feet. The project is located on 


the south side of North Ocean Ave within the Locarno area of the community of Cayucos, in the Estero 


Planning Area. 


 


Note: The items contained in the boxes labeled "Monitoring" describe the County procedures 


to be used to ensure compliance with the mitigation measures. 


The following mitigation measures address impacts that may occur as a result of the development of 


the project. 


Biological Resources 


Nesting Bird Mitigations 


BIO-1  Prior to permit issuance and initiation of any ground disturbing activities, the 


applicant shall provide construction timelines to the County Department of Planning 


and Building in order to minimize impacts to nesting birds and bats. Construction and 


grading activities should take place outside the bird nesting season, which is 


September 1 and January 31. If construction and grading activities occur during 


nesting bird season, provide evidence that a County approved qualified biologist has 


been obtained to conduct a clearance survey within one week prior to the initiation of 


ground disturbance to identify nests and burrows. Visual surveys for bats should be 


conducted in the vicinity of all trees that have cavities, broken limbs, resulting in 


hanging woody debris, and large patches of loose bark.  


 


a. If Active nest sites of bird species protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act 


and/ or California Fish and Game Code Section 3503 are observed within the 


project area, the particular construction activity should be modified and /or 


delayed as necessary to avoid direct impacts of the identified nests, eggs, and/or 


young. Potential project modifications may include establishing appropriate “no 
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activity” buffers around the nest site. Construction activities should not occur in 


the buffer until a biologist has determined that the nesting activity has ceased.  


b. A qualified biologist shall conduct a pre-construction survey for nesting birds 


within 250 feet of the project impact area. The pre-construction survey shall be 


conducted within seven days of initiation of construction activities in any given 


area of the project site and repeated prior to the start of construction in a new 


area of the site. During this survey, the biologist shall inspect all potential nest 


substrates in the impact and buffer areas, and any nests identified will be 


monitored to determine if they are active. Survey results shall be provided to the 


County for review prior to initiation of construction activities. 


c. If no active nests are found, construction may proceed. If an active nest is found 


within 50 feet (250 feet for raptors and possibly more for snowy plover) of the 


construction area, the biologist, in consultation with California Department Fish 


and Wildlife, shall determine the extent of a buffer to be established around the 


nest. The buffer will be delineated with flagging, and no work shall take place 


within the buffered area until the young have left the nest, as determined by the 


qualified biologist. 


 


BIO-2  Prior to initiation of construction activities, a qualified biologist shall prepare a 


Worker Environmental Awareness Program to be presented to all construction 


personnel and employees. The program shall detail the measures undertaken during 


project implementation to avoid and minimize impacts on biological resources. It shall 


include a description of special-status species that have the potential to occur on site 


and their natural history; the status of the species and their protection under the FESA, 


CESA, Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, MBTA, and California Fish and Game 


Code; and the penalties for take. All attendees of the Worker Environmental 


Awareness Program shall sign an attendance form which shall be provided to the 


County along with the documents used to conduct the Worker Environmental 


Awareness Program. 


 


BIO-3  Prior to the start of construction, the limits of disturbance shall be clearly 


delineated by stakes, construction fencing, flags, or another clearly identifiable 


system. 


 


BIO-4  During project construction, all pipes, metal tubing, or similar materials stored or 


stacked on the site for one or more overnight periods shall be either securely capped 


before storage or thoroughly inspected for wildlife before the materials are moved, 


buried, capped, or otherwise used.  


In addition, materials such as lumber, plywood, and rolls of silt fencing stored on site 


shall be thoroughly inspected before use. Materials that could provide shelter / 


nesting habitat for birds shall be covered with netting or other exclusion methods 


during the nesting season to precent birds from building nests. If encountered, wildlife 


shall be allowed to escape unimpeded, or relocated by a qualified biologist to a 


designated appropriate habitat area away from construction activities. Any wildlife 


relocations shall be authorized as necessary by CDFW and / or USFWS. 
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BIO-5  During project construction, to prevent entrapment of wildlife, all excavations (e.g. 


steep-walled holes or trenches) more than 6 inches deep shall be covered with 


plywood or similar materials when not in use or contain escape ramps constructed of 


dirt fill, wooden planks, or other material that wildlife could ascend. The amount of 


time trenches or other excavations are left open shall be minimized.  


All excavations more than 6 inches deep shall be inspected daily prior to the start of 


construction and immediately before being covered or filled. Any wildlife discovered 


shall be allowed to escape unimpeded before construction activities resume or shall 


be relocated by a qualified biologist in accordance with CDFW and / or USFWS 


regulations. 


 


BIO-6  Prior to issuance of building permits, Best Management Practices for dust 


abatement shall be included on the project’s construction documents. 


 


BIO-7 Dust suppression shall occur during construction activities when necessary to meet 


air quality standards and protect biological resources.  


 


BIO-8  During project construction, to minimize disturbance, all vehicle traffic shall be 


restricted to established roads, construction roads, and other designated areas. 


 


BIO-9 During project construction, no vehicles or equipment shall be refueled within 100 


feet of wetlands or streams (including offsite areas) unless a bermed and lined 


refueling area is constructed. No vehicles or construction equipment shall be stored 


overnight within 100 feet of these areas unless drip pans or ground covers are used. 


Spill kits shall be maintained on site and a spill response plan shall be in place.  


 


BIO-10 During project construction, no concrete washout shall be conducted on the site 


outside of an appropriate containment system. 


 


BIO-11 During project construction, the use of chemicals, fuels, lubricants, or biocides shall 


be in compliance with all local, state, and federal regulations. All uses of such 


compounds shall observe label and other restrictions mandated by the U.S. 


Environmental Protection Agency, California Department of Food and Agriculture, and 


other state and federal legislation.  


 


BIO-11 During project construction, all food-related trash items (e.g. wrappers, cans, 


bottles, food scraps), small construction debris (e.g. nails, bits of metal and plastic), 


and other human generated debris (e.g. cigarette butts) shall be stored in animal-


proof containers and / or removed from the site on a weekly basis. No deliberate 


feeding of wildlife shall be allowed. 
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BIO-12  Erosion Control and Revegetation  


During project construction, all areas where temporary construction-related 


impacts have taken place shall have appropriate erosion controls and other 


stormwater protection BMP’s installed to prevent erosion potential.  


Prior to issuance of construction permits, a Sediment and Erosion Control Plan 


shall be prepared by a qualified individual that specifically seeks to protect Cayucos 


Creek, the beach, and wetland habitat adjacent to the construction area. Silt fencing, 


straw bales, sand bags, fiber rolls and / or other types of materials shall be prescribed 


in the plan to prevent erosion and sedimentation. Biotechnical approaches using 


native vegetation shall be considered and used when feasible. 


Prior to final inspection, areas with disturbed soils shall be restored under the 


direction of a qualified environmental consultant. Methods may include recontouring 


graded areas to blend in with existing natural contours, covering the areas with 


salvaged topsoil containing native seedbank from the site, and / or applying the native 


seed mix described in Table 1 of the provided Biological Resources Assessment to the 


graded areas through either direct hand seeding or hydroseeding methods. 


 


BIO-1 through BIO-12 Monitoring/compliance.  


Compliance: Department of Planning and Building shall verify compliance (BIO-1 thru BIO-12) in 


consultation with the Environmental Coordinator.   


 


Geology and Soils 


GEO-1  Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall demonstrate 


compliance on the grading plans with all recommendations of the Soils Engineering 


Report (GeoSolutions, 2019) for the project. During project construction and prior to 


final inspection, the applicant shall implement and comply with all recommendations 


of the Soils Engineering Report (GeoSolutions, 2019) for the project. 


 


GEO-2  Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall demonstrate 


compliance on the grading plans with all recommendations of the Coastal Bluff 


Evaluation (GeoSolutions, 2019) and Coastal Bluff Evaluation update (GeoSolutions, 


2020) for the project. During project construction and prior to final inspection, the 


applicant shall implement and comply with all recommendations of the Coastal Bluff 


Evaluation (GeoSolutions, 2019) and Coastal Bluff Evaluation update (GeoSolutions, 


2020) for the project. 


 


GEO-3   Prior to issuance of building / grading permits, the project engineering geologist 


shall review the project improvement plans and prepare a written review letter. The 


review letter must verify conformance with the recommendations of the project 


coastal bluff evaluation report update and shall be provided to the County for review 


and approval by the County’s geologist. 
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GEO-1 through GEO-3 Monitoring/compliance.  


Prior to issuance of a construction permit, the applicant shall provide a letter from the project 


geologist/engineer indicating that all conditions have been met. 


 


Hydrology and Water Quality  


HYDRO-1 At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit 


additional documents required for private stormwater system operation and 


maintenance plan. The project is located within the County of San Luis Obispo 


Municipal Stormwater Management Area (MS4 Coverage Area) and compliance with 


the Central Coast Post-Construction Requirements (Resolution R3-2013-00032) is 


required. Based on the submitted Stormwater Control Plan, dated October 10, 2019, 


the project will qualify to meet Performance Requirement #3.  


 


HYDRO-2 At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall review the 


Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code to determine if the proposed project and 


proposed operation is a regulated industry. The proposed project and proposed 


operation may meet the criteria to require enrollment in the Industrial Stormwater 


General Permit (IGP) for Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities (Order 2014-


0057-DWQ). Prior to issuance of any construction permit, if the proposed project 


or proposed operation is a regulated industry, the applicant shall provide verification 


of enrollment in the IGP by providing a Waste Discharge Identification Number to the 


County. 


 


HYDRO-1 and HYDRO-2 compliance.  


Prior to issuance of a construction permit, the applicant shall obtain review and approval of 


the project from the County’s Stormwater Program Manager indicating that all conditions have 


been met. 


 


 


The applicant understands that any changes made to the project description subsequent to this 


environmental determination must be reviewed by the Environmental Coordinator and may require 


a new environmental determination for the project. By signing this agreement, the owner(s) agrees to 


and accepts the incorporation of the above measures into the proposed project description. 


 


 


 


____________________________________                               ______________________ 


Signature of Agent(s) or Applicant(s)                              Date 


 


 


  


Name (Print) 


11/30/20


Jay Cobb 
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COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 


Department of Public Works 


John Diodati, Interim Director RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 


 


 


Date: November 5, 2020 


To: Emi Sugiyama, Project Planner 


From: JR Beard, Development Services 


Subject: DRC2019-00297 Cobb-Amick CUP North Ocean Ave., Cayucos, APN 064-481-009 


 


Thank you for the opportunity to provide information on the proposed subject project.  It has been 


reviewed by several divisions of Public Works, and this represents our consolidated response. 


 


Public Works Comments: 


A. The project site is located on North Ocean Avenue, a County maintained roadway.  


B. The proposed project fronts North Ocean Avenue, identified in the 2016 County Bikeways Plan as a Class 


II Bike Lane.  Road widening improvements may be required for compliance with the County Bikeways 


Plan.  


C. The proposed project is within a drainage review area.  A drainage plan is required to be prepared by a 


registered civil engineer and will be reviewed at the time of Building Permit submittal by Public Works.  


The applicant should review Section 23.05.040 of the Land Use  Ordinance prior to future submittal of 


development permits. 


D. The proposed project is currently located within the 100-year flood zone. The project engineer should be 


prepared to determine the 100-year base flood elevation and comply with County flood hazard 


construction standards, Section 23.07.060 of the Land Use Ordinance. 


E. This project may be a regulated project as it is located in a Stormwater Management Area (MS4) and is 


therefore required to submit a Stormwater Control Plan (SWCP) Application or Stormwater Post 


Construction Requirements (PCRs) Waiver Request Form at time of construction permits.  


F. If the project site disturbs 1.0 acre or more the applicant must enroll for coverage under California’s 


Construction General Permit, which may require preparation of a project Stormwater Control Plan even 


if it is located outside a Stormwater Management Area. 


 


Recommended Project Conditions of Approval: 


Access 


1. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit to the Department of 


Public Works an encroachment permit application, plans, fees, and post a cash damage bond, to install 


improvements within the public right-of-way in accordance with County Public Improvement Standards, 


unless already constructed and acceptable or design exceptions are approved by the Public Works 


Department in accordance with Section 1.2 of the Public Improvement Standards. The plans are to 


include, as applicable: 
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a. To remove or relocate all existing non-permitted obstructions from within the public right-of-way of 


the project frontage.   


b. Street plan and profile for widening North Ocean Avenue to complete the project side of an A-2 urban 


road section with Class II bike lane fronting the property, and within necessary dedicated right-of-way 


easements. 


c. North Ocean Avenue site access shall be constructed in accordance with B-2 urban driveway approach 


and A-5 sight distance standards. 


d. Drainage ditches, culverts, and other structures (if drainage calculations require). 


e. Public utility plan, showing all existing utilities and installation of all new utilities to serve the site. 


f. Tree removal/retention plan for trees to be removed and retained associated with the required public 


improvements.  The plan shall be approved jointly with the Department of Planning and Building. 


g. Traffic control plan for construction in accordance with the California Manual on Uniform Traffic 


Control Devices (CA-MUTCD). 


h. The applicant shall provide satisfactory evidence that the Army Corps of Engineers and the California 


Department of Fish and Game environmental permits have either been secured or that the regulatory 


agency has determined that their permit is not required. 


2. On-going condition of approval (valid for the life of the project), and in accordance with County Code 


Section 13.08, no activities associated with this permit shall be allowed to occur within the public right-of-


way including, but not limited to, project signage, tree planting, fences, etc., without a valid encroachment 


permit issued by the Department of Public Works. 


3. On-going condition of approval (valid for the life of the project), the property owner shall be 


responsible for operation and maintenance of public road frontage sidewalks, landscaping, maintaining 


County driveway sight distance standards, and pedestrian amenities in a viable condition and on a 


continuing basis into perpetuity. 


4. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall enter into an agreement and 


post a deposit with the county for the cost of checking the improvement plans and the cost of inspection 


of any such improvements by the County or its designated representative. In addition, prior to building 


permit issuance, the owner must post a performance bond. The applicant shall also provide the county 


with an Engineer of Work Agreement retaining a Registered Civil Engineer to furnish construction phase 


services, Record Drawings and to certify the final product to the Department of Public Works.  


5. Prior to commencing permitted activities, all work in the public right-of-way must be constructed or 


reconstructed to the satisfaction of the Public Works Inspector and in accordance with the County Public 


Improvement Standards; the project conditions of approval, including any related land use permit 


conditions; and the approved improvement plans. 


6. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall provide evidence to the 


Department of Planning and Building that onsite circulation and pavement structural sections have been 


designed and shall be constructed in conformance with Cal Fire, or the regulating fire agency standards 


and specifications back to the nearest public maintained roadway. 


Drainage & Flood Hazard 


7. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit complete drainage 


plans for review and approval in accordance with Section 23.05.040 of the Land Use Ordinance. 
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8. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall show the 100-year flood hazard 


boundary on the project plans and provide evidence that all new structures comply with County flood 


hazard construction standards, Section 23.07.060. 


9. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit complete erosion and 


sedimentation control plan for review and approval in accordance with Section 23.05.036 of the Land Use 


Ordinance. 


10. Prior to issuance of construction permits, the applicant shall provide evidence satisfactory to the 


Department of Planning and Building that the Army Corps of Engineers and the California Department of 


Fish and Game environmental permits have either been secured or that the regulatory agency has 


determined that their permit is not required. 


11. At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall demonstrate that the project 


construction plans are in conformance with their Stormwater Control Plan. 


Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 


12. At the time of application for construction permits, if the project disturbs more than 1.0 acre or is part 


of a common plan of development, the applicant must enroll for coverage under California’s Construction 


General Permit.  Sites that disturb less than 1.0 acre must implement all required elements within the 


site’s erosion and sediment control plan as required by San Luis Obispo County Codes.  


Stormwater Control Plan (SWCP): 


13. At the time of application for construction or grading permits, the applicant shall demonstrate 


whether the project is subject to post-construction stormwater requirements by submitting a Stormwater 


Control Plan application or Stormwater Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) Waiver Request Form. 


a. The applicant must submit a SWCP for all regulated projects subject to Performance Requirement #2 


and above.  The SWCP must be prepared by an appropriately licensed professional and submitted to 


the County for review and approval.  Applicants must utilize the County’s latest SWCP template.   


b. If post-construction stormwater control measures (SCMs) are proposed, the applicant must submit a 


draft Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Plan for review by the County. The plan must consist 


of the following Planning & Building Department forms; 


1. Structural Control Measure Description (Exhibit B) 


2. Stormwater System Contact Information 


3. Stormwater System Plans and Manuals  


c. If applicable, following approval by the County, the applicant shall record with the County Clerk-


Recorder the Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Plan and an agreement or provisions in the 


CCRs for the purpose of documenting on-going and permanent storm drainage control, management, 


treatment, inspection and reporting.  


14. Prior to acceptance of the improvements (if applicable), the Stormwater Operations and Maintenance 


plan and General Notice must be updated to reflect as-built changes, approved by the County, and re-


recorded with the County Clerk-Recorder as amendments to the original document. 
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THIS IS A NEW PROJECT REFERRAL / SUMMARY * 


DATE:  1/13/2020 


TO: 2nd District Legislative Assistant, Building Division, CAL FIRE / County Fire, HEAL SLO, Public Works 


(CSA 10), Stormwater (A. Schuetze), Cayucos Sanitary, Cayucos Beach Water, CA Dept of Fish & 


Wildlife (CDFW), Coastal Commission, RWQCB, State Parks, U.S. Fish & Wildlife, Cayucos Citizens’ 


Advisory Council, AB52 Contacts 


FROM:  Melina Smith (805-781-1006 or MMsmith@co.slo.ca.us)  


PROJECT NUMBER & NAME: DRC2019-00297 COBB (Amick) 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION*: Proposed Conditional Use Permit / Coastal Development Permit for the 


construction of a 3-story 15-room hotel offering active and passive outdoor recreational activities 


available to the community and hotel guests; location is North Ocean Avenue in Cayucos. 


APN(s): 064-481-009 
 


 


Return this letter with your comments attached no later than 14 days from receipt of this referral. CACs please 


respond within 60 days. Thank you. 


 


PART I:  IS THE ATTACHED INFORMATION ADEQUATE TO COMPLETE YOUR REVIEW? 


❑ YES (Please go on to PART II.) 


❑ NO (Call me ASAP to discuss what else you need.  We have only 10 days in which we must 


obtain comments from outside agencies.) 


 


PART II:  ARE THERE SIGNIFICANT CONCERNS, PROBLEMS OR IMPACTS IN YOUR AREA OF REVIEW? 


❑ YES (Please describe impacts, along with recommended mitigation measures to reduce the 


impacts to less-than-significant levels, and attach to this letter.) 


❑ NO (Please go on to PART III.) 


 


PART III:  INDICATE YOUR RECOMMENDATION FOR FINAL ACTION. 


Please attach any conditions of approval you recommend to be incorporated into the project's 


approval, or state reasons for recommending denial. 


 


IF YOU HAVE "NO COMMENT," PLEASE INDICATE (VIA E-MAIL OR PHONE).  


 


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


_________________  __________________________ ____________________ _________________ 


Date   Name      Phone 


 


*All information and/or material provided in the following Referral Package is valid for 90 days after this 


correspondence. After that time please contact the Project Manager for the most updated information. 
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Date: January 28, 2020 


To: Melina Smith 


From: Anthony Schuetze, Stormwater Program Manger 


Subject: Referral Comments, DRC2019-00297 


Thank you for the opportunity to provide information on the proposed project. Based on the 


information provided in the referral package, the applicant should be made aware of the following 


conditions and requirements that may impact the proposed project.  


Recommended Project Conditions of Approval: 


1. The project is located within the County of San Luis Obispo Municipal Stormwater Management 


Area (MS4 Coverage Area) and compliance with the Central Coast Post-Construction 


Requirements (Resolution R3-2013-00032) is required. Based on the submitted Stormwater 


Control Plan, dated October 10, 2019, the project will qualify to meet Performance Requirement 


#3.  At the time of application for construction permits, the applicant shall submit additional 


documents required for private stormwater system operation and maintenance plan.    


2. This project and proposed operation may meet the criteria to require enrollment in the 


Industrial Stormwater General Permit (IGP) for Discharges Associated with Industrial Activities 


(Order 2014-0057-DWQ). The applicant should review the facilities Standard Industrial 


Classification (SIC) Code to determine if planned operation is a regulated industry. 


Building Division Stormwater Comments:  


1. Based on your SIC Code, your facility may need to enroll in the IGP to comply with industrial 


stormwater regulations. If your SIC Code is a regulated industry, you must provide verification of 


enrollment in  IGP by providing your Waste Discharge Identification Number prior to issuance of 


any land use or construction permit.   
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From: Michael Stoker 


Sent: Monday, January 27, 2020 9:22 AM 


To: Melina M. Smith 


Cc: Cheryl Journey; Don C. Moore 


Subject: Re: DRC2019-00297 AMICK / COBB, Project Summary / Referral*, Conditional 


Use Permit, Cayucos 


 


Melina, 


 


Please find buildings recommendations for DRC2019-00297. Let me know if you have any 


questions. 


 


In regards to this preliminary review, a building permit is required. The drawings specify the 


work to be completed is for the construction of a 3-story 15-room hotel offering active and 


passive outdoor recreational activities available to the community and hotel guest). A California 


State licensed design professional (Architect/Engineer) shall prepare plans in compliance with 


current codes adopted by the County of San Luis Obispo (Current version of the California 


Building Standards Codes and Title 19 of the SLO County Codes at time of permit submittal). 


  


While a thorough plan review will be conducted at the time of the building permit application, 


the following items are noted to assist design review; 


  


1. A California licensed Architect or Engineer is required to submit the plans for this project 


per BPC 5536.1. 


2. A pre-application meeting will be needed prior to submitting for a building permit to 


answer any questions and / or discuss code related issues. 


3. Separate building permit will be required for the grading, fire sprinklers, and pool. 


4. Specify the applicable codes on the cover sheet of the plans. 


5. Specify the occupancy group and type of construction on the cover sheet of the plans 


for each building to comply with the California Building Code. 


6. Provide an allowable area analysis on the plans to verify compliance with CBC Chapter 5, 


including Table 503 and sections 504, 506, and 508. Also, provide information stating is 


the building is using the separated, non-separated, or accessory occupancy method or 


combination of each per CBC Chapter 5. 


7. Any fire resistive walls or ceilings due to occupancy separations will need to be detailed 


on the plans to comply with the requirements of with CBC, including Chapter 5, 6 and 7. 


The specific details for the wall construction on the plans will need to reference an 


approved UL listing or gypsum manual listing. 


8. The fire and smoke protection features (i.e. exterior walls, projections, openings, rated 


wall assemblies, shaft enclosures, parapet, etc) shall be shown, calculated and detailed 


on the plans to comply with CBC, including Chapter 7.  


9. The interior finishes (floors, ceiling, walls, insulation, etc) will need to be shown on the 


plans to comply with CBC, including Chapter 8. 







10. Provide an occupant load and exiting analysis on the plans to verify compliance with 


CBC, including Chapter 10. 


11. The accessibility elements throughout will need to be shown, detailed, and / or noted 


on the plans to verify compliance with CBC Chapter 11B. (i.e. accessible parking, path of 


travel, restroom design, accessible amenities, rooms, doors, electrical outlets, etc.).  


12. Provide plans which clearly show the structural design to verify compliance with the 


current version of the California Building Code and referenced standards. The plans and 


supporting calculations will need to be prepared by a California Licensed Design 


Professional (Architect or Engineer) justifying the structural design.  


13. The project will require a soils report and structural calculations for the design of the 


buildings.  All structural elements to be detailed on the plans to comply with CBSC and 


adopted referenced codes. 


14. A grading permit will be required for the project and or site specific. Also, a SWPPP plan 


will be required for this project if the total area of disturbance for the project is 1 acre or 


greater. 


15. Provide isometric / single line drawings for the electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 


elements to verify compliance with the current versions of the California Electrical, 


Plumbing, and Mechanical Codes. 


16. Provide a plumbing fixture analysis on the plans to verify the number of fixtures 


provided are sufficient for the proposed use and complies with CPC Chapter 4 and Table 


A and Table 422. 


17. Provide an equipment schedule on the plans and any referenced standards or spec 


sheets that are applicable.  


18.  Provide details for anchorage for all equipment.  For equipment weighing more than 


400 lbs, provide calculations for seismic anchorage in accordance with ASCE 7-16, 


Chapter 13. 


19. Energy Calculations will need to be provided to verify compliance with current California 


Energy Code. 


20. Compliance with the current California Green Building Code and County of San Luis 


Obispo Green Building Ordinance will need to be show on the plans. 


21. The building(s) may need to be provided with fire sprinklers and an alarm system under 


a separate permit. At the time of the permit application provide plans and calculations 


showing the design of the system. 


 


Thanks 


 
Michael Stoker, CASp 


Building Division Supervisor 


County of San Luis Obispo  


Planning and Building Department 


(p) 805-781-1543 


(f) 805-781-1242 


mstoker@co.slo.ca.us  
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Misty R. Gin


From: Jackie Mansoor


Sent: Tuesday, November 03, 2020 3:51 PM


To: Misty R. Gin


Subject: RE: New Project Referral DRC2019-00297 COBB (AMICK) Conditional Use Permit


Hello Misty – 


 


The APCD has reviewed the information in the project referral. This project will likely be below APCD thresholds, so the 


APCD does not have comments on this project at this time. 


 


Jackie 


 


Jacqueline Mansoor | Air Quality Specialist 


Currently Teleworking 


SLO County Air Pollution Control District 


3433 Roberto Court, SLO 93401 


805-781-5983 • SLOCleanAir.org • SLOCarFree.org 


      


 


 


 


From: Misty R. Gin <mgin@co.slo.ca.us>  


Sent: Friday, October 30, 2020 8:43 AM 


To: Andrew Mutziger <amutziger@co.slo.ca.us>; Jackie Mansoor <JMansoor@co.slo.ca.us> 


Cc: Terry Wahler <twahler@co.slo.ca.us> 


Subject: New Project Referral DRC2019-00297 COBB (AMICK) Conditional Use Permit 


 


Please click here to update your referral contact information 


  


County of San Luis Obispo              


Department of Planning & Building 


  


We are requesting your review of this recently submitted application as the proposed project may be of interest or 


concern to your department/agency. Please click the direct hyperlink below titled “Project Summary / Referral*” 


for an overview of the project: 


 Project Summary / Referral* 


DRC2019-00297 COBB (AMICK) Conditional Use Permit/ Coastal Development Permit, Cayucos  

























				2021-02-05T16:47:12-0800

		Steven McMasters





				2021-02-05T17:10:55-0800

		Emi Sugiyama

		I am the author of this document
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Infill was brought in later from the highway 1 bypass 
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Cobb parcel from the beach 
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From: Tom zkahuna
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

Subject: The Cobb hotel is item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda August 12, 2021
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 8:34:19 PM

Dear California Coastal Commission,

Regarding The Cobb hotel, item Th17b on the Coastal Commission
agenda,
We have lived in Cayucos for over 46 years and adamantly oppose
this project for the
following reasons.
- parking issues
- coastal hazards such as erosion
- history of the site and possible instability of    soil
- no Environmental Impact Report
- inconsistent with the character of Cayucos
- rental rates of $1,200 to $1,500 per night is prohibitive for most
people (CCC emphasizes environmental justice and access for
everyone)
- blocks/destroys views
- increased noise
- increased litter
- increased congestion
- increased water usage

Overall, this project is way out of scale, an eyesore, blocks viewshed
and public access.
Please deny this project.

-- 

                   Thomas & Laurie Craig

                   35 - 9th Street Cayucos, CA

                   (805) 995-1806
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From: slowood@aol.com
To: Brownsey, Donne@Coastal
Cc: Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal;

Harmon, Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal;
CentralCoast@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal

Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 6:01:00 PM

Hello California Coastal Commission members,

Regarding The Cobb hotel, item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda,
I have lived in Cayucos for 5 years and on the Estero Bay coast since 1985.
I strongly oppose and encourage you to deny this project for the following
reasons:
- parking issues
- erosion or the proposed lot from adjacent Cayucos creek
- history of the site and possible instability of soil
- no Environmental Impact Report and why not???
- Cayucos is the last of the quaint beach towns. This project will put yet another      
                                  nail in the coffin
- rental rates of $1,200 to $1,500 per night is prohibitive for most people 
- blocks/destroys views

- increased noise
- increased litter
- increased congestion
- increased water usage: we barely have enough water for what is here currently.

In conclusion, this project is out of scale with the existing downtown environment,
is poorly thought out, blocks views and public access.
Please deny this project.

Thomas Templeton
1625 Cass Avenue
Cayucos, Ca  93430
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From: Vicki Tamoush
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

Subject: Re: Th17b, Appeal A-3-SLO-21-0039
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 9:34:09 PM

To the Coastal Commission and Staff:

I am writing to support the appeal filed by Commissioners Hart and Escalante regarding the
hotel complex planned for an area north of the creek in Cayucos.  This development is
completely out of scale with the town, and I have serious concerns about the stability of the
"bluff" which is actually fill from the construction of Highway 101.  The fact that an
Environmental Impact Report was not required is not consistent with the Commission's
longstanding protection of our beautiful coastal communities.

In addition to safety concerns, a complex such as this one will cause a great deal of disruption
to the neighboring homes.  The residents of Bella Vista Terrace will lose their ocean views,
which of course will devalue their properties.  For those who appreciate the view from the
pier, they will now be looking at a cement-encrusted complex designed for only the most
wealthy in a town where overdevelopment like this has been rejected by property owners and
business owners repeatedly over the years.  

The Commission's commitment to environmental justice includes retaining accessibility to the
coast for all.  A development aimed at those who can afford $1,200 to $1,500 per night is
exactly the opposite of that mission.

We know from experience that the parking waiver the developer received will only increase a
serious problem in Cayucos.  The developer expects 73% of the parking spaces that should
have been allotted for a development of this size to be accommodated by the pier parking lot. 
Where, then, will people park when they come to fish at the pier, or enjoy the beach?  Will the
developer's hotel clients enjoy dragging their luggage from the pier up the hill to his hotel?  Of
course, we know that the developer's hotel guests will park in front of our homes, across our
driveways, and block access to our businesses.  This is what happens now, without the
addition of a massive, three-story structure.

Along with the hotel, store, gym, spa, and all the other features of this development, our quiet
little town will have to tolerate an increase in noise, congestion, and litter with the addition of
a development of this size.  A hotel such as this one is better suited to Santa Monica, Santa
Barbara, or some other overdeveloped area, but not Cayucos.  We live here because we enjoy
"the last little beach town" in California.  We live here because there are no oversized
developments, noise, traffic, congestion, and litter.  We live here because it's the kind of town
where you can escape all the things this hotel will bring with it.  

We're hoping the developer will find some other community to increase his wealth.  Cayucos
is already rich...in beauty.  And we'd like to keep it that way.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment,

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

Subject: A-3-SLO-21-0039 Geo-Solutions Response
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 1:52:45 PM

Commissioners and Commission Staff,

Geo-Solutions, COASTAL BLUFF EVALUATION – RESPONSE TO COMMENTS dated
July 8, 2021, under Section 2.0, Response: 
“The oldest yet still small-scale photograph which could be obtained for the site dated back to
1953 which resulting in a analysis spanning 66 years” 

The problem as I’ve pointed out before, the lot was not filled in 1953, it was beach sand at
that time. I have provided dated photographs to the CCC, 10/1/1964 and 11/23/1964 showing
the lot was not filled in 1964. How can Geo-Solutions do a  66 year, 1953 to 2019, Bluff
Retreat Study when the lot wasn’t filled in 1953 and no bluff was there?

The hotel proposed for the lot is 3 stories, 35 feet tall. They are basing the height on the top of
the fill in the lot. By SLO County Code they must use Natural Grade which is 12-15 feet
below the surface of the fill. In the SLO County Planning meeting the County said they could
wave that if the fill was installed before 1959. Emi Sugiyama, County Planner, said she
thought it was filled in 1958 showing no proof of it being filled. I have provided photographs
dated 10/1/1964 and 11/23/1964 showing the lot was not filled, SLO County ignored them.

Dante Borradori 
Borradori@att.net
661-706-0605
Sent from my bike
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From: Tybel Cooksey
To: Groom, Carole@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Bochco,

Dayna@Coastal; Brownsey, Donne@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; Rice,
Katie@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Harmon,
Meagan@Coastal; Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Craig,
Susan@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal

Subject: (Copied to CCC Staff) RE: Cobb Hotel Project Concerns
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 1:58:31 PM

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Barbara <bkarush@yahoo.com>
Date: Fri, Aug 6, 2021 at 12:34 PM
Subject: Fwd: (Copied to CCC Staff) RE: Cobb Hotel Project Concerns
To: Devin Wallace <devinwalla@gmail.com>, Tybel (Kuma Leo Ben)Dombrowski
<tybelc@gmail.com>, <rrcooksey@gmail.com>

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

On Aug 6, 2021, at 11:11 AM, Barbara Karush <bkarush@yahoo.com> wrote:

To:  California Coastal Commission

From:  Tybel Cooksey

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

Tybel Dombrowski



From: Carol Kramer
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: Cobb Hotel hearing
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 2:50:58 PM

Hello my name is Carol Kramer, a 40 year resident of Cayucos Ca. and member of the Cayucos Advisory Council
also a co-chair of the Visitor’s Alliance Council. I am writing to you with my concerns about the Cobb Hotel project
that is set to go before your Commission on August 12, 2021. All the information concerning this has stated that the
Advisory Board voted unanimously to support this project. As I voted in that meeting in March 2020, I did not vote
in favor of support and actually asked questions that were not answered adaquately.
I have a number of concerns.
1. Most importantly would be the lack of adequate parking for a project of this size and scope. Why are so many
spaces waived when other projects in town that are not this overbuilt for the property are required to have more.
2. The lack of a view shed which the Applicant’s solution has been to have a Lobby of all glass so citizens and
visitors can look thru the Lobby and see the coast
3.The Cobbs have stated they are meeting a need for Quality Hotel accommodations in Cayucos  and I’m sure that
we already have other hotels in Cayucos that would disagree that there is a lack of Quality rooms available.
4. Inconsistent with the character of our Town…which has unofficially been called the last California Beach Town
consistent with a 50’s lifestyle that has been embraced by the locals and visitors alike and protected rigorously by
the local population
5. Built on a land fill site that was a dump for Borradori Garage and Local construction until the 1960’s asking the
question of where is the Environmental Impact Report
6. The failure of the Advisory Council to hold a Public Information Meeting that was well advertised before the
Council took a vote without Public comment and opinions
7. The coastal hazard of erosion and sea rise based on 50 year reviews and not the full 100 year study
8. The Restaurant and Bar for Hotel Guests only but what guarantee are in place that this will stay in place and not
open to the general public, requiring more parking spaces
9. The lack of Public coastal access on the property but relying on adjacent neighboring private property for the
public access

These are some of my concerns and I hope that you agree that there is enough questions to deny the project going
forward and to revisit the permitting process from San Luis Obispo County Planning Commission file # DRC2019-
00297

Thank you for your consideration,
Carol R. Kramer
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From: Carl, Dan@Coastal
To: Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: FW: A-3-SLO-21-0039 Geo-Solutions Response
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 3:24:06 PM

Interesting question/observation about height below. Argues that the fill is not ‘natural grade’
and thus they need to measure height from beach level, which would mean this is way
oversized. Does the LCP provide any guidance on this question about measuring heights?
 
From: Dan Borradori <borradori@att.net>
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 at 1:52 PM
To: "Brownsey, Donne@Coastal" <donne.brownsey@coastal.ca.gov>, "Bochco,
Dayna@Coastal" <dayna.bochco@coastal.ca.gov>, "Groom, Carole@Coastal"
<carole.groom@coastal.ca.gov>, "Hart, Caryl@Coastal" <caryl.hart@coastal.ca.gov>,
"CentralCoast@Coastal" <CentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov>, "Carl, Dan@Coastal"
<Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>, "Escalante, Linda@Coastal" <linda.escalante@coastal.ca.gov>,
"Craig, Susan@Coastal" <Susan.Craig@coastal.ca.gov>, "Donovan, Forest@Coastal"
<forest.donovan@coastal.ca.gov>, "Kahn, Kevin@Coastal" <Kevin.Kahn@coastal.ca.gov>,
"Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal" <effie.turnbull-sanders@coastal.ca.gov>, "Rice,
Katie@Coastal" <katie.rice@coastal.ca.gov>, "Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov"
<Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov>, "Harmon, Meagan@Coastal"
<meagan.harmon@coastal.ca.gov>, "Wilson, Mike@Coastal" <mike.wilson@coastal.ca.gov>,
"Uranga, Roberto@Coastal" <roberto.uranga@coastal.ca.gov>, "Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal"
<sara.aminzadeh@coastal.ca.gov>, "Padilla, Stephen@Coastal"
<Stephen.Padilla@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: A-3-SLO-21-0039 Geo-Solutions Response
 
Commissioners and Commission Staff,
 
Geo-Solutions, COASTAL BLUFF EVALUATION – RESPONSE TO COMMENTS dated July 8, 2021, under
Section 2.0, Response: 
“The oldest yet still small-scale photograph which could be obtained for the site dated back to 1953
which resulting in a analysis spanning 66 years” 
 
The problem as I’ve pointed out before, the lot was not filled in 1953, it was beach sand at that
time. I have provided dated photographs to the CCC, 10/1/1964 and 11/23/1964 showing the lot
was not filled in 1964. How can Geo-Solutions do a  66 year, 1953 to 2019, Bluff Retreat Study when
the lot wasn’t filled in 1953 and no bluff was there?
 
The hotel proposed for the lot is 3 stories, 35 feet tall. They are basing the height on the top of the
fill in the lot. By SLO County Code they must use Natural Grade which is 12-15 feet below the surface
of the fill. In the SLO County Planning meeting the County said they could wave that if the fill was
installed before 1959. Emi Sugiyama, County Planner, said she thought it was filled in 1958 showing
no proof of it being filled. I have provided photographs dated 10/1/1964 and 11/23/1964 showing
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the lot was not filled, SLO County ignored them.
 
Dante Borradori 
Borradori@att.net
661-706-0605
Sent from my bike



From: Elizabeth Tolley
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

Subject: A-3-SLO-21-0039 (COBB HOTEL, CAYUCOS)
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 4:30:16 PM
Attachments: cayucos letter.docx

  

To:  California Coastal Commission

 

From: Elizabeth Tolley

 

Re:  CC reference # A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos

 

Dear Commissioners and Staff,

 

I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the
Coastal Act.    

 

While I am hopeful you have already decided to support Staff’s Recommendation to
establish Substantial Issue, I want to express my concerns from what I have experienced
from being part of Cayucos as an artist and a resident of San Luis Obispo County since
1975.

 

As a professional landscape painter, I have had the opportunity to paint in some of the most
beautiful and historical locations in the country.  

Cayucos is one of the truly unique and beautiful areas I have painted.

From the coastal terrace and spacious beaches to the town itself, Cayucos has to be one of
California’s jewels.

 

1. The proposed Hotel does not have adequate parking on their project site.
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



I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal Act.    



While I am hopeful you have already decided to support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, I want to express my concerns from what I have experienced from being part of Cayucos as an artist and a resident of San Luis Obispo County since 1975.



As a professional landscape painter, I have had the opportunity to paint in some of the most beautiful and historical locations in the country.  

Cayucos is one of the truly unique and beautiful areas I have painted. 

From the coastal terrace and spacious beaches to the town itself, Cayucos has to be one of California’s jewels.



1. The proposed Hotel does not have adequate parking on their project site.



[bookmark: _GoBack]I appreciate that there are parking spaces next to the sand. 

When I paint near the pier I see many people that would not be able to enjoy a day at the beach if there was not parking close to the beach. For those that can’t walk down to the beach, the sidewalk affords them mobility and the ability to be at the beach and have all the spectacular views.



It would be a shame to lose public parking in the lot north of the pier. 



2. The proposed Hotel does not fit with the scale or character of the downtown Cayucos. 

 

People come to Cayucos to experience beauty and enjoy the beach vibe. Cayucos is a historical town. Please keep the beach access, beautiful views and character of downtown Cayucos intact. 

 

Commissioners, please support your Staff’s finding of Substantial Issue and their recommendation that the Commission assume jurisdiction over the CDP application for the proposed project.

 

Sincerely,



Elizabeth Tolley

2485 Cottontail Creek Road

Cayucos, CA
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I appreciate that there are parking spaces next to the sand.

When I paint near the pier I see many people that would not be able to enjoy a day at the
beach if there was not parking close to the beach. For those that can’t walk down to the
beach, the sidewalk affords them mobility and the ability to be at the beach and have all the
spectacular views.

 

It would be a shame to lose public parking in the lot north of the pier.

 

2. The proposed Hotel does not fit with the scale or character of the downtown Cayucos.

 

People come to Cayucos to experience beauty and enjoy the beach vibe. Cayucos is a
historical town. Please keep the beach access, beautiful views and character of downtown
Cayucos intact.

 

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

 

 

 



From: P&B
To: Bochco, Dayna@Coastal; Padilla, Stephen@Coastal; Turnbull-Sanders, Effie@Coastal; Aminzadeh, Sara@Coastal; Hart,

Caryl@Coastal; Wilson, Mike@Coastal; Rice, Katie@Coastal; Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Harmon, Meagan@Coastal;
Uranga, Roberto@Coastal; Groom, Carole@Coastal; Mark.Gold@coastal.ca.gov; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig,
Susan@Coastal; Kahn, Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal

Subject: Cobb Hotel
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 4:25:34 PM

To:  California Coastal Commission
 
From:  Barbara and Paul Funk;  Funk Land Enterprises, property owners in Cayucos on
Lucerne and Cypress Glen Ct_______________________________
 
Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Project, Cayucos
 
I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several
inconsistencies with the San Luis Obispo LCP and the Public Access Policies of the Coastal
Act.   Please note:
 

•   There are possible Bluff and Setback issues regarding the setback waivers granted to this
project.  Are the bluff-top setbacks enough to account for erosion and other impacts associated
with coastal hazards, like sea-level rise?   The project is located on fill, where erosion could
happen at a quicker rate than on other land types.

 
•   The scale of this project would eliminate the breathtaking public view sheds that currently
exist from the Highway, public walkways and Cayucos beach, north of the Pier. It is also
inconsistent with the character of downtown Cayucos.

 
•   Inadequate Parking:  A waiver of over 70% of the parking normally required on a project of
this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted. Allowing the Hotel to consume the public parking lot
north of the pier as part of their parking requirement would take coastal access away from the
public.

 
•   The project does not provide accommodation for low cost Visitor stays, yet it would take the
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
 
Funk Land Enterprises
Barbara and Paul Funk
Tracy Holton 
Ben Holton
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Matthew Funk
Christy Funk
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From: Julia Schwebel
To: Escalante, Linda@Coastal; Hart, Caryl@Coastal; Carl, Dan@Coastal; Craig, Susan@Coastal; Kahn,

Kevin@Coastal; Donovan, Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal
Subject: 17 unit hotel in Cayucos
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 4:45:43 PM

Hi there,

Just wanted to email in and let you know I am in support of the appeal to this build. The idea of building a luxury
hotel on an eroding bluff in a small town that is already overrun with tourism, and has continuous problems with
drought, is so saddening to see. 

Glad I caught word of this. 
Is there anything else I can come to to support the appeal, or any other way I can help?

Thank you,
Julia Schwebel
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From: Marty McDaniel
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
Forest@Coastal; CentralCoast@Coastal; sail2bluesue@gmail.com

Cc: bgibson@co.slo.ca.us
Subject: Re: Item Th17b on the Coastal Commission agenda for August 12
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 4:30:06 PM

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

San Luis Obispo County covers many varying land and community types, of which Cayucos is a
unique entity.  To allow a development as the one proposed by the Cobbs would set a
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
erosion, the lack of an Environmental Impact Study, increased congestion, and others with the
lack of an EIS the most egregious of these.

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

The area proposed for this development is a sandy runoff area.  There will be a serious
concern about runoff, ocean rise, and the resulting erosion.  We must protect the land and
our coastal waters.  It is vital that at the very least, an Environmental Impact Study be
completed prior to approval of this project.

 
I sincerely hope that the Commission will determine that the appeal raises a substantial issue
and will take jurisdiction over the underlying coastal development permit (CDP) application.  I
hope that the Commission will allow for a review of the application at a future Commission
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meeting and invite all persons to testify. There are many substantial issues in this proposal
that have not been addressed and Cayucos deserves a formal say in its future.

Marty McDaniel
225 hacienda Dr.
Cayucos, Ca



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

 

Virus-free. www.avg.com

http://www.avg.com/email-signature?utm_medium=email&utm_source=link&utm_campaign=sig-email&utm_content=webmail
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



Attn:  California Coastal Commission

Re:  CC reference #  A-3-slo-21-0039 Cobb Hotel Proposal, Cayucos

I support Staff’s Recommendation to establish Substantial Issue, based on several inconsisten-
cies with the San Luis Obispo LCP,  and the Coast Act Policies for Public Access.
My top concerns:

1.  Project is on Fill:  There is strong evidence this site is located on fill that occurred in the 
mid- 1960’s. The Biological Assessment Plan cited as the basis for waiving the Environment Im-
pact Report (EIR) used a 10 unit single story project for its findings, not a 17 Unit project. Re-
quiring an EIR is in the best interest of our community and the wildlife living there.

2.  Inadequate parking requirement.  A waiver allowing a reduction in the parking required on 
a project of this scope (77 down to 21?) was granted, that is over 70% reduction?. The Hotel  
would assume public parking space in the North lot, effectively reducing coastal access to the 
public and causing them to park on residential streets far away from the beach.

3. Reduced Wetlands Setbacks:  SLO County Planning granted modification to the estab-
lished Wetlands setback of 100 ft. and agreed to only 25 ft. setback.  This point deserves further 
exploration to ensure the safety of all concerned. What about the impact of sea level rise, since 
this project will not be allowed a seawall for protection?

4. Flawed Notification:  The info link on the required notices to the residents was incorrect, it 
took several weeks for SLO County Planning to respond with correct link information. In addi-
tion, the individual Mobile Home owners residing in Bella Vista  Park were omitted from the 
noticing process, although, it is a requirement to provide notice to them.

5. Precedent Setting Decision:  Granting so many unprecedented waivers and modifications 
on a project of this scale and sensitivity (Oceanfront parcel bordered by a creek and the ocean), 
will set a precedent in motion that will encourage/support waivers to the LCP on future devel-
opments. We risk losing the very protections outlined in the LCP for the health of the community 
and public coastal access.

Please consider all these topics, find Substantial Issue and establish jurisdiction over this 
project.

Thank you for your service,

Toni LeGras

Toni LeGras , Cayucos CA

CAYUCOS CA  93430



From: Carl, Dan@Coastal
To: Donovan, Forest@Coastal
Subject: FW: Hotel in Cayucos
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 4:57:28 PM

 
 
From: zara zaitz <zarazaitz@gmail.com>
Date: Friday, August 6, 2021 at 4:56 PM
To: "Carl, Dan@Coastal" <Dan.Carl@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Hotel in Cayucos
 
Hello,
My name is Zara Zaitz and I have been living in Cayucos for 22 years and I appreciate the pace and
size of this special town. People come here because it stands out, they have to slow down and enjoy
the simple, pure beauty of this place. Just during this year the traffic and tourism has changed from
weekends to all week long. I don’t think Cayucos need to be any busier. I cherish this place. I don’t
think another hotel is what it needs. And I know many who are from here that feel the same.
                                               Sincerely,
                                               Zara Zaitz
 
Sent from my iPhone

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

 
References: 
GeSolutions, Inc., June 23, 2020, Coastal Bluff Evaluation Update, Cobb Boutique Hotel, North Ocean 
Avenue, APN: 064-481-009, Cayucos Area, San Luis Obispo County, California, Project SL11157-3. 
 
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
0

 

 
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

From: "steve goodcleanfunusa.com" <steve@goodcleanfunusa.com> 
Date: June 22, 2021 at 8:26:24 AM PDT 
To: Stuart Selkirk <cayucoscellars@yahoo.com>, borradori@att.net, forest@coastaldonovan.com 
Subject: Re: Forest@Coastal Donovan 

  
Dan Borradori, please forward to Commission. Thanks Steve 
  
  
California Coastal Commission, 
C/O Kevin Kahn, 
  
Dir Coastal, 
I am writing this letter to the commission addressing my serious concern for the new Hotel Project being 
proposed in North Cayucos business district. My name is Steve Hennigh and I am a property owner and 
business owner in this area. I have owned and operated my retail business in the downtown of Cayucos 
for 46 years and have a very good insight on the business climate of the area being targeted to develop. 
My biggest concern with this proposed project is parking and height of proposed building.  
 First and foremost is the parking crisis in downtown Cayucos. It is completely out of control currently 
and this project would completely exasperate this problem to a new level. Currently all downtown 
parking is plugged to the maximum. Leaving owners of businesses and employees parking in local 
residential streets. As well as visitors who are not finding public parking and leaving the area frustrated. 
The county has done a masterful job of marketing the area and we cannot facilitate the amount of 
visitor parking as it is. This has been a historic problem for Cayucos for years and the current Advisory 
Council has turned their heads on the problem. Most of the council is oblivious to the need for parking 
and has no idea what this is going to do to our downtown parking problem at hand. Allowing this project 
to go through as planned will drive people away more than bring them in. While allowing one project 
like this to break ground and can skip over parking requirements is a big disaster to our downtown. It 
also sets up a president to any other project coming up. Please look at this problem and consider us who 
have worked hard to get to where we are by following the rules and building codes. 
The other issue is the height of this proposed building? It will completely block access and view to this 
precious little slice of what’s left of the beach on the north side of the Cayucos Pier. It is zoned 
recreational? By allowing a new set of rules allowing a restaurant, bar, and additional shops for their 
own guests makes no sense. We all know this will not be just for their hotel guests. And the problem for 
parking gets worse! The ground fill on this site is not original what so ever. And needs to be looked at 
with what is really original height.  
 Lastly is one of the biggest problems I have with this project. The community knows nothing about this 
and is being pushed hard for approval before they do? Please help Cayucos and let us solve the parking 
problem first before developing more. The Cayucos Advisory Council should be shamed for their support 
on this project. They have completely failed the community on this issue. Thank you for your 
consideration on the matter. 
Sincerely, 
Steve Hennigh 
Good Clean Fun Surf and Sport 
137 North Ocean Ave. 
Cayucos, Ca. 93430 

mailto:steve@goodcleanfunusa.com
mailto:cayucoscellars@yahoo.com
mailto:borradori@att.net
mailto:forest@coastaldonovan.com












 
 
July 19, 2021 
 
Mary K Danks 
505 Lucerne Road 
Cayucos, CA 93430 
901-338-2906 
 
Re: Questions and concerns regarding the proposed Boutique Hotel on Ocean Avenue in Cayucos 
 
Commissioners: 

I have heard that The Coastal Commission pays close attention to questions submitted by local residents.  I 
am trusting that that is true, as I have several concerns regarding the Boutique Hotel referenced above. 

Concern 1: Parking 
Is already a problem.  I take daily walks downtown Cayucos.  It is good exercise.  And there is usually no place 
to park.  Since the article in The Tribune came out, I have taken special notice of available parking.  The 
parking lot by the Veterans’ Hall has been at 100% capacity every day.  The same is true for on street parking.  
The reduction of the requisite 77 parking places associated with the proposed building to 21 seems 
unreasonable.  How many employees will be present at any given time?  Will there be remote parking for these 
individuals and for guests and a shuttle bus to/from that remote parking?  What was the basis for assuming 
that 21 parking places—a pretty drastic reduction from 77—would be adequate for this project? 

Concern 2:  Economic impact 
A 3-story building would eliminate the ocean view now enjoyed by residents of the Bella Vista RV Park.  
Several of our friends drive their RVs to Cayucos specifically to stay in that RV Park because of the wonderful 
view.  That incentive to come to Cayucos would no longer exist.   

Concern 3:  Availability of hotels, motels, and rentals 
Cayucos has several lovely places to stay.  It also has several more moderately priced places.  It also has 
multiple luxury accommodations that can be rented through rental agencies.  The description of the Boutique 
Hotel does not sound like it adds anything that isn’t already here.   

Concern 4:  Goodwill 
A 3-story building that blocks the ocean view of residents of the RV Park would affect not one or two families, 
but many families.  This Park is one of the few places in which a person who is not a millionaire (or close) can 
live in Cayucos.  My family will be affected in a limited way by the proposed hotel, but it would be a shame to 
head toward making Cayucos an enclave for millionaires when the not-so-wealthy as well as the wealthy 
benefit from the joy of the ocean.   

Concern 5: Lack of information 
The first information made available to the public (of which I am aware) was the recent article in The Tribune.  
The proposal had already come to a vote.  It would seem reasonable to have had a placard similar to the one 
posted for the proposed Pocket Neighborhood on Ash Avenue to make relevant information available to local 
residents.  The cryptic approach appears rather secretive and underhanded. 

Alternative: A single story grill or restaurant with outdoor seating facing the water, available to the public 
Because the location of the proposed building will significantly impact the character of the town, it would seem 
reasonable to propose a facility of benefit to and accessible to all. 

Thank you for reading this letter. 

Sincerely, 
Mary K. Danks 
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